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QUALITY CARE INDIA LIMITED

31% (THIRTY FIRST) ANNUAL REPORT 2022-23

[ CORPORATE INFORMATION

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Mr., Jasdeep Singh — Director and Chief Executive Officer
Mr. Kewal Kundanlal Handa - Independent Non-Executive Director
Ms. Ekta Bahl - Independent Non-Executive Director
Mr. Arunprakash Srinivasarao Korati — Non-Executive Director
Mr. Vishal Bali — Non-Executive Director
Mr. Ankur Nand Thadani — Non-Executive Director

Mr, Mahadevan Narayanamoni — Non-Executive Director

Mr. Madan Rohinikrishnan — Non-Executive Director

Mr. Massimiliano Colella - Non-Executive Director

Mr. Vikas Rastogi - Chief Financial Officer

Mrs. Gayathri Chandramoulieswaran — Company Secretary
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BOARD COMMITTEES

Audit Committee

Mr. Kewal Kundanlal Handa - Chairman
Ms. Ekta Bahl - Member
Mr. Mahadevan Narayanamoni - Member

Nomination and Remuneration Committee

Mr, Arunprakash Srinivasarao Korati - Chairman
Ms. Ekta Bahl - Member
Mr. Kewal Kundanlal Handa - Member
Mr, Vishal Bali - Member

Corporate Social Responsibility Committee
Mr. Kewal Kundanial Handa - Chairman

Mr. Arunprakash Srinivasarao Korati - Member
Ms. Ekta Bahl - Member

Operating Committee
Mr. Mahadevan Narayanamoni - Chairman

Mr. Jasdeep Singh - Member
Mr. Massimiliano Colella - Member
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REGISTERED OFFICE
6-3-248/2, Road No.1
Banjara Hills
Hyderabad — 500 034

CORPORATE OFFICE
CARE Corporate Office
1st Floor, Kohinoor building, Road No 2, Banjara Hills,
Hyderabad -500034 Telangana

STATUTORY AUDITORS
M/s. Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP
Unit -2B, 8" Floor, Octave Block, Block El, Parcel-4,
Salarpuria Sattva Knowledge City,
Raidurg, Hyderabad — 500 081 Telangana

INTERNAL AUDITORS
Emst & Young LLP
18, iLabs Centre, Madhapur,
Hyderabad - 500 081 Telangana

COST AUDITORS
M/s. Nageswara Rao & Co
Cost Accountants
H.No.30-1569/2, Plot No.35, Anantanagar Colony
Neredmet, Secunderabad.

SECRETARIAL AUDITORS
RVR & ASSOCIATES
Company Secretaries
D.No #1-10-18/G1, Lakshmi Sree Park View Apartments,
Opp. Municipal Park, Ashok Nagar,
Hyderabad- 500020, Telangana

BANKERS
Union Bank of India, Banjara Hills Branch, Hyderabad
Axis Bank Limited, Corporate Banking branch, Hyderabad
The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited, Hyderabad
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QUALITY CARE INDIA LIMITED

Regd. Office: 6-3-248/2, Road No.1, Banjara Hills, Hyderabad-500 (34;

CIN: U85110TG1992PLC014728; Email:Info@carchospitals.com,

Website: www.carchospitals.com; contact no.: 040-304 18888, 040-68306565, 040-68106565

NOTICE

NOTICE is hereby given that the Thirty First (31%") Annual General Meeting of QUALITY
CARE INDIA LIMITED (the Company} will be held on Tuesday, the 26% day of September, 2023
at 12.30 Noon through Video Conferencing (VC)/Other Audio Visual means (OAVM) facility at the
Board Room, Corporate Office, 1st Floor, Kohinoor building, Road No 2, Banjara Hills, Hyderabad
- 500034 Telangana to transact the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1. To receive, consider and adopt the audited Financial Statements Le. Balance Sheet, the
statement of Profit & Loss (including the Consolidated Financial Statements) and the Cash
Flow Statement of the Company for the Financial Year ended 31%* March 2023 and the reports
of the Auditors and Board of Directors thereon.

2. To reappoint Mr. Arunprakash Srinivasarao Korati (DIN: 00027783) as a director, who retires
by rotation and being eligible, offers his candidature for re-appointment.

3. To reappoint Mr. Ankur Nand Thadani {DIN: 03566737) as a director, who retires by rotation
and being eligible, offers his candidature for re-appointment.

4, To Declare Dividend for Compulsory Convertible Preference Shares (CCPS) as per the
recommendation of the Board:

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s) the following resolution
as an Ordinary Resolution:

"RESOLVED THAT a dividend at the rate of 0.001% Per Compulsory Convertible
Preference share capital of the company for the year ended 315 March 2023 be paid subject to
the approval of the shareholders to those shareholders whose names appear on the register of
members as on the date of Book Closing in proportion to the paid up value of the Compulsory
Convertible Preference share."

SPECIAL BUSINESS:

5. To Ratify the Remuneration Payable to Cost Auditors:

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s) the following resolution
as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 148 and all other applicable

provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules; 2014
(including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof, for the time being in force),
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Cost Auditors, M/s, Nageswara Rao & Co, Cost Accountants having Firm Registration No:
000332 appointed by the Board of Directors of the Company as Cost Auditors, to conduct the
audit of the cost records of the Company for the Financial year ending 31 March 2024, who
shall be paid a remuneration of Rs. 1,25,000/- (Rupees One Lakh Twenty Five Thousand
Only) Per Annum plus applicable taxes and out of pocket expenses at actual.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Board of Directors, be and are hereby severally authorized
to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things as may be necessary, proper, expedient, required
or incidental thereto, in this regard including but not limited to filing of requisite
application/forms/ reports, etc. with the Ministry of Corporate Affairs or with such other
authorities as may be required for the purpose of giving effect to this resolution.”

For and on behalf of the Board of

Place: Hyderabad, India
Date: 23.08.2023 Director & Group Chief Executive Officer
DIN: 02705303
Email: jasdeep.singh@carehospitals.com
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Notes:

1.

The explanatory statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™)
relating to Special Business to be transacted at Annual General Meeting is annexed hereto.

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”™) has vide its General circular No. 14/2020 dated
08.04.2020, 17/2020 dated 13.04.2020, 22/2020 dated 15.06.2020, 33/2020 dated 28.09.2020
and 39/2020 dated 31.12.2020 and 10/2021 dated 23.06.2021, read with circulars No. 21/2021
dated 8.12.2021, General circular no. 2/2022 dated 05.05.2022 and Genera! circular no.
10/2022 dated 28.12,2022 (collectively referred to as “MCA Circulars”) permitted the
holding of the Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) through VC / QAVM, without the physical
presence of the Members till 30 September, 2023. In compliance with the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) and MCA Circulars and relevant circulars and other applicable
provisions, the AGM of the Company is being held through VC / OAVM. The proceedings of
the Annual General Meeting will be deemed to be conducted at the registered office of the
Company at #6-3-248/2, Road No, 1, Banjara Hills, Hyderabad -500034.

The VC/OAVM facility for members to join the meeting, shall be kept open 30 minutes
before the start of the AGM and shall be closed on expiry of 30 minutes after the conclusion
of the AGM. Members can attend the AGM through VC/OAVM by following the instructions
mentioned in this notice.

The attendance of the Members attending the AGM through VC/QAVM will be counted for
the purpose of reckoning the quorum under Section 103 of the Companies Act, 2013.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Act, a Member entitled to attend and vote at the AGM is
entitled to appoint a proxy to attend and vote on his/her behalf and the proxy need not be a
Member of the Company. Since this AGM is being held pursuant to the MCA Circulars
through VC / OAVM, physical attendance of Members has been dispensed with. Accordingly,
the facility for appointment of proxies by the Members will not be available for the AGM and
hence the Proxy Form and Attendance Slip are not annexed to this Notice.

Members desiring to seek any information/clarifications on the Financial Statements are
requested to write to the Company at least seven (7) days before the Annual General Meeting
to enable the management to keep the information ready.

Institutional / Corporate Shareholders (i.e. other than individuals / HUF, NRI, etc.) are
entitled to appoint authorized representatives to attend the AGM through VC/QOAVM and
participate there at and cast their votes. Institutional / Corporate Shareholders are requested to
send a scanned copy (PDF/JPG Format) of its certified true copy of Board or governing body
Resolution/Authorization/Power of Attorney etc., alongwith the specimen signature of the
authorized representative who is authorized to attend the AGM on its behalf and to vote
pursuant to Section 113 of the Act. The said Resolution/Authorization shall be sent to the
Company by email through its registered email address to ¢s.officeii carehospitals.com

Members holding shares in physical/dematerialized mode, who have not registered/updated
their email addresses with the Company are requested to register/update their email addresses
by writing to the Company along with their. details and folic number at
cs.office i carehospitals.com
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9. Members whose email ids are already registered with the Company or with' Registrar and

10.

11,

Share transfer agent will receive the Zoom Link (for video conferencing) for attending the
Annval General Meeting which is also given below; Members are requested to attend the
meeting through the given link and In case any member has not received the link via email
then they are requested to send a mail from their E-mail account and write to
¢s.office i carehospitals.com.

Zoom Link:

Topic: QCIL Annual General Meeting 2023
Time: 12:30 Noon

Join Zoom Meeting
https:/fusO02web.zoom. us/j/85464621651? pwd=dlozRnc INUg2Nkx QK316 UCsyRHA 37209

Meeting ID: 854 6462 1651

Passcode: 368044

Find your local number: hitps:/fus02web.zoom. us/uw/kbklIFONUG

Instructions:
a) Type the exact link given above in the web address bar and enter

Or

b} i} open Google Chrome/Mozilla Firefox/Internet Explorer
i} Go to join.zoom,us and type
Meeting ID: 854 6462 1651
Passcode: 368044
iii) Click Join
In case of any technical difficulties write to - udavkumar,bellapuiicarehospitals.com; or
cs.office i 'carchospitals.com;

In keeping with Ministry of Corporate Affairs’ Green initiative measures, the Company
hereby requests members who have not registered their email addresses so far, to register their
email addresses for receiving all communication including annual report, notices, circulars,
ete. from the Company ¢lectronically by writing to ¢s.office i'carehospitals.com.

The statutory registers including register of directors and key managerial personnel and their
sharcholding, the register of contracts or arrangements in which directors are interested
maintained under the Companies Act, 2013 and all other documents referred to in the notice
will be available for inspection in electronic mode. Members who wish to inspect the register
are requested to write to the company by sending ¢-mail to ¢s.office i/'carehospitals.com
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12. All shareholders attending the AGM will have the option to post their comments/queries
through a dedicated chat box, which will be made available.

13. The Annual Report of the Company including the Notice convening the AGM circuiated to
the members of the Company will be available on the Company’s website at
https://www.carehospitals.com/annual-reports

14. Since the AGM will be held through VC / OAVM, the Route Map is not annexed in this
Notice.
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EXPLANATORY STATEMENT
(Pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act 2013)

Item No. 5

The Board has approved the re-appointment of the Cost Auditors, M/s. Nageswara Rao & Co.
at a remuneration of Rs. 1,25,000/- (Rupees One Lakh Twenty Five Thousand Only) per
annum plus applicable taxes and out of pocket expenses at actuals, to conduct the audit of the
cost records of the Company for the financial year ending 31 March, 2024.

I accordance with the provisions of the Section 148 of the Companies Act 2013, read with
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, the remuneration payable to the Cost
Auditors has to be ratified by the shareholders of the Company. Accordingly, consent of the
Members is sought for passing an Ordinary Resolution for ratification of the remuneration
payable to the Cost Auditors for the financial year ending 31 March, 2024.

None of the Directors / Key Managerial Personnel / their relatives is, in any way, concerned
or interested, financially or otherwise, in this resolution.

Your Board recommends the resolution set forth in the item no. 5 of the Notice for approval

of the Members
For and on” brhalf of the Board
QUALITY CARE INDIA LIMITED
T S
A
Place: Hyderabad, India Mr. J. :lfgdl:/k-p Singh
Date: 23.08.2023 Director & Group (“ief Executive Officer

DIN: 02705303
Email: jasdeep.singh@carekospitals.com
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To

The Members,

On behalf of Board, We take pleasure in presenting the 31% (Thirty First) Annual Report on the business
and operations of your Company along with the standalone & consolidated summary financial statements
for the year ended 31 March, 2023.

1. FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS: [Rule 8(5)(i) of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)
. (Rs. In millions)
i OCIL(CARE standalone) QCIL (CARE Consol)
| Particulars |
31-Mar-23 | 31-Mar-22|  31-Mar.23 | 31-Mar-22 |
Net Sales /Income from: l ' ' '

Business Operations 1040138 1022307 16,043.95 | 13,181.61 |
| Other Income ' 99.9] | 59.64 | 191.98 | 98.56 |
Total Income 1050129 1028271 1623593 1328007
| Less: Expenditure 831507 806983  12.86644 10,564.41

EBITDA _ 2,186.22 2212.88 | 3,369.49 | 2,715.76

Less: Finance costs ' 695.66 | 336.02 | 886.27 | 421.02 |
' Less Depreciation ' 651.15 | 715.03 | 988.05 | 905.27
 Profit before exceptional | 83941 1,161.83 | 1,495.17 | 1,389.47 |

items and tax

Exceptional items ' 0.00 | 0.00 | 4141 | 0|
 Profit before share of loss | 83941 |  1,161.83 | 1,453.76 | 1,380.47 |

of a Joint venture
' Share of loss of a Joint ' 0.00 | 0.00 | 000 0.01 |
| Venture | | |
| Profit before tax 83941 1,161.83 1,453.76 1,389.46 |
Less: Current Income Tax | 121.50 | 245.00 | 278.19 | 302.84

MAT Credit _' ' (74.62) | - (74.62) | =
' Less: Income tax relatingto | 157.63 | 22,15 | 166.37 | 21.51 |

carlier periods !
| Less: Deferred Tax Expense | 26177 (160.57) 100.66 | (163.80) |

/(Benefir) | _ | |
| Profit/(loss) for the year 373.13 1055.25 983.16 1,228.91

Other (_Z‘omprehensive ' - ' - - '

Income:

1. Items that will not be
reclassified subsequently io
profit or loss
a.  Gain/(loss) on (6.06) (4.44) 3.09 (7.08)
remeasurement of
post-employment
_ benefit obligations | . ) | _ . .
2. Income tax relating to 2.12 1.52 (0.19) 2,19
items that will not be
reclassified to profit or loss
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Total Comprehensive 369.19 1052.33 986.07 1,224.02
_Income/(Loss) for the vear

Profit for the year

attributable to:

Owners of the parent 850.54 1,157.87
| Non-controlling interests | 0.00 | 0.00 | 132.62 | 71.04 |

Other comprehensive loss

attributable to:

Owners of the parent 2.75 (4.17)

Non-controlling interests | 0.00 0.00 | 0.15 | 0.72) |

Total comprehensive

income attributable to:

Owners of the parent 853.30 1,153.70
| Non-controlling interests ] 0.00 | 0.00 | 132.77 | 70.32
| Eamings per share Basic . 8.99 25.43 20.50 27.90

Earnings per share Diluted 8.99 25.43 . 19.52 27.90

=

2. CHANGE IN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS [Rule 895)(ii) of Companies (Accounts) Rules,

2014]

During the Financial year under review, there was no change in the nature of business of the
Company.

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENT IF ANY AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL
POSITION OF THE COMPANY OCCURRED BETWEEN THE END OF THE
FINANCIAL YEAR TO WHICH THIS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS RELATE AND THE
DATE OF THE REPORT [Section 134 (3) (1)]

a. During the previous year, the Company had raised the Authorised Share Capital from Rs.
79,50,000/- {Rupees Seventy Nine Crores and Fifty Lakhs Only) to Rs. 95,00,00,000/-
(Rupees Ninety Five Crores only) divided into 7,95,00,000 Equity shares of Rs. 10/- each
and 1,55,00,000 Compulsory Convertible Preference Shares of Rs. 10/- each vide Extra
Ordinary General Meeting dated 25.03.2022.

b. During the year under review, the Company allotted 75,45,290 0.001% Compulsory
Convertible Preference Shares (CCPS) of Rs. 10/- each at a price of Rs. 452.30/-
including premium of Rs, 442.30/- per CCPS vide Circular resolution dated 24.06.2022.

¢. During the year under review, the Company allotted 70,27,190 0.001% Compulsory
Convertible Preference Shares (CCPS) of Rs. 10/- each at a price of Rs. 452.30/-
including premium of Rs. 442 30/- per CCPS vide Circular resolution dated 25.07.2022

DIVIDEND [Section 134 3) W)

The Board of Directors of your Company has not recommended any dividend for the Equity
sharcholders for the financial year 2022-23. The cutrent year profits are ploughed back for
€xpansion plans of the Company.

Whereas, the Board has recommended the payment of dividend at the rate of 0.001% Per
Compulsory Convertible Preference share capital of the company for the year ended 31% March
2023 as per the terms of issue of CCPS, to those preference shareholders entitled to receive the
same and whose names appear on the register of members as on the date of Book Closing.
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The provisions of Section 125(2) of the Companies Act, 2013 does not apply as there was no
dividend declared and paid in the previous Financial Year 2022-23.

6. TRANSFER TO RESERVES [Section 134 (3) (j)]

The details of the amount transferred to the reserves and surplus is detailed in Statement of

changes in Equity for the year ended 31 March 2023 and Note No 4.13(b) of the financial
statements enclosed herewith.

7. DETAILS OF SUBSIDIARY/JOINT VENTURES/ASSOCIATE COMPANIES [Rule
8(5)(iv) of Companies Accounts) Rules, 2014]

The Company has Six subsidiaries and one associate company as on 31% March 2023. There has
been no material change in the nature of the business of the subsidiaries.

During the year under review 2022-23 the Company has acquired 2 Companies as its subsidiaries
by acquiring a stake of 95% in Convenient Hospitals Limited (CHL) and 76% in United CIIGMA
Institute of Medical Sciences Private Limited.,

During the current year FY 2023-24, the Company has further acquired 5% stake in Convenient
Hospitals Limited on April 20, 2023, making CHL its Wholly Owned Subsidiary.

During the current year FY 2023-24, the Company has disinvested its 76% stake in Galaxy Care
Multispeciality Hospital Private Limited and it is no longer a subsidiary of the Company w.e.f,
April 27, 2023,

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 139 (3) of the Companies Act 2013, a statement containing
the salient features of the subsidiaries and associates companies in Form No. AOC-1 is attached to
the financial statements of the Company as Annexure- |

8. DETAILS RELATING TO DEPOSITS [Rule 8(5) (v} of Companies Accounts) Rules, 2014]
The Company has not accepted/renewed any deposits during the financial year 2022-23.
Details relating to deposits covered under Chapter V of the act
a.  Accepted during the year; - NIL
- Remained unpaid or unclaimed as at the end of the year; - NIL
¢.  Whether there has been any default in repayment of deposits or payment of interest thereon
during the year and if 80, number of such cases and the tota] amount involved- None
i.  Atthe beginning of the year; - NA
ii.  Maximum during the year; - NA
ili. At the end of the year; - NA

There are no deposits which are not in compliance with the requirements of Chapter V of the Act;
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9. SHARE CAPITAL

The Authorised Share Capital as on 31st March 2023 was Rs. 95,00,00,000/- consisting of
7,95,00,000 equity shares of Rs. 10/- (Rupees Ten Only) each and 1,55,00,000 Compulsorily
Convertible Preference Shares of Rs. 10/~ (Rupees Ten Only) each. The paid-up Equity Share
Capital as on 31st March 2023 was Rs. 41 ,49,68,940/- consisting of 4,14,96,894 equity shares of
Rs. 10/- each and the paid-up preference share capital is as on 31% March 2023 was Rs.
14,57,24,800/- consisting of 1,45,72,480 0.001% Compulsorily Convertible Preference shares of
Rs. 10/- each.

Increase in Authorized Share Capital -

In the Financial Year 2021-22, at the Extra-Ordinary General Meeting held on March 25, 2022, the
Company increased its Authorized share capital from Rs.79,50,00,000/- (Rupees Seventy Nine
Crores and Fifty Lakhs Only) consisting of 7,95,00,000 (Seven Crores and Ninety Five Lakhs
Only) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- (Ten Only) each to Rs. 95,00,00,000/- (Rupees Ninety Five Crores
only) divided into 7,95,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- (Rupees Ten only) each and 1,55,00,000
(One Crore and Fifty Five Lakhs Only) Compulsory Convertible Preference Shares of Rs. 10/-
(Rupees Ten only) each by addition of Rs. 15,50,00,000/- (Rupees Fifteen Crores and Fifty Lakhs
only) divided into 1,55,00,000 (One Crore and Fifty Five Lakhs Only) Compulsory Convertible
Preference Shares of Rs. 10/- (Rupees Ten only)

In the Financial Year 2021-22, the Company has issued 99,50,000 (Ninety Nine Lakh Fifty
Thousand Only) 0.001% Compulsorily Convertible Preference shares (CCPS) of Rs. 10/- each at a
price of Rs. 452.30/- including = premium of Rs. 442.30/- per 0.001% Compulsorily Convertible
Preference shares aggregating to Rs. 4,500,385,000/- (Rupees Four Hundred & Fifty Crores Three
Lakhs and Eighty Five Thousand Only) for cash through private placement to ‘Touch Healthcare
Private Limited’ on 25.03.2022.

During the year under review, the following events had taken place post issuance of the above-
mentioned CCPS —

¢ Allotment of 75,45,290 0.001% Compulsorily Convertible Preference shares of Rs. 10/-
each at a price of Rs. 452.30/- including a premium of Rs, 442.30/- per 0.001% CCPS
aggregating to Rs. 3,41,27,34,667/- to Touch Healthcare Private Limited on June 24,
2022,

¢ Withdrawal and abandonment of 24,04,710 0.001% Compulsorily Convertible Preference
Shares (“CCPS™) of Rs. 10/- each aggregating to Rs. 2,40,47,100 /- out of 99,50,000
0.001% Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares of Rs. 10/~ each offered which were
offered during the year to ‘Touch Healthcare Private Limited’ on July 08, 2022.

e Issuance of 79,54,710 0.001% Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares of Rs. 10/-
each at a price of Rs. 452.30/- including a premium of Rs. 442.30 per 0.001% Compulsory
Convertible Preference Shares (“CCPS™) aggregating to Rs. 3,59,79,15,333/- for cash
through private placement to *“Touch Healthcare Private Limited” on July 08, 2022.

¢ Allotment of 70,27,190 0.001% Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares of Rs. 10/-
each at a price of Rs. 452.30/- including a premium of Rs. 442.30 per 0.001% CCPS
aggregating to Rs. 3,17,83,98,037/- to Touch Healthcare Private Limited on July 25, 2022.
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During the year under review, the Company has not issued shares with differential voting rights.

During the year under review, the company has not undertaken any of the following transactions.

[ Buy Back of Securities | Sweat Equity' ' Bonus Shares | Employees Stock Option
Shares
Nil _ NI TN | Nil i
However during the previous year, the Company vide Special Resolution dated 25.03.2022
discontinued the ESOPs 2013 Scheme and Share Warrants 2016 Scheme and approved payment of
Ex-Gratia to vested holders of Eligible ESOPs holder under ESOPs 2013 Scheme and Share
Warrants 2016 Scheme respectively,

10. DIRECTORS RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT {Section 134(3) (¢) and 134(5)]:

In accordance with the provisions of 134(3)(c) and Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, the
Board of Directors, to the best of their knowledge and ability, confirms that -

i. In the preparation of the annual accounts for the Financial year ending 31% March,
2023, the applicable accounting standards have been followed and there are no material
departures

1. They have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the profits of the Company for that
pertod;

ili.  They have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act and for safeguarding the assets of
the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

iv. They have prepared the annual accounts on a “Going Concern” basis;

v.  They have laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and
such internal financial controls are adequate and operating effectively;

Vi, They have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all
applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

11. DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL [Rule 8(5)(iii) of Companies
Accounts) Rules, 2014):

DIRECTORS;:

In accordance with the provisions of Articles of Association Mr. Arnunprakash Srinivasarao Korati
(DIN: 00027783) and Mr. Ankur Nand Thadani (DIN: 03566737), Directors are liable to retire by
rotation and being eligible offers themselves for reappointment.

During the year under review, there have been no changes on the Board of the Company.
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12,

13.

14.

15.

KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL,’s (KMP’s):

During the year under review and in accordance with the provisions of Section 203 of the
Companies Act, 2013, no changes in the Key Managerial personnel’s have taken place.

The performance of KMP is evaluated annually by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee

(NRC).

The details pertaining to the Board Committees viz Composition, meeting dates and the Policy (if
any) are covered separately in the Corporate Governance Report attached to this report as
Annexure V.,

NUMBER OF BOARD MEETINGS: [Section 134(3)(b)]:

A total of Five (5) Board Meetings were held during the Financial Year 2022-23. The details of the
said meetings of the Board are placed in the Corporate Governance report, which is forming part
of this report.

STATEMENT ON DECLARATION GIVEN BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS UNDER
SECTION 149(6) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 [ Section 134 (3) (d) & 149(6)]

Your Company has received declarations from all independent directors of the Company
confirming that they meet with the criteria of independence as prescribed under sub-section 6 of
section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013. The independent Directors have duly complied with the
code for Independent Directors prescribed in Schedule TV to the Act.

In the opinion of the Board, all Independent Directors possess requisite qualifications, experience,
expertise and hold high standards of integrity required to discharge their duties with an objective
independent judgment and without any external influence.

Companies (Accounts) Rule, 2014].

The Company has 2 Independent Directors, Mr. Kewal Kundanlal Handa and Ms. Ekta Bahl and in
the opinion of the Board, both of them possess requisite expertise, integrity and experience
(including proficiency).

COMPANY’S POLICY ON DIRECTOR’S APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION
INCLUDING CRITERIA FOR DETERMINING QUALIFICATIONS, POSITIVE
ATTRIBUTES, INDEPENDENCE OF A DIRECTOR AND OTHER MATTERS UNDER
SECTION 178 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 [Section 134(3)(¢) and 178 3)]

Your Company has a duly constituted Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC) which is
a sub-committee of the Board. Your company has put in place the relevant framework and a
Nomination & Remuneration Policy as required under section 178 of the Companies Act 2013,
The NRC policy is given in the Corporate Governance report which is annexed to this report.
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16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

MECHANISM FOR EVALUATION OF BOARD {Rule 8(4) of Companies Accounts) Rules,
2014):

In terms of the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rules issued there under, formal
Annual Performance process has been carried out for evaluating the performance of the Board, the
Committees of the Board and Individual Directors

A note on performance evaluation was duly circulated and placed before the Board.

Detailed information on the Directors is provided in the Corporate Governance Report.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY, STATEMENT UNDER SECTION 135[Rule
8(1) of Companies (CSR Policy) Rules, 2614 read with Rule 9 of Companies (Accounts) Rule,
2014:;

The Company was required to spend CSR amount in FY 2022-23 and the Company is committed
to taking up Corporate Social Responsibility activities. The Company constituted Corporate Social
Responsibility Committee as required under the provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act,
2013. The Corporate Social Responsibility Report including brief details of CSR Policy is
enclosed to this Board report as Annexure 11,

PARTICULARS OF LOANS GIVEN, INVESTMENTS MADE AND GUARANTEES
GIVEN AND SECURITIES PROVIDED UNDER SECTION 186[Section 134(3)(g)]:

Particulars of loans given, investments made, guarantees given and securities provided along with
the purpose for which the loan or guarantee or security is proposed 1o be utilized by the recipient
are provided in the standalone financial statements. Please refer to the standalone financials.

PARTICULARS OF CONT RACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS MADE WITH RELATED
PARTIES PURSUANT TO SECTION 188 OF THE COMPANIES ACT 2013 [Section
134(3)(h)].:

During the year under review, the company entered only into related party transactions which were
in the ordinary course of business

The particulars of contracts or arrangements with related parties referred to in Section 188(1) of
the Act, as prescribed in Form AOC-2 of the rules prescribed under Chapter IX relating to The
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is enclosed to this report as Annexure I1,

COPY OF ANNUAL RETURN [Section 134(3)(a)]

Pursnant to Section 92(3) read with Section 134(3)(a) of the Act, the Annual Retum of the
Company in Form MGT-7 for FY 2022-23, is available on the Company’s website at
htlps:f/www.carehosnitals.comf'annual-reports

RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY [Section 134(3)(n)]

The Company has adequate internal financial control system in place which operates effectively,
Risks are re-viewed from time to time and controls are put in place with specific responsibility of
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22,

23.

the concerned officer of the company. According to the Directors of your Company, elements of
risks that threaten the existence of your Company are very minimal.

EMPLOYEE STOCK OPTION SCHEME 2013 AND SHARE WARRANT SCHEME -2016
[Rule 12(9) of Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Rule, 2014]

During the previous year, the Company has discontinued the ‘Employee Stock Option Sheme-
2013’ and ‘Share Warrant Scheme-2016" and approved payment of Ex-Gratia to vested holders
of Eligible ESOPs holder under ESOPs 2013 Scheme and Share Warrants 2016 Scheme
respectively by passing Special Resolution in the Extra Ordinary General Meeting held on
25.03.2022

EXPLANATIONS OR COMMENTS BY THE BOARD ON EVERY QUALIFICATION,
RESERVATION OR ADVERSE REMARK OR DISCLAIMER MADE. [SECTION 134(3)(F)] :

23.1. STATUTORY AUDITORS

Members at their Twenty Eighth Annual General Meeting held on 24™ September, 2020
appoinied M/s. Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP (FRN: 012754N/N500016), as
Statutory Auditors of the Company for a period of 5 years till the conclusion of the Annual
General Meeting to be held in 2025.

REPLY TO COMMENTS IN AUDITORS’ REPORT

As required to be stated under section 134 (3)(f) of the Act, there are no qualifications,
reservations or adverse remarks made by the Auditors in their independent auditor’s report except
as provided hereunder. The auditors’ report and notes to accounts forming part of financial
statements are self-explanatory and do not call for further explanation.

Auditor’s remarks —
Explanation for the Auditors’ remarks under the head “Disclaimer of opinion”

“The audit reports on the system of internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements for the following subsidiaries of the Holding Company: United Ciigma Institute of
Medical Sciences Private Limited, Ciigma Institute of Medical Sciences Private Limited, United
Ciigma Hospitals Healthcare Private Limited, Convenient Hospitals Limited and Heart Care
Institute And Research Centre (Indore) Pvt Ltd for the year ended March 31, 2023 contained a
disclaimer of opinion as detailed in Note 4.48 of the consolidated financial statements and,
consequently, we are unable to obiain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis for
our opinion on whether the Group had adequate internal financial controls with reference to
consolidated financial statements and whether such internal financial controls were operating
effectively as at March 31, 2023 based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria
established by the Group considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note issued by the ICAL”

However, after the operations of the Company during the year under review 2022-23 the
Company has acquired 2 Companies as its subsidiaries by acquiring a stake of 95% in Convenient
Hospitals Limited (CHL) and 76% in United CIIGMA Institute of Medical Sciences Private
Limited & during the current year FY 2023-24, the Company has further acquired 5% stake in
Convenient Hospitals Limited on April 20, 2023, making CHL its Wholly Owned Subsidiary and
the affairs of both the Companies and their respective subsidiaries was taken over by the
Management. The Investment in this Company was made after conducting due diligence and with
necessary suggestions and recommendations,
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The earlier management was involved in the day to day operations of these Companies including
finance function which was responsible for the year under review for ensuring that there were all
internal controls commensurating with the size and operations of the Company. The statutory
Auditors of the Company has expressed that - we are unable to obtain sufficient audit evidence to
determine if the Company has established adequate internal financial control with reference to
financial statements and whether such internal financial controls were operating effectively as at
March 31, 2023,

Since these Companies (CHL & CIIGMA & their subsidiaries) were recently acquired during the
year under review, the Management has taken complete control over the accounting and financial
functions and it is in the process of establishing and implementing internal controls and Standard
Operating Processes in these companies in order to ensure that the same are in line with the
Holding Company (QCIL).

The Report given by the Auditors on the financial statements of the Company is part of the
Annual Report

23.2. SECRETARIAL AUDIT

The Board has appointed M/s RVR & Associates, Practicing Company Secretaries for conducting
the Secretarial Audit of the Company for the Financial year 2022-23 in accordance with the
provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and The Companies {Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014,

There are no qualifications, reservations or adverse remarks in the Secretarial Audit Report for the
Financial Year 2022-23. The Secretarial Auditor’s report is annexed as Annexure IV and is a part
of this report,

23.3. COST AUDIT

Pursuant to Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013, Company has appointed M/s. Nageswara
Rao & Co, Cost Accountants as the Cost auditors for the Company for conducting the cost audit
for the Financial Year 2022-23.

The remuneration of the Cost Auditor as recommended by the Audit Committee and approved by
the Board of Directors is required to be ratified subsequently by the Shareholders. Hence the
resolution at Item no. 4 of the Notice of the Annual General Meeting (AGM) is recommended by
the Board for members approval.

DISCLOSURE, AS TO WHETHER MAINTENANCE OF COST RECORDS [RULE
8(5)(ix) of Companies (Accounts) Rule, 2014].

In accordance with the provisions of Section 148(1) of the Act, read with the Companies (Cost
Records and Audit) Rules, 2014, the Company has maintained cost records.
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23.4. INTERNAL AUDIT {RULE 8(5)(viii) of Companies (Accounts) Rule, 2014].

24.

25.

26.

270

The internal audit function is adequately resourced commensurate with the operations of the
Company. The provisions of section 138 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 13 of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 regarding appointment of internal auditor are applicable to the
Company and as per the provisions the Board has appointed M/s. EY LLP, Chartered Accountants
as Internal Auditors of the Company for conducting the internal audit for the financial year 2022-
23.

DETAILS IN RESPECT OF FRAUDS REPORTED BY AUDITORS UNDER SUB-
SECTION (12) OF SECTION 143 OTHER THAN THOSE WHICH ARE REPORTABLE
TO THE CENTRAL GOVERNMENT [Section 134(3)(ca)];

During the year under review, the statutory auditors have not reported any instances of fraud by its
officers or employees against the Company to the Audit Committee, the details of which would
need to be mentioned in the Board’s report as required under section 143(12) of the Companies
Act, 2013.

ADEQUACY OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS WITH REFERENCE TO THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [Rule (5)(vii) of Companies (Accounts) Rule, 2014]

The Company has well established policies and procedures for internal financial controls
commensurate with its size and operations to safeguard and ensure prevention or timely detection
of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets. All the transactions are
properly authorized, recorded and reported to the Management, The Company is following
generally accepted accounting principles and Ind Accounting Standards for properly maintaining
the books of accounts and reporting financial statements.

The Company continues to ensure proper and adequate systems and procedures commensurate
with its size and nature of its business.

VIGIL MECHANISM |[Rule 7 of Companies (Meeting of Board and its Powers) Rule, 2014]

Pursuant to section 177 (9) of Companies Act, 2013, the company formulated Whistle Blower
Policy.

The Whistle Blower Policy/ Vigil Mechanism provides a mechanism for the director/employee to
report violations without fear of victimisation of any unethical behaviour, suspected or actual fraud
etc. which are detrimental to the organisation’s interest. The mechanism protects whistle blower
from any kind of discrimination, harassment, victimisation or any other unfair employment
practice,

The Directors and employees in appropriate or exceptional cases will have direct access to the
Chairman of the Audit Committee

SECRETARIAL STANDARDS:

The Company has complied with the applicable secretarial standards issued by the Institute of
Company Secretaries of India on Board Meetings and General Meetings respectively.
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28.

29.

30.

31.

DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE
REGULATORS OR COURTS OR TRIBUNALS IMPACTING THE GOING CONCERN
STATUS AND COMPANY’S OPERATIONS IN FUTURE [Rule 8(5)(vii) of Companies
(Accounts) Rule, 2014]

There are no significant and material orders passed by the regulators or courts or tribunals
impacting the going concern status and company’s operations in future.

THE DETAILS OF APPLICATION MADE OR ANY PROCEEDING PENDING UNDER
THE INSOLVENCY AND BANKRUPTCY CODE, 2016 DURING THE YEAR
ALONGWITH THEIR STATUS AS AT THE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR [Rule
8(5)(xi) of Companies (Accounts) Rule, 2014).

The Company has one pending proceeding against it under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code,
2016 which was filed by Soniks Consultancy Services Private Limited alleging non-payment of
un-entitlement claim for incomplete services provided by them. The proceedings of the case are
pending for adjudication.

INFORMATION REQUIRED ‘UNDER SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT
WORKPLACE (PREVENTION, PROHIBITION & REDRESSA) ACT, 2013 AND THE
RULES MADE THEREUNDER [Rule 8(5)(x) of Companies (Accounts) Rule, 2014].

The Company has adopted a policy with the name “Policy on Prevention, Prohibition and
Redressal of Sexual Harassment”. The policy is applicable to all the employees of the
organization, which includes corporate office, Units etc.

An Internal Committee has also been set up to redress complaints received on sexual harassment
as required under the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition &
Redressal) Act, 2013.

Pursuant to the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and
Redressal) Act, 2013 and Rules made thereunder the information required to be disclosed under
the provisions of the said Act are as follows:

'S.No | Particulars
(8) | number of complaints received during FY 2022-23 - 14
(b) | number of complaints disposed of during the FY 2022-23 ' 14
(c) | number of cases pendil_lg for more than ninefy days | 0

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN
EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO [Section 134(3)(m)] with Rule 8(3) of Companies
(Accounts) Rule, 2014].

The particulars relating to Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption, Foreign Exchange
Earnings and Outgo are as follows:
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A. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY:
1. The steps taken or impact on

conservation of energy.

2. The steps taken by the Company for

utilizing alternate sources of energy

3. The Capital investment on energy

conservation equipment’s

B. TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION:
1. The Efforts made towards
technology absorption

2. The Benefits derived like product
improvement, cost reduction, product

development or import substitution

A

HOSPITALS

The company is making efforts to conserve energy
through periodic monitoring and analysis of energy
consumption.

The Company has taken appropriate steps to reduce
the consumption through timely
maintenance/installation/upgradation of all the energy
consuming areas/equipment,

The company has successfully implemented several
energy conservation measures and is also working on
renewable energy options like solar energy where, an
approximate of 1.6 million units is being generated
via solar PV annually,

Heat pumps where the conservation initiatives has
resulted in migration of traditional hot water
generators using diesel fuel / conventional Geysers to
Heat pump technology thus saving fossil fuel and hot
water generation cost.

Energy efficient air conditioning solutions like
chillers, pumps and other associated measures have
been implemented to optimize the energy savings and
improve the patient service along with the ambience.

All hospitals units have upgraded to LED lightings
from conventional lighting systems.

As part of our water conservation efforts we have
upgraded and refurbished the STP & RO systems
across the group.

All efforts have been taken in order to maintain the
equipment in optimum working condition to increase
the life span and to decrease the energy consumption
without compromising the safety and comfort of
patients and customers.

The company does not have in-house Research &
Development department, However, the company
continuously makes efforts towards sourcing medical
& other equipment from vendors who adopt the latest
state of art technology in their products/services.

This endeavor ensures that the company always
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3. Details of technology imported benefits in terms of cost reduction and improving '
during the past 3 years cHicicncies

' 4.The expenditure incurred on | Further no technology was imported by the Company

Research and Development during the year under review.

' C. FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUT GO

' Foragn Exchangg earned in terms of |

INR 61,07,468/-
actual inflows
' Fo?cign ExcHange outgo in terms of |  INR 1,05,19,183/-

actual outflows

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS:

Your Directors take this opportunity to thank the customers, shareholders, suppliers, bankers,
business partners/associates, financial institutions and Central and State Governments for their
consistent support and encouragement to the Company. The Board places on record its deep
appreciation to all employees for their hard work, dedication and commitment. The enthusiasm and
unstinting efforts of the employees have enabled the Company to remain an industry leader,

For and on behalf of the

e 3 @T.e ,!}a’.
| [
Mw imiliane-Cofella Mr. Jasgeep Singh -g'_lHyderabad 3
Director Director oup CEO "\ 7o~ &
DIN: 08729468 DIN: 02705303 o Y
Date: 23.08.2023 Date: 23.08.2023
Place: Dubai, UAE Place: Hyderabad, India
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ANNEXURE 1
Form AOC-1
(Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 read with rule 5 of Companies (Accounts) Rules,
2014)

Statement containing salient features of the financial

ventures

Part “A”: Subsidiaries

{Information in respect of each subsidiary to be presented with amounts in Rs.)

Particulars

' Name of the

subsidiary

| Reporting period

for the subsidiary
concerned, if
different from the
holding company’s

reporting period

' Reporting currency |

and Exchange rate
as on the last date
of the relevant
Financial year in
the case of foreign
subsidiaries

| Share capital

| Reserves & surpius |

' Total assets

| Total Liabilities
' Investments

" Tumnover

| Profit before

taxation

| Ganga Care
Hospital
Limited

| 01/04/2022
To
31/03/2023

INR (Mn)

118.63
357.04

660.57
660.57
598
382.79
41.58

Ramkrishna
Care Medical
Sciences
Private
Limited

| 01/04/2022

To
31/03/2023

INR (Mn)

14.98
954.16

1,854.74

1,854.74

2,501.15
357.55

| Galaxy Care

Details

| Quality Care

Multispeciality | Jharsuguda
Hospital Private | Private

Limited* Limited
01/04/2022 | 01/04/2022 |
To To
31/03/2023 31/03/2023
INR (Mn) INR (Mn)
0.21 0.10
173.27 (0.11)
203.81 0.04
293.81 0.04
381.13 0
(2.36) 0

| Convenient

Hospitals
Limited

(1/04/2022
To
31/03/2023

| INR (Mn)

94.49
739.72

1,190.97
1,190.97
231.10
1,413.08
154.95

statement of subsidiavies/associate companies/joint

| United

CIIGMA
Institute of
Medical
Sciences
Private
Limited

| 01/04/2022

To
31/03/2023

" INR (Mn)

513.67
1,419.74

3,065.43
3,065.43
486.26
1,237.04
90.23
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11. | Provision for 12.73 90.33 (0.69) ' 0 50.75 18.23
taxation
|12, | Profit after taxation | 2885 | 26722 (1.67) ' 0 C10420 | 72.00
13. | Proposed Dividend | 0 | 0 ' 0 | 0 ' 0 ' 0
14. | %ofshareholding | 74.13 | 5633 | 76 ' 100 | 95 76

' *Galaxy Care is no Ibnger a subsidfam: of the Company w.e.f. April 27, 2023.

Sl No. Particulars Details
1. | Name of the subsidiary ' Heartcare Institute | CIIGMA Institute of | United CIIGMA
and Research Medical Sciences Hospitals Healthcare
Centre (Indore) Private Limited Private Limited
Pvt. Ltd.
2. ' Reporting period for the subsidiary | 01/04/2022 ' 01/04/2022 ' 01/04/2022
concerned, if different from the holding
company’s reporting period To To To
31/03/2023 31/03/2023 31/03/2023
3. | Reporting currency and Exchange rate ' INR (Mn) ' INR (Mn) ' INR (Mn)
as on the last date of the relevant
Financial year in the case of foreign
subsidiaries
| 4. Share capital ' 125.10 ' 10.00 133.60
s, | Reserves & surplus | 259.32 ' 2.83 ' (127.02)
6. ' Total assets | 959.89 ' 52.88 ' 552.79
7. ' Total Liabilities ' 959.89 ' 52.88 ' 552.79
8. ' Investments ' 0 ' 0 | 0
9, | Turnover | 388.13 | 63.92 ' 70.56
10. | Profit before taxation ' (3.29) [ 6.01 ' (42.08)
| 11. | Provision for taxation ' 0.19 ' 9.90 | 1.37
12. | Profit after taxation ' (3.48) ' (3.89) ' (43.45)
13. | Proposed Dividend | 0 0 ' 0
14. | % of shareholding ' 95 ' 76 ' 76

Notes: The following information shall be furnished at the end of the statement:

1. Names of subsidiaries which are yet to commence operations - Quality Care Jharsuguda Private Limited
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- Names of subsidiaries which have been liquidated or soid during the year — None. During the current year FY
2023-24, the Company has disinvested its 76% stake in Galaxy Care Multispeciality Hospital Private Limited
and it is no longer a subsidiary of the Company w.e.f. April 27, 2023.

Part “B”: Associates and Joint Ventures

Statement pursuant to Section 129 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 related to Associate Companies and
Joint Ventures

__Name of associates/Joint Ventures ) Quality Care Health Services India Private Limited |
1. Latest audited Balance Sheet Date . 31-March-2023

2. Shares of Associate/Joint Ventures held by the | 5000
_ company on the year end |
Amount of Investment in Associates/Joint Venture 5,000

'_]g(tend of Holding% 50%

3. Description of how there is significant influence | Control over composition of Board

4. Reason why the assoéiatefjoint venture is not [ Operations of the company not yet started
consolidated

5. Net worth attributable to shareholding as per ' Not Applicable
latest andited Balance Sheet

6. Profit/Loss for the year | Not Applicable

i. Considered in Consolidation

if. Not Considered in Consolidation NIL

1. Names of associates or joint ventures which are yet to commence operations.- Quality Care Health Services
India Private Limited
2. Names of associates or joint ventures which have been liquidated or sold during the year.- None
Note: This Form is to be certified in the same manner in which the Balance Sheet is to be certified
For and on behalf ¢ Board

: )l l |

F =

Mr. Massimiliano Colella M sHeep Singh
Director Director & Group CEO
DIN: 08729468 DIN: 02705303
Date: 23.08.2023 Date: 23.08.2023
Place: Dubai, UAE Place: Hyderabad, India
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ANNEXURE I

Form No. AOC-2

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014)
Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related
parties referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arm’s

length transactions under third proviso thereto

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis:

There are no contracts or arrangements or transactions which were not on arm’s length basis

2. Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm’s length basis:

S.No | D;scription Details of the Contracts
i ' Name(s) of the related party | Gaga Care HcEpita_] | Ramkrishna Care Medical |
and nature of relationships | Limited - Subsidiary | Sciences Private Limited -
Company Subsidiary Company
i | Nature of | Sale of Goods ' Sale of Goods & Purchase of |
contracts/arrangements/tran Goods
sactions
i | Duration of the contracts/ | One-time transaction | On-going transaction
arrangements/transactions
v ' Salient terms of the | Sale of Equipment’s [ a) Sale of Goods (drugs and
contracts or arrangements consumables) &
or transactions including b) Purchase of goods (drugs
the value, if any and consumables)
v ' Date(s) ofTaﬁproval by the ' None, Approved by audit . None, Approved by audit
Board, if any committee on 27/06/2023 committee on 27/06/2023
vi | Amount paid as advances, | Nil R
| if any

Mr. Muassimittano Colella Mr.{
Director Director &
DIN: 08729468 DIN: 02705303
Date: 23.08.2023 Date; 23.08.2023
Place: Dubai, UAE Place: Hyderabad, India
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ANNEXURE III

ANNUAL REPORT ON CSR ACTIVITIES TO BE
INCLUDED IN THE BOARD’S REPORT FOR
FINANCIALYEAR 2022-23

Brief outline on CSR Policy of the Company: Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) is the
Company’s commitment to its stakeholders to conduct business in an economically, socially and
environmentally sustainable manner that is transparent and ethical.

The Company is committed to undertake CSR activities in accordance with the provisions of Section
135 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with relevant Rules.

The Company believes that corporate development has to be inclusive and every corporate has to be
responsible for the development of a just and humane society that can build a national enterprise. The
Company commits itself to contribute to the society in ways possible for the organization

AIMS & OBJECTIVES

To develop a long-term vision and strategy for Company’s CSR objectives (Long term and otherwise)
Establish relevance of potential CSR activities to Company’s core business and create an overview of
activities to be undertaken, in line with Schedule VII of the Companies Act, 2013.

Company shall promote projects that are ;

(a) Sustainable and create an impact both long term and otherwise;
{b) Have specific and measurable goals in alignment with Company’s philosophy;
(¢) Address the most deserving cause or beneficiaries.

To establish process and mechanism for the implementation and monitoring of the CSR activities for
Company.

2. Composition of CSR Committee;

SI. No. | Name of Director | Designation | Number of meetings  Number of meetings of
of CSR Committee CSR Committee attended

Nature

of Directorship . .
held during the year | during the year

1 Mr, Kewal Kundanlal |Chairman/Non- I 1
llanda Executive

Independent

[ lirector

2 ‘J; Ekta Bahl .'MemberfN on- 1 1 | 1
Executive
Independent ‘

Director
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6.
7.

[ 3 . Aninprakash Member/Non- 1 ' 1
Srinivasarao Korati  [Executive Director
I

| l

Provide the web-link where Composition of CSR commiitee, CSR Policy and CSR projects approved
by the board are disclosed on the website of the company. - https://www.carehospitals.com/policies

Provide the details of Impact assessment of CSR. projects cartied out in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of

rule 8 of the Companies (Corporate Social responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, if applicable (attach the
report). — Not applicable

Details of the amount available for set off in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 7 of the Companies

(Corporate Social responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and amount required for set off for the financial
year, if any -

SL Financial Year Amount available for set-off from| Amount required to be set- off
Ne. preceding financial years (in for the financial year, if any (in
Rs.) Rs.)
r FY 2021-22 025 0.25 E
2
1
'!'I'l_ I'&1 0.25 0.25

Average net profit of the company as per section 135(5) — Rs. 48,69,41,770/-
(a) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section 135(5) - Rs, 97,38,835/-

(b) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous
financial years. — Nil

(c) Amount required to be set off for the financial year, if any — Rs, 0.25/-

(d) Total CSR obligation for the financial year (7a+7b-7¢) — Rs. 97,38,834.75/-

8. (a) CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial year:

Total Amount Amount Unspent (in Rs.)
fi . .
SPent . Or Total Amount transferred to Amount transferred to any fund
Financial Year Unspent CSR Account as per section | specified under Schedule VII as per second
(in Rs.) 135(6). proviso to section 135(5).
Amount. | Date of transfer. ‘Name of Amount. | Date of transfer.
the Fund
'Rs.97,73,743~-  NA | NA T R ST . Nil
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(b) Details of CSR amount spent against ongoing projects for the financial year: Nil

@

E

International 1I-Zradicating | Yes ':I'_eEngana ' Me@zhal, 192,73,74_3& [

Society for  hunger, | Malkagiri
krishna poverty and
Consciousness yyalnutrition
(ISKCON) & Promoting
education and
skill
development

No

International CSR00005241

Society for
IK.rishna
[Consciousne
53]
(ISKCON)
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S1.| Name [Ttem from| Local | Location of Project Amount Amoun| Amount | Mode of Mode of
No| of the | the list of| area |the project. | duratio|allocate| t spent transferre Implementati| Implementation
Projec| activities |(Yes/No n dfor | in the dte | on- Direct - Through
t. in ). the |current Unspent | (Yes/No). Implementing |
Schedule project |financi| CSR Agency
VII to the . (in Rs.).|al Year| Account
Act. Stat District (inRs.)| for the Namipi CSR
e, - ¢ Registratio
project as mber
Section
135(6) (in
Rs.).
: |
2.
3.
Total |
(¢) Details of CSR amount spent against other than ongoing projects for the financial year:

SI.|Name of [Ttem from| Local | Location of the | Amount | Mode | Mode of implementation -
No. the Project . . Through  implementing
the list of area | project. spent for of agency.

activities in | (Yes/ the impleme
schedule No). project ntation
VII to State, District, @Rs). | Direct | Name. CSR
the Act. I 7 | (Yes/No) | registration
number.
1 -"'I-'ela-ng;na 'I‘romoﬁg 'Yes_'_l.-elangana -H_yderabad ‘S,OEJW- No_'luelangana T CSR00024103
Sikh Society education and Sikh Society
skill
development
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| TOTAL 97,73,743/- |
(dy Amount spent in Administrative QOverheads- Nil

{e) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable — Not applicable
H Total amount spent for the Financial Year (8b+8c+8d+8e) — Rs. 97,73,743/-

{2) Excess amount for set off, if any — Rs.0.25/-

" SL.No. | ~ Particular | Amount (in Rs.)
' (i) | Two percent of average net profit of the company as per Rs. 97,38,835/- |
section 135(5)
(1) Total amount spent for the Financial Year | Rs. 97,73,743/-
W) Excess amount spent for the financial year [(ii)-(1)] Rs. 34908~ |
(iv) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or Nil _!
[ v) Amount available for set off in succeeding financial years | Rs. 34,908.25/- i|

9. (a) Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years: Nil

| S | Preceding | Amount | Amount | Amount transferred to any fund | Amount
No transferred spent in specified under Schedule as per | remaining
A Financial | te the section 135(6), if to
Unspent CSR | Reporting ' Nam | 1 | be spent
Year. Account Financial e of in
under section| Year (in the succeeding
135  (6) (in| Rs.). Fun . financial
Rs.) d Amount (in = Date of ﬂears, (in
Rs). transfer. s}
L. | - | [ | T
2.1 1T o
R ——— =

(b) Details of CSR amount spent in the financial year for ongoing projects of the preceding financial year(s):
Nit

(D TR - T Y < I C ) I Y - R A () S R ¢ ®) )

A 1 ! i l
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SL | Project Name | Financial | Project Total Amount | Cumulative = Status of
No. of the duratio amoun  spent on amount the project

ID, Year 1. t the spent -
Project. in which
the allocate | project at the end
d for n the of reporting
project the Financial Completed
was project  reporting
Year. (in Rs.) /Onsoins
commenced (inRs.). Financial solng.
Year
(in Rs).
| TOTAL |

10. In case of creation or acquisition of capital asset, furnish the details relating to the asset 50 created or
acquired through CSR spent in the financial year - NA

(asset-wise details).

(a) Date of creation or acquisition of the capital asset(s).

(b) Amount of CSR spent for creation or acquisition of capital asset.

(¢} Details of the entity or public authority or beneficiary under whose name such capital asset is
registered, their address etc.

(d) Provide details of the capital asset(s) created or acquired (including complete address and
location of the capital asset).

11. Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two per cent of the average net
profit as per section 135(5). - NA

£ =

|'I | /

| _."I I .
]li;{cr - N

L < M
M. Jasfleep Singh . _ ExtaBabl
(Director & Group CEO) | (Chairman CSR Committee)

(DIN: 02705303) (DIN: 01437166)
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Annexure IV
Secretarial Audit Report
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company secretaries

Form No. MR-3
[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No.g of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31* MARCH, 2023
To,
The Members,
Quality Care India Limited
Hyderabad

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions
and the adherence to good corporate practices by M/s Quality Care India Limited (hersinafter
calied “the Company”). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a
reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing
our opinion thereon,

Based on our verification of the Company's books, papers, minute books, forms and returns
filed and other records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the
Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial
gudit, we hereby report that in our opinion, the Company has, during the audit period covering
the financial year ended on 31* March, 2023 complied with the statutory provisions listed
hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance mechanism
in place fo the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records
maintained by M/s Quality Care India Limited and relied on the information, explanations
provided by the management and its officers for the financial year ended on 31" March, 2023
according to the provisions of:

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act’) and the rules made there under;

(i) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 ('SCRA') and the rules made thereunder; -
Mot Applicable,

(i} The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder:

() The Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1885 and the rules and regulations made
thereunder to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment. and External Commercial
Borrowings -.;

(v) The Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Boarg of
India Act, 1992 ('SEBI Act’) viz.:- AN £a
(a) The Securties and Exchange Board of India {Substantial Acquisition of I_'-""

Takeovers) Regulations, 2011; - Not Applicable Pt
Door No. 1-10-18, Flat # G1-1st Roor, Lakshmi Sri Park View Apartments,
Near Ashok Nagar Circle, Ashok Nagar, Hyderabad - 500020 Telangana, india

A +91 40-2761 2478 O +01 98491 27199
=1 ryrassnciatesmomall. com @8 www, Csvrassoceales com




(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading)
Regulations, 1992/ SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015, - Not
Applicable

{c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (lssue of Capital and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2018, - Not Applicable

(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits and
Sweat Equity) Regulations, 2021; - Not Applicable

(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non- Convertible
Securities) Regulations, 2021; — Not Applicable.

{fi The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share
Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with
client, - Mot Applicable

(g} The Secuwrities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations,
2021; - Not Applicable and

(h} The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations,
2018; - Not Applicable

{vi) (i} The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 - Not Applicable.

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

{i} Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India
(i} The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with Stock Exchange - Not
Applicable.

During the pericd under review, the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act,
Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above.

We further report that

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive
Directors, Mon-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. Mo changes in the
composition of the Board of Directors have taken place during the period under review.

a. Adequate notice was given to all directors 1o schedule the Board' Committee Meetings,
agenda and defailed notes on agenda were sent as per the provisions of the Act, and a
system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the
agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the mesting.

b. During the period under review, resolutions were carried through majority. As confirmed by
the Management, there were no dissenting views expressed by any of the members on
any business transacted at the meeting held during the period under review.

c. Based on the information, documents provided and the representations ma l:ﬁr the
Company, its officers during our audit process and also on review of thps pegnce of
provisions of the applicable Acts, in our opinion, there are adequaie SvsTemmal ol




processes exisis in the Company to commensurale with the size and operations of the
Company, to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and
guidelines.

d. The compliance by the Company of the applicable financial laws like direct and indirect tax
laws and maintenance of financial records and books of accounts has not been reviewed
by us since the same have been subject to review by statutery audtors and other
professionals.

We further report that during the audit pericd, the Company had following events which had
bearing on the Company's affairs in pursuance of the above referred laws, rules, regulations
and guidelines;

A. Other major events:

1. The Company has Altered Clause V i.e,, Capital Clause of Memorandum of Association
{MOA) in accordance with the provisions of Companies Act, 2013,

2. The Company has Altered its Articles of Association (AOA) for insertion of Article 5A &
Dematerialization of Securities and replacement of existing of Article 14.1 i.e., Registers
in accordance with the provisions of Companies Act, 2013,

3. The Company has issued 9950000 (Ninety-Mine Lakh Fifty Thousand) 0.001%
Compulsorily Convertible Preference shares of Rs. 10/- each at a price of Rs. 452 30/~
including a premium of Rs. 442.30/- per 0.001% Compulscrly Convertible Preference
shares in the EGM held on 30.05.22 out of which allotment of 7545280 0.001%
Compulsorily Convertible Preference shares of Rs. 10/- each at a pnce of Rs. 452.30/-
including a premium of Rs, 442 30/- per 0.001% Compulscrily Convertible Preference
shares aggregaling to Rs. 341,27 34 667/- (Rupees Three Hundred and Forlty One
Crore Twenty seven Lakh Thirty Four Thousand Six Hundred and Sixty Seven Only) was
made to Touch Healthcare Private Limited on 24.08.2022.

4. The company has issued 7954710 (Seventy-Nine Thousand Fifty-Four Lakh Seven
Hundred and Ten only) 0.001% Compulsorily Convertible Preference shares of Rs. 10/~
each at a price of Rs. 452.30/- including a premium of Rs. 442.30/- per 0.001%
Compulsorily Convertible Preference shares in the EGM held on 08.07.22 out of which
allotment of 70,27,180 0.001% Compulsonly Convertible Preference shares of Rs. 10/-
each at a price of Rs. 452.30/- including a premium of Rs. 442.30/- per 0.001%
Compulsorily Convertible Preference shares aggregating to 3,17 83,98,037/- (Rupees
Three Hundred and Seventeen Crore Eighty Three Lakh Minety Eight Thousand and
Thirty Seven) was made to Touch Healthcare Private Limited on 25.07 2022,

5. The company has made changes in the terms and conditions of the Issue, offer and
allotment of Compulserily Convertible Preference shares in its Board meeting held on
16.06.2022.

meeting held on 16.06.2022.




7. The Company was in default in filling up the vacancy created by resignation of Company
secretary on 06.01.2020. However, the Company has rectified the non-compliance by
filing Compounding Application before Regional Director, South East Region, Hyderabad
and received the compounding order on 11.05.2022.

For RVR & Associates
Company Secretaries
PR. No. P2Z015TLOB2000

-
i

ol
Date: 23.08.2023 G.V.S Ravi Kumar
Place: Hyderabad Associate Partner
C P No: 17178

PR. No. 12422021
UDIN: FOOB529E000852152

Mote: This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as *Annexure’ and
forms an integral part of this report.
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‘Annexure’

Ta

The Members,
Quality Care India Limited

Hyderabad
Qur report of even date is to be read along with this letter:

1. Maintenance of Secretarial records is the responsibility of the Management of the Company.
Our responsibility is to express as opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit

Z. We have followed the audit practices and process as were appropriate to obtain reasonable
assurance about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification
was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. We
believe that the processes and practices, we followed provide a reasonable basis for our
opinion.

3. We have not verified the correciness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of
Accounts of the Company.

4. Wherever required, we have oblained the Management representation about the
compliance of applicable laws, rules and regulations and happening of evenis etc.

5. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, Rules,
Regulations, secretarial standards issued by ICSI is the responsibility of the Management.
Qur examination was limited to the verification of procedures on test basis.

6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company
nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the Management has conducted the affairs of
the Company.

7. We further report that, based on the information provided by the Company, its officers,
authorized representatives during the conduct of the audit and also on the review of
quarterly compliance report by the respective departmental heads/ Company Secretary/
Managing Director taken on record by the Board of the Company, in our opinion adequate
systems and process and control mechanism exist in the Company to monitor compliance
with applicable general laws like labour laws & Environment Laws and Data protection
policy.

8. We further report that the compliance by the Company of applicable fiscal laws like Direct &
Indirect tax laws have not been reviewed in this audit since the same has been subject to
review by the stalutory financial audit and cther designated professionals,

9. All the documents, records and other information were verified and checked parily by
physical inspection and partly by electronic means and as provided by the management.

10. We further report that during the audit report there were no specific events/actions having a
majer beanng on the Company's affairs in pursuance of the above referred laws, rules,
regulation, guidelines, standards. eic.

11. We further report that, the Company has identified the following Industry specified laws
which are applicable to them:

(a) The Drug and Cosmetic Act, 1945 and Rulas
(b} The Drug and Magic Remedies Act, 1854
(c) Narcotic Drugs and Psychotropic Substances Act, 1985
(d) The Hazardous Waste (Management & Handling) Rules 1988 under
Pratection Act, 1986 v
(&) The Pharmacy Act, 1948

Doar Na. 1-10-18, Flat # G1-1st Fioor, Lakshmi Sr Park View Agartments,

Mear Ashok Nagar Circle, Ashok Nagas, Hyderabad - 500020 Telangana. India

A +91 40-2761 2478 & +91 DB491 271598
{=2 rerassoristes@omail. com @ wwWw CSIVRASSOCiaies, com




{f) Bio-Medical Waste (Management and Handling) Rules, 1598
{g) Food Safely and Standards Act, 2016 and rules

12. We further report that, the Company has identified the following general laws which are
applicable to them:
I.  The Minimum \Wages Act, 1948
II. The Payment of Wages Act, 1936
ll.  The Employees’ Provident Funds & Misc. Provisions Act 1852 and E.P.F Scheme 1952
V. The Employees’ State Insurance Act, 1848 and Employees’ State Insurance (General)
Regulations 1850
V.  The Payment of Gratuity Act 1972 and The A_P. Payment of Gratuity Rules, 1972
Vi. The Contract Labour (Regulation and Abolition) Act, 1970
Vil.  The Employment Exchanges (Compulsory Notification of vacancies) Act, 1959
Vill.  The MNational Festival and Other Holidays Act, 1974
X. The Maternily Benefit Act, 1961
X.  The Payment of Bonus Act, 1065
Xl.  The Shops & Establishment Act, 1288
Xll.  The Labour Welfare Fund Act, 1987
XL The Equal Remuneration Act, 1976
XIN.  The Child Labour(Regulation & Prohibition) Act, 1986
XV. The Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and
Redressal) Act, 2013
XV The Workmen Compensation Act
XVIl. The Employee Compensation Act, 1923
XVl The Motor Vehicle Act, 1988

For RVR & Associates

Company Secretaries
PR. No. P2015TLOB2000

-

il
G.V.5 Ravi Kumar
Associate Partner
CPMNo.:i7178

PR. No. 1242/2021
UDIN : FODB529E000B52152

Date: 23.08.2023
Place: Hyderabad
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Annexure V to Director’s Report - 2023

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
=2 AN 2B U VERNANCE REPORT
Company’s Philosophy on Corporate Governance

Corporate governance refers to the set of systems, principles and processes by which a company is governed.
They provide the guidelines as to how the company can be directed or controlled such that it can fulfil its goals
and objectives in a manner that adds to the value of the company and is also beneficial for all stakeholders in
the long term. Stakeholders in this case would include everyone ranging from the board of directors,
management, shareholders to customers, employees and society. The management of the company hence
assumes the role of a trustee for all the others.

Board of Directors Composition

The Company has an optimum combination of executive and non-executive directors. The Board comprises of
One Executive Director, Two Non-Executive Independent director and Six Non-Executive Directors. The
composition of the Board is as follows:

I d?llll;r:izoiio Whether attended
Name of the Director A Category of Directorship the AGM on
# Number 28/09/2022
(DIN)
Mr. Arunprakash Srinivasarao | 00027783 | Non-Executive Director ' No
Korati
Mr. Kewal Kundanlal Handa | 00056826 | Independent Non-Executive Director | Yes
| Mr. Vishal Bali | 01457380 | Non-Executive Director ' No
Mr. Ankur Nand Thadani 03566737 | Non-Executive Director ' No
Mr. Mahadevan . 07128788 Non-Executive Director [ No
Narayanamoni
| Mr. Madan Rohinikrishnan | 07426734 | Non-Executive Director ' No
" Ms. Ekta Bahl 101437166 | Independent Non-Executive Director | No
Mr. Massimiliano Collela | 08729468 | Non-Executive Director No
Mr. Jasdeep Singh | 02705303 | Executive Director . No
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Board Meetings

The Board Meetings are conducted in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2013, the rules
made thereunder and Secretarial Standard for Meeting of Board of Directors issued by the Institute of
Company Secretaries of India. The attendances of the Directors in the said Board Meetings are as follows:

Attendance of Directors at the Board meetings held duriﬁg the financial year 2022-23

' Director's name 21-04-2022 | 16-06-2022 | 07-07-2022 | 25-08-2022 07-12-2022 |
0. |
1| Arunprakash Srinivasarao Korati | YES (VO) | YES(VC) | YES(VG) |  LOA YES (VC)
2 Kewal Kundanlal Handa | YES(VC) | YES(VC) | VES (VO) | YES(VC) | YES(VQ)
3 | VishalBali -  YES(VO) | YES(VC) | YES (VO) | YES(VC) | YES |
" 4 | Ankur Nand Thadani | YES(VC) | YES(VC) | YES (VC) | LOA | YES(VQ)
' 5 | Mahadevan Narayanamoni | YES(VC) | YES | YES 1 YES (VC) | YES
6 | Madan Rohini Krishnan | YES (VO | YES(VO) | LOA | YES(VO) | 1oA
7 | EktaBahl o | YBES | YES(VC) | VES (VC) | YES(VC) | YES(VC)
8 | Massimiliano Colella | YES (VC) | YES (VC) | YES(VC) | YES(VC) | YES(VC) |
9 | Jasdeep Singh | YES [ YEBS | vES | vBs 1 v —

(VC=video conferencing: LOA - Leave of absence)

BOARD COMMITTEES
The Board has constituted the following committees:
1. AUDIT COMMITTEE:

The Audit Committee of the Company has been constituted in line with the provisions of section 177 of the
Companies Act 2013,

The terms of reference of the Committee are as follows and the Audit committee charter is annexed as
Annexure -1:

a. To recommend the appointment, remuneration and terms of appointment of auditors (including
internal auditors) of the Company.

b. To review and monitor auditor’s independence and performance and effectiveness of the audit
process.

¢. To review the non-audit services, if any, being provided by the statutory auditors to the
company or its related entities.

d. To review the financial statements and auditor’s report before their submission to the Board

and may also discuss any related issues with the internal and statutory auditors and the
management of the Company.

¢. To approve transactions or any subsequent modification of transactions of the Company with
related parties,

f. To scrutinize the loans and investments by the Company, if any.
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g To review and oversee the Valuation of undertakings or assets of the Company, wherever it is

necessary,

. To recommend the appointment, scope and terms of appointment of the valuers of the

Company

To oversee the Company’s financial reporting, internal and external audit requirements,
evaluation of internal financial controls and risk management systems.

- To monitor the Company’s compliance with external laws and regulations, and internal policies

including its code of ethics.

- To monitor end use of funds raised through Public offers and related matters.

To oversee the efficient functioning of the internal audit department and review its reports. The
Committee will additionally monitor the progress made in rectification of irregularities and
changes in processes wherever deficiencies have come to notice.

The Audit Committee chatter of the company is enclosed as Annexure AC 1.

Present composition of the audit committee after recent re-constitution of the committee during the
yvear under review:

1
2

'3

S.No Name [ Desi:,;natign _Remarks

Mr. Kewal Kundanlal | Independent Non-Executive | Appointed w.e.f. 21.06.2019
. Handa | Director

Ms. Ekta Bahl Independent Non-Executive Appointed w.e.f. 17.12.2019
| - - . Director i | ,

Mr, Mahadevan Non-Executive Director Appointed w.e.f. 17,03.2022
. Narayanamoni

There were no changes in composition of the Committee during the vear under review and the
attendance details are as follows:

S.No Name I N Designation | .  Remarks B
1 Mr. Kewal Kundanlal Independent Non-Executive Appointed w.e.f. 21.06.2019
_ . Handa | Director ) = | _
2 Ms. Ekta Bahl Independent Non-Executive Appointed w.e.f, 17.12.2019
| | = | Director | _ ) _
3 Mr. Mahadevan Non-Executive Director Appointed w.e.f. 17.03.2022
Narayanamoni L
Attendance of members at the audit committee meetings held during the financial year 2022-23
S, No.  Name of the member - | 25/08/2022 | 07/12/2022
_1 | Mr. Kewal Kundanla_l Handa | YES (VC) YES (VC)
2 Ms. Ekta Bahl YES (VC) ' YES
3 | Mr. Mahadevan Narayanamoni ' YES (VQ) ' YES

(VC = video bonferen_ce)
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2. OPERATING COMMITTEE:

The Operating Committee is constituted for the operational effectiveness of the Company. The following
are the terms of reference of the commiitee:

L Toreview the performance of the Company on a periodic basis;

II. To borrow monies in terms of Section 179 of the Companies Act, 2013 not exceeding Rs.5 crores
(Rupees Five Crores only) outstanding at any point of time;

IIl.  To authorize the executives to file legal cases in the ordinary course of business;

IV, To authorize the executives of the Company to represent and make application / representation before
various statutory authorities like Central Government, State Government, Municipal and Iocal bodies;

V.  To operate any account (s) with such Bank or Banks as the Board may elect to sign, draw, accept,
endorse or otherwise execute all cheques, promissory notes, drafts, hundis, orders, bills of exchange,
bills of lading, Bank Guarantee and other negotiable instruments to make and give receipts, release
and other discharges for monies payable to the Company and for the claims and demands of the
Company to make contracts and to execute deeds in connection with the operations of the Company;

VL To institute, conduct, defend, compound or abandon any legal proceedings by or against the Company
or its officers or otherwise concerning the affairs of the Company and also to compound and allow
time for payment or satisfaction of any debt due and of claims or demands by or against the Company
and to appoint solicitors, advocates, counsel and other legal advisors for such purpose or for any other
purposes and settle and pay their remunerations;

VIL  Such other terms of the reference as may be decided by the Board of Directors from time to time; and

VIIL. Such other matters falling under the prevalent delegation of authority as approved by Board from time
to time

The composition of the Operating Committee and the attendance details for the meetings held during the
year are as follows:

Present composition of the Operating committee -

' SNo | Name Designation | . Remarks
1 Mr. Mahadevan Non-Executive Director Appointed w.e.f. 21.06.2019
|| Narayanamoni | - S | i =
L2 | Mr. Jasdeep Singh _ Director & Group CEO . Appointed w.e.f. 19.10.2020
3 Mr. Massimiliano Non-Executive Director Appointed w.e.f. 17.03.2022
| Colella

There were no changes in the com josition of the Committee durin the vear under review and the
attendance details are as follows:

Name of the Director I Cateé;ry of Dﬁectors];ip BB " Remarks
| Mr. Mahadevan Narayanamoni | Non-Executive Dircctor | Appointed w.e.f. 21.06.2019
' Mr. Jasdeep Singh | Director & Group CEO | Appointed w.e.f. 19.10.2020
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| Mr. Massimiliano Colella ' Non-Executive Director Appointed w.e.f. 17.03.2022

Attendance of members at the Oper-ating committee meetings held during the financial year 2022-23

Operating
| Commitiee
Mahadevan
Narayanamoni
Jasdeep Singh
Massimiliano
Colella

| (VO

| 28.04- | 3105 | 28.06- | 26-07. | 29-08- | 29-09- | 31-10- | 23-1L | 15- | 31-01-

2 | 22 | 2 | 2 | n L2 o n | o » 12| 3
YES YES YES YES YES YES YES | LOA | YES | YES
YES | YES | YES | YES | VES | YES | YES | YES | YES | YES

YES | YES | YES | YES | VES | YES | YES | YES | LOA | VES
{VC) (VO) | (vO) (VC) | (vO | (vo) I (VC) | vOy | (VC)

(VC = video E:on-ference)

3. NOMINATION & REMUNERATION COMMITTEE:
The Company has a Nomination & Remuneration Committee,

The terms of reference of the committee are as follows:

The Committee shall:

i.

ii.

iii.

Formulate criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and Independence of
Director and recommend to the Board on the remuneration policies and practices for the
Directors, Key Managerial personnel, senior management of the Company and its
subsidiaries (“the Group”) in general; and

Identify persons who are qualified to be Director, Key Managerial personnel or senior
Management personnel and make recommendations to the Board for their appointment and
removal for the purpose of composition of the board and board Committees and to ensure
that the board of directors consists of individuals who are equipped to fulfill the role of
director of the Company.

specify the manner for effective evaluation of performance of Board, its committees and
individual directors

The Nomination & Remuneration Committee Charter of the company is enclosed as Annexure NRC 2.

Present composition of the NRC committee is as follows:

_SNo | ‘Name | Designation | Remarks N
1 Mr. Kewal Kundanlal Independent Non-Executive Appointed w.ef. 21.06.2019
_ | Handa | Director » . - . N
|2 | Mr. Vishal Bali . Non-Executive Director | Appointed w.e.f. 21.06.2019
3 Ms. Ekta Bahl Independent Non-Executive Appointed w.e.f. 17.12.2019
- | Director _ .
4 Mr. Arunprakash Nen-Executive Director Appointed w.e.f. 17.03.2022

| Srinivas Rao Korati
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There have been no chanoes in composition of the Committee during the vear under review and
the attendance details are as follows:

Name of the Director ' Category of Di_rectorship | Remarks
'Mr. Kewal Kundanlal Handa | Independent Non-Executive ' Appointed w.e.f. 21.06.2019
Director
'Mr. Vishal Bali | Non-Executive Director | Appointed w.e.f. 21.06.2019
| Ms. Ekta Bahl i [ Indcpéndent Non-Executive ' Appointed w.e.f. 17.12.2019
Director
| Mr. Arunprakash Srinivas Rag | Non-Executive Director | Appointed w.e.f. 17.03.2022
Korati
[ Attendance of members at the meetfngs of NRC held during- the I_-‘i;]ancial_year 2022-23
S.No, | ~ Members | 1340772022 |
1 | Mr. Kewal Kundanlal Handa i  YES
2 | Mr. Vishal Bali . [  YES(VO) il
3 | Ms.EktaBahl B YES (VC)
4 |Mr. Arunprakash Srinivas Rao Korati i YES(VC)

(VC= video_c_:onfereice)
4. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY COMMITTEE:
The Company has a Corporate Social Responsibility Committee pursuant to the provisions of section

135 of the Companies Act 2013, The Committee functions according to the Corporate Social
Responsibility Policy of the Company which is available on the website of the Company

Web address: h_tt;:-s:lfw_ww.car_ehospit_als.com1olicies

Present composition of the CSR committee is as follows:

Name of the Member | (_Zategory of Directorship Remarks
' Mr. Kewal Kundanlal Handa | Independent Non-Executive | Appointed w.c.£. 21.06.2019
Director
| Mr. Arunpraiash : = Non-Executive Director [ Appointed w.e.f. 21.06.2019
Srinivasarao Korati
' Ms. Ekta Bahl | Independent Non-Executive | Appointed w.e.f. 23.03.2020

Director
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There were no changes in compaosition of the Committee during the vear under review and the
attendance details are ag follows:
s=scance details are as follows:

Attendance of members at the CSR committee meeting held during the financial year 2022-23

S.No. | . - Members = 30/03/2023
1 Mr. Kewal Kundanlal Handa YES (V(O)
2 | Ms. Ekta Bahl YES
3 Mr. Arunprakash Srinivasarao Korati YES (VO)

(VC = video conference)

INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR’S MEETING:
The details of the meeting of Independent Directors of the Company held during the year under review are:

Attendance of members at the Indépendent Directors meeting held duriné the Enancia?year ]

ey ) 202223 _ » N )
S.No, | B = Members ] 30/03/2023 et

1 Mr. Kewal Kundanlal Handa YES (VC)

2 | Ms. Bkta Bahl YES

(VC = video conference)
GENERAL BODY MEETINGS:

The details of previous three years Annual General Meetings are as follows:

Year | Date And Time ' Whether Special resolutions bassed
202122 28" September, 2022 @ 1:00 PM | No
2020-21 | 28" September, 2021 @ 230 PM | " Yes )
2019-20 | 24% September, 2020 @ 200 PM No

The Annual General Meeting for FY 2019-20, FY 2020-21 and FY 2021-22 was held through Video
Conferencing (VC)/Other Audio Visual means (OAVM) facility at the Board Room, Corporate Office, 1st
Floor, Kohinoor building, Road No 2, Banjara Hills, Hyderabad -500034 Telangana

POSTAL BALLOT:
There was no business required to be transacted through postal Ballot during the financial year 2022-23
Annual General Meeting:

AGM Date, time and venue 26" September, 2023 at 12:30 Noon through Video
Conferencing (VC)/Other Audio Visual means
(OAVM) facility at Board Room, Corporate Office,
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1st Floor, Kohinoor building, Road No 2, Banjara
Hiils, Hyderabad -500034 Telangana

Financial Calendar : Ist April to 31st March
International Securities Identification Number (ISIN) -

1} Equity Shares - INE10SNO1016
2) 0.001% Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares — INE108N03012
3) 0.001% Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares — INE108N03020

SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION
Address for Correspondence

All shareholders’ correspondence should be forwarded to M, Venture Capital and Corporate Investments
Private Limited, the Registrar and Transfer Agent of the Company or to the Compliance officer/Investor
relation officer at the addresses mentioned below:

Registrar and Share Transfer Agent
Venture Capital and Corporate Investments Private Limited

#12-10-167, Bharat Nagar,

Hyderabad-500 018

Tel: +91-40-23818475/76

Fax: +91-40-23868024

Email: info(@vecipl.com

Compliance officer/Investor relation officer

Mrs. Gayathri Chandramoulieswaran
Company Secretary

Company Secretary Department

H.NO.8-2-120/86 /10, 104, 11, 1 1A, 11B, 11C, & 11D

1st Floor, GVK Kohinoor Building (New Star Maa Building)
Road No. 2, Banjara Hills,

Hyderabad - 500034

Opp. Park Hyatt hotel, near: L V Prasad Eye hospital

Phone: 040-68106565

Fax: 040-39116019

Email: ¢s.office@carehospitals.com

Change of address:

Members holding equity shares in physical form are requested to notify the change of address, if any, to the
company’s Registrar and Transfer agent, at the address mentioned above.

Share Transfer System:
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All share transfers can be effected only in dematerialisation form. All shareholders are requested to
immediately initiate the process for converting physically held shares into Dematerialisation form,

Investor Safeguards:

In order to serve you better and enable you to avoid risks while dealing in securities. You are requested to
follow the general safeguards as detailed hereunder:

Update your address:
To receive all communication promptly, please update your address registered with the Company.
Consolidate your multiple folios:

Members are requested to consolidate their shareholding held under multiple folios to save them from the
burden of receiving multiple communications.

Register Nomination:

Prevention of Frauds:

We urge you to exercise due diligence and notify us of any change in address / stay in abroad or demise of any
shareholder as soon as possible. Do not leave your demat account dormant for long. Periodic statement of
holding should be obtained from the concerned DP and holding should be verified.

Confidentiality of Security Deposits:

Members are requested not to disclose their Folio No, DP ID / Client ID or to handover s; gned blank transfer
deeds / delivery instruction slip to any unknown person.

Green Initiative:

Pursuant to Circular No. 17/2011 dated 21st April, 2011 and Circular No. 18/2011 dated 29th April, 2011,
Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) has launched “Green Initiative in Corporate Governance” whereby the
companies are allowed to send notices, documents and other communication to the shareholders in electronic

Your Company encourages its shareholders to support the “Green Initiative” by registering their email
addresses and intimate changes in the email address from time to time.

P

I—— 5 _ For and on behalf of {he Board
J de—
" _Mr. Massimiliano ¢ aleba~ Mr. fasiéep Singl
Director Director & (7 roup CEQ
DIN: 08729468 DIN: 02705303
Date: 23.08.2023 Date: 23.08.2023
Place: Dubai, UAE Place: Hyderabad, India
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Annexure AC-1
QUALITY CARE INDIA LIMITED
CHARTER
AUDIT COMMITTEE OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS

I. Authority and Purpose

A. The Board of Directors (“Board™) of Quality Care India Limited or its Subsidiaries or Associates
Company (the “Company”) constituted an Audit Committee (“Committee”) to assist the Board in

tulfilling its statutory and fiduciary responsibility:

* To recommend the appointment, remuneration and terms of appointment of anditors (including

internal anditors) of the Company.

* To review and monitor auditor’s independence and performance and effectiveness of the audit

process.

* To review the non-audit services, if any, being provided by the statutory auditors to the company or

its related entities,

* To review the financial statements and auditor’s report before their submission to the Board and
may also discuss any related issues with the internal and statutory auditors and the management of

the Company.,

* To approve transactions or any subsequent modification of transactions of the Company with

related parties.
* To scrutinize the loans and investments by the Company, if any,

* To review and oversee the Valuation of undertakings or assets of the Company, wherever it is

necessary,

* Torecommend the appointment, scope and terms of appointment of the valuers of the Company
* To oversee the Company’s financial reporting, internal and external audit requirements, evaluation

of internal financial controls and risk management systems.

* To monitor the Company’s compliance with external laws and regulations, and internal policies

including its code of ethics.

* To monitor end use of funds raised through Public offers and related matters.

* To oversee the efficient functioni g of the internal audit department and review its reports. The

Committee will additionally monitor the progress made in rectification of irre

in processes wherever deficiencies have come to notice.

gulanties and changes

As such, the Committee exercises the authorities and powers delegated to it and the powers imposed

by law, regulations and/or regulatory authorities within the jurisdiction.

B. Members of the Committee should be conversant with the various responsibilities placed upon them by
Section 177 of the Act and rules made there under and as amended from time to time. The relevant

extracts of Section 177 of the Act are included in Appendix 1.

C. The Committee shall comply with the various provisions, regulations or guidelines as may be applicable
and amended from time to time. Further, the Committee shall review and update this Charter once in the
financial year, to give effect to such amendments and recommend the revised Charter to the Board for its

approval.

D. This amended Charter shali substitute and supersede all previous Charters of the Committee,

Page 42 of 52



W
QUALITY CARE INDIA LIMITED C R
Annual Report - 20222023 WOSiTALy

ILI. Constitution of the Committee

118

A,

H.

Size of the Committee: The Committee shail consist of at least three (3) members (“Members™) and

shall only comprise Directors from the Board. At all times, majority shall be of the Independent
Directors.

Appointment and removal of Members: The Members will be appointed by the Board and will continue
until their successors are duly appointed by the Board. The majority of members of the Audit Committee
including its Chairperson shall be persons with ability to read and understand financial statements.

In the event of any amendment to the Companies Act and rules made there under, the composition of
the Committee will be amended accordingly to ensure compliance with the amendments,

Election of a Chairperson: The Members shall elect a Chairperson of the Committee (“Chairperson™)
from among themselves from time to time, by a majority vote. The Board shall formally appoint the
Chairperson of the Committee,

Appointment of a Committee Secretary: The Company Secretary shall act as the Secretary of the
Committee (“Committee Secretary™) but shall not be a Member. The Committee Secretary shall be
responsible to provide support to the Committee members in his/her role and to ensure proper execution
of the required processes.

Invitees to the Committee: Subject to the approval by the Chairperson, the Committee may invite
members of the management as it considers necessary to be present at the Meetings of the Commitiee
but such executives shall have no voting rights.

Key Managerial Personnel: The Key Managerial Personnel shall have a right to be heard at the
Meetings but shall have no voting rights, when the Committee considers the auditor’s report.

Qualification of the Members and the Chairperson: All Members shall be financially literate and at least
one Member shall have accounting or related financial management expertise. The Chairperson shall be
an independent non-executive director of the Board and shall be a person with a strong financial analysis
background.

Independence: The Committee should be constituted to ensure its independence and objectivity.

Role of the Commijttee

A,

The responsibilities of the Committee is to carry out the purpose laid down in Section I of this Charter.
These responsibilities should serve as a guide with the understanding that the Committee may carry out
additional functions and adopt additional or different policies and procedures as may be appropriate in
light of changing business, legislative, regulatory, legal or other conditions.

To act as a Compliance Committee to discuss the level of compliance in the Company and any
associated risks and to monitor and report to the Board on any significant compliance breaches.

The Committee shall also have such further powers as may be delegated to it by the Board from time to
time, in relation to the purpose of the Committee as outlined in Section I of this Charter.

The responsibilities of the Committee, as prescribed under the Act and rules made there under, and other
delegations as prescribed by the Board of Directors.
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IV. Powers of the Committee

A. The recommendations of the Committee, on any matter relating to financial management, including the
audit report, shall be reported to the Board.

B. In performance of its responsibilities and obligations described in Section I and Section III, the powers
of the Committee shail inchide the following:

i. The right to ask a member of the management of the Company who is responsible for an area
commented upon on reports presented to the Committee, to be present when the Committee reviews
such report.

ii. Investigate any matter in relation to its roles and responsibilities, to items specified in Section
177(4) or referred to it by the Board.

iti. Seek information from any employee of the Company.

iv. Have full access to information contained in the records of the Company and obtain outside legal or
other professional advice if necessary,

v. Cail for the comments of the auditors about internal control systems, the scope of audit, including
the observations of the auditors and about their review of the financial statements before their
submission to the Board and may also discuss any related issues with the internal and statutory
auditors and the management of the company,

vi. Have oversight on the procedures and processes established to attend to issues relating to
maintenance of books of account, administration procedures, transactions and other matters having a
bearing on the financial position of the insurer, whether raised by the auditors or by any other
person.

C. The Committee shall accord omnibus approval to the related party transactions, which are in ordinary
course of business and are at arm’s length basts, as detail in the Related Party Policy of the Company.

V. Proceedings of the Committee Meetings

A. Frequency of Meetings: The Committee shall meet at least two times every year. The Committee may
meet as often as it deems necessary or appropriate in its judgment, in person or audio visual, and at
such times and places as the Committee determines.

B. Quorum: The quorum for a Meeting shall be either two (2) Members or one third (1/3rd) of the
Members whichever is greater. The quorum shall comprise of at least two (2) Members, with one (1)
Member representing the JV Partner, present in person or through video conferencing or by other
audio visual means.

C. Notice: All notices to be issued by the Committee will be in accordance with the Act,

D. Voting: Each Member shall have one (1) vote and all matters submitted to the Committee for approval
shall require approval of a majority of the Members present and voting. Non-Members shall have no
voting rights.

E. Non-Members: Subject to the approval by the Chairperson, the Committee may invite non-Members to
the Meetings to attend and to participate at the Meetings, but such non-Members shall have no voting

rights.

F. Invitees: The Company’s Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer and shall be permanent
invitees to the Meetings of the Committee but shall have no voting rights. Any of the key managerial
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personnel of the Company shall have 3 right to be heard in the meetings of the Audit Committee but
shall not have the right to vote.

Committee Meetings convened for the purpose of approving annual (audited) financial statements, but
shall have no voting rights. The statutory auditors shal] have access to the Board through the
Committee,

H. Executive Session; The Committee has the right to hold private sessions with the management, the
Directors or the external and internal auditors, as required by applicable law, regulation, and in such
other circumstances as the Committee may deem appropriate.

J. Minutes: In accordance with the Board protocols, the minutes of the Committee Meetings shall be
completed within fifteen (15) days of such Meeting and shall be circulated to all Members and other
relevant personnel as deemed necessary by the Committee.

K. Necessary support: The Company’s Secreiary shall provide the necessary support and assistance for
conducting the Committee Meetings.

L. Reporting to the Board: The Chairperson shall present to the Board an update on the Committee
Meetings.

M. Annual General Meeting: The Chairperson of the Committee shall attend the Annual General
Meetings of the Company to provide any clarifications on audit-related matters,

YL Disclosure

A. The Committee will disclose in the Company’s Director Report whether or not, with respect to the
concerned fiscal year:

1. The management has reviewed the audited financial statements with the Committee, including a
discussion of the appropriateness of the accounting principles as applied and significant Jjudgments
affecting the Company’s financial statements.

ii. The independent auditors have discussed with the Committee their judgment of the appropriateness
of those principles as applied and judgments referred to the above, under the circumstances,

iii, The Members have discussed among themselves without the management or the independent
auditors being present, the information disclosed to the Committee.

tv. There are any material changes and commitments, atfecting the financial position of the Company
which have occurred between the end of the financial year of the Company to which the financial
statements relate and the date of the Director’s report.

v. The internal financial controls are adequate,

B. To the extent required by the law, the Committee shall ensure that the following items are disclosed in
the annual report;

i. Number of Meetings held in a financtal year,
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ii. The composition of the mandated committees, setting out the name, qualification, field of
specialization, status of directorship held.

iit. Number of Meetings attended by the Directors and Members.
iv. Details of the remuneration paid, if any, to Independent Directors.

v. Where the Board has not accepted any recommendation of the Audit Commrittee, the same shall be
disclosed in the annual report along with the reasons thereof.
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Appendix 1: Extracts from Com panies Act 2013

177. Audit Committee

1.

2.

5

10.

The Board of Directors of every listed Company and such other class or classes of companies, as
may be prescribed, shall constitute an Audit Committee.

The Audit Committee shall consist of a minimum of three Directors with Independent Directors
forming a majority: Provided that majority of Members of Audit Committee including its
Chairperson shall be persons with ability to read and understand, the financial statement.

- Every Audit Committee of a Company existing immediately before the commencement of this Act

shall, within one year of such commencement, be reconstituted in accordance with sub-section ).
Every Audit Committee shall act in accordance with the terms of reference specified in writing by
the Board which shall, inter alia, include, —
1. the recommendation for appointment, remuneration and terms of appointment of auditors of the
Company;
1. review and monitor the auditor’s independence and performance, and effectiveness of audit
process;
iii. examination of the financial statement and the auditors’ report thereon;
iv. approval or any subsequent modification of transactions of the Company with related parties;
v.  scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments;
vi. valuation of undertakings or assets of the Company, wherever it is necessary;
vil. evaluation of internal financia| controls and risk management systems;
viii. monitoring the end use of funds raised through public offers and related matters.
The Audit Committee may call for the comments of the auditors about internal control systems, the

records of the Company.

The auditors of a Company and the key managerial personnel shall have a right to be heard in the
Meetings of the Audit Committee when it considers the auditor’s report but shall not have the right
to vote,

The Board’s report under sub-section (3) of section 134 shall disclose the composition of an Audit
Committee and where the Board had not accepted any recommendation of the Audit Committee, the
same shall be disclosed in such report along with the reasons therefore,

- Every listed Company or such class or classes of companies, as may be prescribed, shall establish a

vigil mechanism for Directors and employees to report genuine concerns in such manner as may be
prescribed.

The vigil mechanism under sub-section (9) shall provide for adequate safeguards against
victimization of persons who use such mechanism and make provision for direct access to the
chairperson of the Audit Committee in appropriate or exceptional cases. Provided that the details of
establishment of such mechanism shall be disclosed by the Company on its website, if any, and in
the Board’s report.
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Annexure NRC-2

QUALITY CARE INDIA LIMITED
Nomination & Remuneration Committee Charter

Quality Care India Limited
(“the Company”)
NOMINATION & REMUNERATION COMMITTEE CHARTER
(“the Committee™)
TERMS OF REFERENCE
L CONSTITUTION

The Committee is constituted as a Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the board in terms of
the section 178 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013, the rules made
there under (including any Statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the time being in
force) read with the relevant articles of the Articles of Association of the Company.

2. PURPOSE
The purpose of the Committee is to provide an independent and objective body that will:
{a) Formulate criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and Independence of
Director and recommend to the Board on the remuneration policies and practices for the
Directors, Key Managerial personnel, senior management of the Company and its subsidiaries

(“the Group™) in general; and

(b) identify persons who are qualified to be Director, Key Managerial personnel or senior

{c)  specify the manner for effective evaluation of performance of Board, its committees and
individual directors

3. MEMBERSHIP/QUORUM

3.1 The Committee shall be constituted by the board from among the non-executive directors, provided it
shall consist of three or more non-executive director out of whom at least half of the members of
Independent Directors. The members as a whole must have sufficient qualifications and experience to
fulfil their duties. The Chairperson of the Company (whether executive or nou-executive may be the
member of the Committee. However, he shall not be Chairperson for this committee,

32 Notwithstanding the above, the board shall have the power at any time to reconstitute the Committee

33 The board shall, from time to time, review and revise the composition of the Commitee, taking into
account the need for an adequate combination of skills and knowledge.
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3.5
4.

4.1

4.2

5.1

5.2

Provision shall be made for an induction programme and suitable training for alf members of the
committee.

The company Secretary or a person approved by the Chairman shal] act ag secretary to the Committee,

MEETINGS
Attendance

* A quorum of the meeting of the Committee shall be higher of two {(2) Members or one-third (1/3)
of the Members of the Committee,

* No invited attendee shall have a vote at the meetings of the Committee,
Frequency of meetings

*  Meetings of the Committee shall be held as frequently as the Committee, in consultation with the
company secretary, considers appropriate, but it shall normally meet not less than twice (2) a year.
Sufficient time should be allowed to enable the Committee to undertake a fy]l discussion as may
be required and a sufficient interval should be allowed between Committee meetings and board
meetings to allow for the Committee to undertake such work as is necessary in preparation for
each board meeting. Further meetings may be called by the board or any member thereof,
including all members of the Committee.

PROCEEDINGS

The Committee must establish an annual work plan for each year to ensure that all relevant matters are
covered by the agendas of the meetings planned for the year. The annual plan must engure proper
coverage of the matters laid out in these terms of reference: the more eritical matters will need to be
attended to each year while other matters may be dealt with on a rotation basis over a three-year
period. The number, timing and length of meetings, and the agendas are to be determined in
accordance with the annual plan.
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53 The secretary of the Committee shal] take minutes of all meetings, which minutes shall be circulated

54

5.5

6.1

6.2

7.1

as follows:

*  Within 10 business days of the meeting generally, but not later than 15 days - to the executive and
chairperson of the Committee;

¢ once approved by the Committee - to the subsequent meeting of the board of directors of the
company.

The minutes shall record the issues, the salient features pertaining to the issues and the decisions of
the Committee.

The secretary of the Committee shall ascertain, at the beginning of each meeting, the existence of any
conflicts of interest and minute them accordingly.

The chairperson of the Committee shali report on the Committee’s proceedings and findings to the
next meeting of the board.

REMUNERATION

Non-executive members of the Committee shall be paid a sitting fee and other remuneration as may be
permitted under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder including
remuneration with respect to the committee meetings attended by them.

The above fees shall he subject to review by the board from time to time,

RESPONSIBILITIES
Human Resources related matters

The duties of the Committee shall be to work on behalf of the board and be responsible 1o it for
recommendations in respect of human resources matters;

* Laying down criteria for appointments of Directors, MD/CEQ/ED/WTD/KMP and Senior
Management and recommend to the Board their appointment and removal as per requirements of
the Companies Act 2013

¢ Evaluating performances of the Directors and other personnel as per requirements of the
Compantes Act 2013

e Formulate criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes, independence etc of the
Directors and other personnel.

* Recommend to the Board a policy/ Terms of Reference, relating to remuneration packages and
any other compensation payment for the Directors, MD/CEO/ED/WTD/KMP/SM | and other
employees

* ensure alignment of the remuneration and human resources strategies and policies with the
Group’s business strategy and the desired culture;
determine the Group’s general policy on executive and senior management remuneration;
consider and recommend for approval by the board the remuneration of the chief executive,
executive directors, KMP and Senior Management;

¢ consider and recommend for approval by the board the setting of KPA’s for performance bonus

* consider and recommend to the board the achievements of the above KPA’s and the approval of
payment of performance bonuses of senior management;

* determine any grants to executive directors and other senior employees made pursuant to the
Group’s management share option scheme;
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7.2

* regularly review incentive schemes to ensure continued contribution to shareholder value and that
these are administered in terms of the rules;

consider the appropriateness of early vesting of share-based schemes at the end of employment;
ensure the adequacy of retirement and health care funding for executives and senior management;
ensure adequate succession plans for the executive and senior management; and

ensure compliance to all statutory and best practice requirements regarding labour and industrial
relations management.

Note: Job grades provided for reference:

CEO: Grade F2
Executive Directors: Grade F1 (COQ, CFO & CMQ)
Senior Management: Grade E1 (All Group Managers)

Board and nomination related macters

. This is not allowed under section 178

The Committee shall have the following responsibilities:

* make recommendations to the board on the appointment of the chief executive officer, new
executives and non-executive directors, including making recommendations on the composition of

* regularly review the board structure, size and composition and make recommendations to the
board with regards to any adjustments that are deemed necessary;

* identify and nominate candidates for the approval of the board to fil] board vacancies as and when
they arise, as well as put in place plans for succession for the board, in particular for the chief
executive and CFO;

* recommend directors that are retiring by rotation, for re-election;
consider recommendations by management in relation to non-executive director remuneration for
final recommendation by the board to shareholders;

* oversee the development of a formal induction programme for directors;

¢ ensure that inexperienced directors are developed through a mentorship programme;

* oversee the development and implementation of contiming professional development
programmes for directors;

® ensure that directors receive regular briefings on changes to in risks, laws and the environment in
which the company operates; and

* consider the performance of the directors and take steps necessary to remove directors who do not
make an appropriate contribution.

8. GOVERNANCE

8.1

8.2

The Committee is authorised by the board to, at the company’s expense, obtain outside legal,
accounting or other independent professional advice as it considers necessary to carry out its duties
and to secure the attendance of outsiders with relevant experience and expertise if it considers this
necessary.
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8.3 The Committee has reasonable access to the company’s records, facilities and any other resources
ecessary to discharge its duties and responsibilities,

9. DISCLOSURE
The Committee shall ensyre that the following is disclosed in the annual report to the extent required by law:
¢ Number of meetings held in a financia] year
* The composition of the Commitee, setting out the name, status of directorship held.
* Number of meetings attended by the directors and Members

* Details of the remuneration paid, if any, to Independent directors
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Independent Auditor’s Report
To the Members of Quality Care India Limited

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Opinion

1. Wehave audited the aceompanying standalone financial statements of Quality Care India Limited (“the Company”), which
comprise the Standalone Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2023, the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss (including
Other Comprehensive income), the Standalone Statement of Changes in Equity, the Standalone Statement of Cash Flows
for the year then ended, and notes to the standalone financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

2. In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid standalone
financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act") in the manner so required and
give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of
the Company as at March 31, 2023, total comprehensive income (comprising of profit and other comprehensive income),
changes in equity and its cash flows for the year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

3. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under Section 143(10) of the Act .
Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the “Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
standalone financial statements” section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code
of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant
to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Other Information

4. The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the

information included in the Director’s report, but does not include the standalone financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon.

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form
of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, cur responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the standalone financial statements or
our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.
Responsibilities of management and those charged with governance for the standalone financial statements

5. The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Act with respect to the
preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial
performance, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the
assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the standalone
financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Members of Quality Care India Limited
Report on Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

6.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis
of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so. Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the standalone financial statements

7.

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to frand or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs
will always detect a material misstatermnent when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these standalone financial statements.

. As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism

throughout the andit. We also:

¢  Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from frand
is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(D) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our
opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial
statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls,

¢  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we
are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the standalone financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to
continue as a going concern.

¢ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of
the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during
our audit.

10. We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements

regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other maiters that may reasonably be
thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

=)
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of Quality Care India Limited
Report on Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

11. As required by the Companies {Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 {“the Order”), issued by the Central Government of India
in terms of sub-section (11} of Section 143 of the Act, we give in the Annexure B a statement on the matters specified in
paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable,

12. As required by Section 143(3} of the Act, we report that:

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

4]

(g}

(h)

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief
were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears from
our examination of those books, except that the backup of books of account and other books and papers maintained
in electronic mode has not been maintained on a daily basis on servers physically located in India during the year.

The Standalone Balance Sheet, the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive
income), the Standalone Statement of Changes in Equity and the Standalone Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by
this Report are in agreement with the books of accounts.

In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified under
Section 133 of the Act.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2023, taken on record by the
Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2023, from being appointed as a director in
terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

With respect to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith, reference is made to our
remarks in paragraph 12(b} above.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements of
the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure A",

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended), in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to
the explanations given to us:

1. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its standalone financial
statements — Refer Note 4.37(a) to the standalone financial statements:

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts as at March 31, 2023.

iti. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund
by the Company during the year ended March 31, 2023.

iv. (a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed in the notes to
the accounts, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share
premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies),
including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or
entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or
provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries (Refer Note 4.45{vii)(a) to
the standalone financial statements);



Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Members of Quality Care India Limited
Report on Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

(b} The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other than as disclosed in the

notes to the accounts, no funds have been received by the Company from any person(s) or entity(ies),
including foreign entities ("Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™ or
provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries (Refer Note 4.45(vii}(b) to
the standalone financial statements); and

(c} Based on such audit procedures that we considered reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances, nothing

has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the representations under sub-clause (a) and (b)
contain any material misstatement,

v. The Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year.

vi. As proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 (as amended), which provides for books of
account to have the feature of audit trail, edit log and related matters in the accounting software used by the
Company, is applicable to the Company only with effect from financial year beginning April 1, 2023, the
reporting under clause (g} of Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended), is
currently not applicable.

13. The Company has paid/ provided for managerial remuneration in accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by
the provisions of Section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act.

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration Number: 012754N/N500016

il
j .I I“y- o L\__./’i
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e

Srikanth Pola
Partner

Membership Number: 220916
UDIN: 23220916BGXUXU3401

Place: Hyderabad
Date: August 23, 2023
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Annexure A to Independent Auditor’s Report

Referred te in paragraph 12(g) of the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of Quality Care India
Limited on the standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023,

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to Standalone Financial Statements under clause
(i) of sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Act

1. We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements of Quality Care India
Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2023 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial statements of
the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

2. The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the
internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Andit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (“the
Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI"). These responsibilities include the
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for
ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding
of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility

3. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to standalone
financial statements based on our audit, We conducied our andit in accordance with the Guidance Note and the
Standards on Auditing deemed to be prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act to the extent applicable to an audit of
internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of internal financial controls and both issued by the ICAT. Those
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial
statemnents was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

4.  Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls
system with reference to standalone financial statements and their operating effectiveness, Qur audit of internal
financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements included obtaining an understanding of internal
financial controls with reference to standalone financial stalements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists,
and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement
of the standalone financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

5. Webelieve that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion
on the Company’s internal financial controls system with reference to standalone financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to standalone financial statements

6. A company's internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of standalone financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal
financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements includes those policies and procedures that (1)
pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary
to permit preparation of standalone financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles,
and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of
management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely
detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on
the standalone financial statements.
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Annexure A to Independent Auditor’s Report

Referred to in paragraph 12(g} of the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of Quality Care India
Limited on the standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to standalone financial statements

7. Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error
or fraud may oceur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with
reference to standalone financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal finaneial controls
with reference to standalone financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the
degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

8. Inour opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system with reference
to standalone financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial
statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2023, based on the internal control over financial reporting
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance
Note issued by ICAL

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration Number: 012754N/N500016

A
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\ -

Srikanth Pola

Partmer

Membership Number: 220016
UDIN: 23220916BGXUXU3z401

Place: Hyderabad
Date: August 23, 2023
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Annexure B to Independent Auditors’ Report

Referred to in paragraph 11 of the Independent Anditors’ Report of even date to the members of Quality Care India Limited
on the standalone financial statements as of and for the year ended March 31, 2023

i (a) (A)The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and situation,

of Property, Plant and Equipment,

(B) The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars of Intangible Assets.

{(b) The Property, Plant and Equipment are physically verified by the Management according to a phased programme

designed to cover all the items over a period of 3 years which, in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size
of the Company and the nature of its assets. Pursuant to the programme, a portion of the Property, Plant and

Equipment has been physically verified by the Management during the year and no material discrepancies have been
noticed on such verification.

{c) The title deeds of all the immovable properties (other than properties where the Company is the lessee and the lease

(d)

(e)

il. (a)
{b)
iil. (a)

agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee), as disclosed in Note 4.1 to the standalone financial statements,
are held in the name of the Company, except for the following:

| Description of | Gross Held in the Whether Period held - Reason for
property carrying name of promoter, indicate range, | not bheing
value director or where held in the
(Rs. in their relative | appropriate name of the
millions) or employee Company
Land, Plot no, 3 105.55 Andhra Pradesh | No From 2009 Refer note
measuring 4.18 Industrial 4.44 to the
acres situated in Infrastructure standalone
Chinagadili village, Corporation financial
Visakhapatnam Limited statements

The Company has chosen cost model for its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of Use assets) and
intangible assets. Consequently, the question of our commenting on whether the revaluation is based on the valuation
by a Registered Valuer, or specifying the amount of change, if the change is 10% or more in the aggregate of the net

carrying value of each class of Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of Use assets) or intangible assets does
not arise.

Based on the information and explanations furnished to us, no proceedings have been initiated on (or} are pending
against the Company for holding benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988
(as amended in 2016) (formerly the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988)) and Rules made
thereunder, and therefore the question of our commenting on whether the Compary has appropriately disclosed the
details in its standalone financial statements does not arise.

The physical verification of inventory has been conducted at reasonable intervals by the Management during the year
and, in our opinion, the coverage and procedure of such verification by Management is appropriate. The discrepancies

noticed on physical verification of inventory as compared to book records were not 10% or more in aggregate for each
class of inventory.

During the year, the Company has been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of Rs. 5 crores, in aggregate, from
banks on the basis of security of current assets. The Company has filed revised quarterly returns or statements with

such banks, which are in agreement with the unandited books of account (Also refer Note 4.45(ii) to the standalone
financial statements).

The Company has made investments in two companies aggregating to Rs. 7,386.18 million and has not granted secured/
unsecured loans/advances in nature of loans, nor stood guarantee, nor provided security. Also refer Note 4.4(a) to the
standalone financial statements,

)



Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP

Annexure B to Independent Auditors’ Report

Referred to in paragraph 11 of the Independent Auditors’ Report of even date to the members of Quality Care India Limited
on the standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

(b)

iv.

vil.(a)

(b)

In respect of the aforesaid investments, the terms and conditions under which such investments were made are not
prejudicial to the Company's interest.

The Company has not granted secured/ unsecured loans/advances in nature of loans, or stood guarantee, or provided

security to any parties. Therefore, the reporting under clause (iii)(c), (iii)(d), (iii}e) and (iii){f) of the Order are not
applicable to the Company.

In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has complied with the
provisions of Sections 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of the loans and investments made, and
guarantees and security provided by it,

The Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits referred in Sections 73, 74,
75 and 76 of the Act and the Rules framed there under to the extent notified.

Pursuant to the rules made by the Central Government of India, the Company is required to maintain cost records as
specified under Section 148(1) of the Act in respect of its products. We have broadly reviewed the same and are of the
opinion that, prima facie, the prescribed accounts and records have been made and maintained. We have not, however,
made a detailed examination of the records with a view to determine whether they are accurate or complete,

According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company examined by us, in our
opinion, the Company is generally regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues in respect of provident fund, though
there has been a slight delay in a few cases, and is regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues, including,
employees’ state insurance, sales tax, income tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess,
goods and services tax and other material statutory dues, as applicable, with the appropriate authorities.

According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company examined by us, there are
no statutory dues of duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess, sales tax, goods and services tax which have

not been deposited on account of any dispute. The particulars of other statutory d
at March 31, 2023 which have not been deposited on aceount of a dispute,

ues referred to in sub-clause (a) as
are as follows:

Name of the Nature Total Amount Period to Forum where the
statute of dues amount of paid under which the disputeis pending
dispute protest (Rs. amount
{Rs. in in million) * relates
millions)
Income Tax Act, Income Tax 22.G2 - AY 2013-14 ITAT, Hyderabad
1961 !
Income Tax 0.51 - AY 2017-18  Assessing officer
Income Taxes,
Hyderabad
Income Tax 4.36 - AY 2018-19  CIT{A), Hyderabad
Income Tax 4-34 N AY 2017-18 CIT(A), Hyderabad
Andhra Pradesh Luxury Tax 16,86 8.35 FY2004-05 High Court, Telangana
Luxury Tax Act, and FY
1087 2005-06
Luxury Tax 21.78 21.78 FY 2006-07 Appellate Tribunal,
to FY 2013- Hyderabad
14
Luxury Tax 78.58 19.64 FY 2014-15 High Court, Telangana
and FY
2015-16
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Annexure B to Independent Auditors’ Report

Referred to in paragraph 11 of the Indep
on the standalone financial statements

viii.

ix. (a)

(b)

()

(d)

(e)

Name of the
statute

The Finanece Act,
1904

Minimum wages
Act, 1948

Expenditure Tax
Act, 1987

Employees State
Insurance Act, 1948

Employee’s
Provident Funds and
Miscellaneous
Provisions Act, 1052

Total

* Out of the total amount

Loss.

According to the information and explanations
noe transactions in the books of account that h
assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961, that has not

According to the records of the Com
Company has not defaulted in repa:

during the year.

Aceording to the information and explanations
Company has not been declared Wilful Defaulte

authority,

In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us,
the purposes for which they were obtained. (Also refer Note 4.47(ii} to the stan

According to the information and explanations given to us,
examination of the standalone financial statements of the Co

basis.

According to the information and
statements of the Company, we
of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiari

d

Nature
of dues

Service Tax

Service Tax

Service Tax

Service Tax

Mintmum
wages

Expenditure
tax

Employees
State
Insurance

Employee's
Provident
Fund

report that th

Total
amount of
dispute
(Rs

E}

, in
ions)
4.57

8.10

27.47

28.01
3.19
7.83

1.26

8.77

238.55

as been surr

Amount

paid under
protest (Rs.
in million) *

1.47

1.25

0.53

3.57

0.42

3.51

60.52

Period to
which the
amount
relates

July 2010 to

April 2011

FY 2014-15
to June 2017

FY Qctober
2012 to

March 2017

FY 2009-10

0 2013-14

FY 2001-02

FY 1990-91
10 1993-94

FY 1990-91
to 1996-97

October
2008-
August 2009

endent Auditors’ Report of even date to the members of Quality Care India Limited
for the year ended March 31, 2023

Forum where the
dispute is pending

CESTAT,
Visakhapatnam

Additional
comrmissioner of
customs, Central
Excise & Service tax,
Hyderabad

CESTAT, Hyderabad

High Court, Telangana

CBDT, Hyderabad

High Court, Telangana

High Court, Telangana

paid under protest, Rs. 1.86 million was charged to the standalone statement of Profit and

given to us and the records of the Company examined by us, there are
endered or disclosed as income during the vedr in the tax
been recorded in the books of account.

pany examined by us and the information and explanation given to us, the
yment of loans or other borrowings or in the payment of interest to any lender

given 1o us and on the basis of our audit procedures, we report that the
r by any bank or financial institution or government or any government

the term loans have been applied for
dalone financial statements).

and the procedures performed by us, and on an overall
mpany, the Company has not raised funds on short term

explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the standalone financial
¢ Company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account
s, associates ot joint ventures.
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Referred to in paragraph 11 of the Independent Auditors’ Report of even date to the members of Quality Care India Limited
on the standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

)

x,{a)

(b)

xi. (a)

(b}

(c)

xii,

xiii.

xiv. (a)

(b)

Xv.,

xvi. (a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures performed by us, we report that the

Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its subsidiaries, joint ventures or
associate companies.

The Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt

instruments) during the year. Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

The Company has made a private placement of compulsory convertible preference shares during the year, in
compliance with the requirements of Section 42 and Section 62 of the Act. The funds raised have been used for the
purpose for which funds were raised.

During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried ount in accordance with the
generaly accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the information and explanations given to us, we have
neither come across any instance of material fraud by the Company or on the Company, noticed or reported during
the year, nor have we been informed of any such case by the Management.

During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out in accordance with the
generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the information and explanations given to us, a report
under Section 143(12) of the Act, in Form ADT-4, as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors)
Rules, 2014 was not required to be filed with the Central Government. Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(xi)(b)
of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company carried out in accordance with the
generally aceepted anditing practices in India, and according to the information and explanations given to us, and as
represented to us by the management, no whistle-blower complaints have been received during the year by the
Company. Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(xi}(c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

As the Company is not a Nidhi Company and the Nidhi Rules, 2014 are not applicable to it, the reporting under clause
3(xii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has entered into transactions with related parties in compliance with the provisions of Sections 177 and
188 of the Act. The details of such related party transactions have been disclosed in the standalone financial statements
as required under Indian Accounting Standard 24 “Related Party Disclosures” specified under Section 133 of the Act,

In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given tous, the Company has an internal audit system
commensurate with the size and nature of its business.

The reports of the Internal Auditor for the period under audit have been considered by us.

The Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected with him.

Accordingly, the reporting on compliance with the provisions of Section 192 of the Act under clause 3(xv} of the Order
is not applicable to the Company.

The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934, Accordingly,
the reporting under clause 3(xvi)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not conducted non-banking financial / housing finance activities during the year. Accordingly, the
reporting under clause 3(xvi)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by the Reserve Bank of
India. Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(xvi)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

Based on the information and explanations provided by the management of the Company, the Group (as defined in
the Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016} does not have any CICs, which are part of the Group.
We have not, however, separately evaluated whether the information provided by the management is accurate and
complete. Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(xvi)(d) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.
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Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP

Annexure B to Independent Auditors’ Report

Referred to in paragraph 11 of the Independent Auditors’ Report of even date to the members of Quality Care India Limited
on the standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

xvii.

xviii.

Xix.

The Company has not incurred any cash losses in the financial year or in the immediately preceding financial year.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and accordingly the reporting under clanse
(xviii) is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios (Also refer Note 4.46
to the standalone financial statements » ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of
financial liabilities, other information accompanying the standalone financial statements, our knowledge of the Board
of Directors and management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assurnptions,
nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the
audit report that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when
they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance
as to the future viability of the Company, We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the
audit report and we neither give amy guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities failing due within a period of one
year from the balance sheet date will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

As at balance sheet date, the Company does not have any amount remaining unspent under Section 135(5) of the Act.
Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xx) of the Order ig not applicable,

The reporting under clanse 3(xxi) of the Order is not applicable in respect of audit of Standalone financial statements.
Accordingly, no comment in respect of the said clause has been included in this report.

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration Number: 412754N /N500016

' \ A
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T

ath Pola

Partner

Membership Number: 220916
UDIN: 23220916BGXUXU3401

Place: Hyderabad
Date: August 23, 2023



Quality Care India Limited
Standalone Balance Sheet

(All amounts in ¥ millions, except share data and where otherwise stated)

Particulars

ASSETS
A. Noo-current assets
(a} Property, plant and equipment
{b) Right-of-use asseis
(¢} Capital work-in-progress
(d) Goodwill
{e) Other intangible assets
(H Investments
(g} Financial assets
{i) Other financial assels
{h) Deferred tax assets {net)
(iy NWon-current tax asseis {net)
{j) Other non-current assets
Total non-current assets (A)
B. Current assets
{a) Inventories
{b) Financial assets
(i} Investments
(it} Trade receivables
(iiiy Cash and cash equivalents
{iv) Bank balances other than {iii) above
{v) Loans
(vi) Other financial assets
{e) Other cisrent assets
Assets classified as held for sale
Total current asseis (B)

Total assets (A+B)

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
A. Equity
{#) Equity share capital
(b) Other equity
(i)  Reserves and surplus
Total equity (A)
Liabilities
B. Non-Currvent Liabilities
(2} Financial liabilities
(iy Borrowings
{ii) Lease linbilities
(iii) Other financial liabilities
{b) Employes benefit obligations
Total non-current linbilities (B)
C. Current Liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities
{iy Borrawings
(ii) Lease liabilities
(iii) Trade payables

(a) total outsianding dues of micro and small enterprises
{b) total ocutstanding dues other than (iii} {2} above

(iv) Other financial liabilities
(t) Employee benefit obligations
(&) Other current liabilities
Total current Habilities {C)

Total liabilities (B+C)
Total equity and lisbilities (A+B+C)

The accompanying iHAes are an integral part of the standalone financial statements.

This is the Standalone Balance Sheet referred to in our report of even date.

Eor and on behalf of Board of Directors of
Quuality Care India meed

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP

Firm's Reglsuatlon No: 012754N/N50001 6
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Snlumth Pola

Membershleo 220916

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 23 August 2023
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Massimiliano Colelis
Director

DIN: 08720468
Place : Dubai, UAE

K
Chlef Finankial Officer
Place : Hyderabad

Date; 23 Angust 2023

Notes

4.1(a)
4.1(b)
42
43

q, 4(a}

4.5(2)
46
47

4.8(a)

49

44(b)
410
411 ()
411 (b}
412
45 (b)
48 (b)
449

4.13(a)

4.13 (b}

414
438
4.13(a)
ais

414
438
437

418()
416
419

Ha IR

As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
4,505.55 4,253.80
1,243.18 1,030.80
1,255.92 587.08
283.85 266,71
66.24 73.24
1321.23 44231
185.82 163.79
421.35 839.62
439.61 616.96
332,83 165.47
16,466,358 8,443.6%
165.22 117.96
424 39 1,023.65
1,272.00 283,81
325.32 22399
30.90 23853
0.6! 018
122.47 182.22
66.53 7198
101.26 -
2,513.20 2,742.32
18,979.78 11,186.01
414,97 414.97
691553 6,112,410
7,330.50 6,527.07
1,881.31 1.557.73
1,284.36 1,013.48

6,208 81
122.69 119.53
9,587.17 1,690.74
300.00 20225
195.51 227.51
57.11 21.67
101619 1,135.05
35329 138.73
73.96 7427
66.0% 78.72
2,062.11 1,968.20
11,649.28 4,658,94
18,979.78 11,186.01

Jax f%
tor 's=d Chief Executive Officer

DI'N H,_l7'|5303
Place ; [+!lerabad

g

Gayathri Chandramouliswmn

Company Secretary
Membership No.: 41863

Place: Hyderabad

Date: 23 August 2023



Quality Care India Limited
Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss
(Al amounts in ¥ miilions, except share data and where otherwise stated)

' E Notes For the year ended
la
e 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
I Revenue from operations 4.20 10,401.38 10,223.07
il Other income 421 95.91 59.64
II Total income {I+I1) 10,501.29 10,282£.
IV Expenses
(i) Purchases of medical consumables and pharmacy items 2,355.75 2,366.96
(ii) Changes in inventories of medical consumables and pharmacy items 422 (43.23) {0.38)
(iii) Employee benefits expense 4.23 1,498.49 1,576.98
(iv) Other expenses 424 4,504.06 4,126.27
Total expenses (IV) 8.315.07 8,069.83
V Earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation (EBITDA) (1I-1V) T 2,186.22 2,212.88
(i) Finance costs 425 695.66 136.02
(ii) Depreciation and amortisation expense 426 651.15 715.03
V1 Profit before tax 839.41 1,161.83
VII Income Tax expensef(credit):
(i) Current tax expense 427 121.50 245.00
(i) MAT Credit 4.27 (74.62) - o-
(iii) Income tax relating to earlier periods 427 157.63 22.15
(iv) Deferred tax expense 427 261.77 (160.57)
Total tax expense 466.28 106.58
VIII Profit for the year (VI-VII) 373.13 1,055.25
IX Other comprehensive income:
(i) Items that will not be reclassified to Statement of Profit and Loss
(a) Remeasurement of post-employment benefit obligations (6.06) {4.44)
(i) Income tax relating to these items 2.12 = 1.52
Other Comprehensive income for the year, net of tax (1X) 3.94) (2.92)
X Total comprehensive income for the year (VIIHIX) 369.19 1,052.33
Earnings per equity share (Nominal value of equity share Z10 (31 March 2022 : X10))
Basic Eamings per equity share (in %) 4.28 8.99 25.43
Diluted Earnings per equity share (in %) 8.99 25.43
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the standalone financial statements.
This is the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss referred to in our report of even date.
For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP For and on behalf of Board of Directors of
Firm's Registration No: 012754N/N500016 Quality Care India Limited
[ y CIN: U85110TG1992PLCO14728
1 ~
0 =21 = — —_—
(}\ 1 ipe ! p—— el ——
Srikanth Pola Massimilians Cotella . Jas Singh
-Partner Director Di and Chief Executive Officer
Membership No: 220916 DIN: 08729468 DIN: 02703303

Place : Dubai, UAE
1
|

ilas Mastogi
Chief Fitancial Officer
Place : Hyderabad

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 23 August 2023

Date; 23 August 2023

Place ; Hyderabad

v

Gavathri Chandramoulieswaran

Company Secretary

Membership No.: 41863

Place: Hyderabad

Date: 23 August 2023



Quality Care India Limited
Standalone Statement of Cash Flows
(All amounts in  millions, except share data and where otherwise stated)

Particulars For the year ended For the vear ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Cash flow from operating activities
Profit bafore tax 839.41 1,161.83
Adjustments:
Changes in fair value of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (11.28) (26.95)
Depreciation and amortisation expense 651.15 715.03
Expected credit loss 14.15 50.87
Property, plant and equipment written off - 5.29
(Profit)/Loss on sale of Property, plant and equipment {0.80) 2438
Lease remeasurement Gain (5.49) -
Share based compensation expense - (14.58)
Income/liabilities written back from operating activities (0.10) -
Interest income (34.839) (23.59)
Finance costs 695.66 300.60
Change in operating assets and liabilities: 2,147.81 2,170.98
(Increase) in inventories (49.92) (3.41)
{Increase) in trade receivables (402.34) (76.47)
(Increase)/decrease in loans (0.43) 11.43
Decrease in other assets 545 38.05
(Increase)/decrease in other financial assets 28.84 {91.32)
Increase/{decrease) in trade payables (83.42) 148.80
Increasef(decrease) in provisions (3.21) 13.90
(Decrease) in other financial liabilities (7.62) (42.31)
Increase/(decrease) in other liabilities - (12.67) 0.70
Cash generated from operations 1,622.49 2,170.35
Income tax paid, net (101.78) (309.55)
Net cash inflow from operating activities (A) . 1,520.71 1,860.80
Cash flow from investing activities
Payments for property, plant and equipment {1,240.27) (595.59)
Proceeds from sale of Property, plant and equipment 11.73 50.97
Purchase of mutual funds (1,292.98) (1,349.93)
Sale of mutual funds 1,903.01 353.23
Interest received on fixed deposits 8.34 20.70
Intetest received on income tax refund 20.43 -
Payment for acquisition of subsidiaries (7,376.18) -
Investment in fixed deposits (2.00) (267.20)
Proceeds from maturity of fixed deposits 224.54 49159
Net cash outflow from investing activities (B) : ; (7,743.38) (1,296.23)
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Quality Care India Limited
Standalone Statement of Cash Flows
(All amounts in T millions, except share data and where otherwise stated)

For the yvear ended For the vear ended

e 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Cash flow from financing activities a
Proceeds from borrowings 623.58 85.53
Repayments of borrowings {292.25) (286.29)
Proceeds from issue of preference shares . 6,591.14 -
Interest paid (169.97) (169.02)
Payment of lease liabilities (424.50) {402,99)
Net cash inflow/{outflow) from financing activities (C) = 6,328.00 (77277
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents(A + B + C) 105.33 (208.20)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 223.99 432.19
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year (note 1) 32932 223.99
A - For the vear ended For the vear ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Note 1:
Cash and cash equivalents as per above comprise of the following
- Included in cash and cash equivalents (refer note 4.11(a))
Cash on hand 551 6.64
Balances with banks in current accounts 323.81 217.35
Balances as per Statement of Cash Flows 32932 22399

This is the Standalone Statement of Cash Flows referred to in our report of even date.

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP For and on behalf of Board of Directors of
Firm's Registration No: 012754N/N500016 Quality Care India Limited
CIN: U851 lOTGl992PLC014728

Qi j\ k- :mut ™

Srikanth Pola Massimiliano Colella - .las.ll :

Partner Drirector i :

Membership Ne: 220916 DIN: 08729468 Dl'N 02705303
Placle : Dubai, UAE Place : Hyderabad

G athrl Chandramoulieswaran
Chlef Financial Officer Company Secretary

Place : Hyderabad Membership No.: 41863

Place: Hyderabad

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 23 August 2023 Date: 23 August 2023 Date: 23 August 2023



Quality Care India Limited
Standalone Statement of changes in Equity
{All amounts in ¥ miliions, except share data and where otherwise stated)

A. Share Capital

Equity share capital

Particulars Notes Number of shares Amount
Balance at 1 April 2021 41,496,894 414.97
Changes in equitv share capital 4.13 (a) - -
Balance as at 31 March 2022 41,496,894 414.97
Chanpes in e;uirt share capital _ 4.13 (a) - -
Balance ss at 31 March 2023 41,496,894 444,97
B. Other equity st -~
Attributable to owners of Quality Care India Limited
{ . Reserves and surplus
Particulars Securities Capital Share options Share Equity Retained Total
premium reserve ontstanding warraats | component of earsings
account reserve CCPS !

Balance at 1 April 2021 | 445724 | 1131 | 7.51 707 | : §01.22 | 5074.35
Profit for the year | k - - G - 1,055.25 1.055.25
Other comprehensive income, net of tax - - - - - | (2.92) (2.92)
Stock option compensation for the year 1 - (7.51) (7.07) - - 114.58)
| Balance at 31 March 2022 | _ 445724 1131 | - L -1 1,643.55 6,112.10 |
Profit for the year - - = - - 373.13 373.13
Other comprehensive income, net of tax - - - | - - {3.94) (3.94)
Equity component of compulsory convertible | 567431 667,48
preference shares (CCPS) r ) ; | .
| Deferred tax on equity compornent of CCPS | | ST | -1 (233.24)! -1 (233.24)
Balance as at 31 March 2023 |  4,457.24 | 1131 -1 -1 43424 2,012.74 6,915.53
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the standalone financial statements.

This is the $tandalone Statement of changes in Equity referred to in our report of even date.

fof Board Diresi

For Price Waterhouse Chartered a'urailult‘;%;;i‘ﬁd?a L?:“;' freciors of

Accountants LLP ,,h.. T T 1o ZPLI ey

Firm's Regls':r mnNo 0] 2?54' NSO

e t J
1
Massimiliano Colellz- ingh Vikas Rasé
Pmnel:'th P"I’ [irector Dlre Chief Executive Officer Chief Financij Officer
. DHN: 08729468 DIN: 02705303 Place - Hyderabad
Membership No: 220916 Place - Dubai, UAE Place : Hyderabad

Place: Hyderabad

Date ; 23 2023
Date: 23 August 2023 ate : 23 August

Date : 23 Aupust 2023

Gayathri Chandnmnulieswaran
Company Secretary
Membership No.: 41863
Place - Hyderabad

Date 23 Augusi 2023



Quality Care India Limited
Notes to the standalone financial statements
(All amonnts in ¥ millions, except share data and where otherwise stated)

1. Corporate information
The standalone financial statements of "Quality Care India Limited” (“the Company” or “QCIL") ars for the year
ended 31 March 2023, The Company is a public company domiciled in India and is incorporated under the provisions

of the Companies Act applicable in India. The registered office of the Company is located at #6-3-248/2, Road no. I,
Banjara Hills, Hyderabad - 500034.

Incorporated in 1992, Qual'ity Care India Limited is primarily engaged in providing healthcare and related services.
The Company has a network of multi-speciality hospitals across various cities in India.

The Holding Company of QCIL is Touch Healthcare Private Limited and the Ultimate Holding Company upto 21
June 2019 was Abraaj Growth Markets Health Fund General Partner Limited, United Arab Emirates (“UAE”). With

effect from 21 June 2019, the Ultimate Holding Company of QCIL has changed to Evercare Health Fund, L.P,
Cayman Islands.

The standalone financial statements were approved for issue in accordance with a resolution of the Board of
Directors on 23 August, 2023,

2. Basis of preparation of Financial Statements

a) Statement of Compliance

The standalone financial statements of the Company have been prepared and presenied in accordance with all
material aspects with the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS}) notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act,
2013 (the Act) [Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015] and other relevant provisions of the Ack.

Details of accounting policies are included in Note 3.

b) New and amended standards adopted )
The Ministry of Corporate Affairs had vide notification dated 23 March 2022 notified Companies (indian Accounting
Standards) Amendment Rules, 2022 which amended certain accounting standards, and are effective 1 April 2022.

These amendments did not have any impact on the amounts recognised in prior periods and are not expecied to
significantly affect the current or future periods.

New and amended standards issued but not effective
The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has vide notification dated 31 March 2023 notified Companies (Indian Accounting

Standards) Amendment Rules, 2023 {the ‘Rules’) which amends certain accounting standards, and are effective 1
April 2023,

The Rules predominantly amend Ind AS 12, Income taxes, and Ind AS 1, Presentation of financial statements. The
other 2mendments to Ind AS notified by these rules are primarily in the nature of clarifications.

These amendments are not expected to have a material impact on the Company in the current or future reporiing
periods and on foreseeable future transactions. Specifically, no changes would be necessary as a consequence of

amendments made to Ind AS 12 as the Company’s accounting policy already complies with the now mandatory
treatment.
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Quality Care India Limited
Notes to the standalone financial statements
{All amounts in T millions, except share data and where otherwise stated)

¢) Basis for Measurement

The standalone financial staternents have been prepared on a going concern basis under historical cost, except for the
following:

(i) certain financial assets and financial liabilities are measured either at fair value or at amortised cost depending on
the classification;

(ti) Liabilities for cash-settled share-based payment arrangements; and

(iii) employee defined benefit liability are recognised as the net total of the fair value of plan assets, plus actuarial
losses, less actuarial gains and the present value of the defined benefit obligation.

d) Functional and presentation currency

The standalone financial statements are presented in Z and all values are rounded to the nearest millions, except when
otherwise indicated.

Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where a newly issued Accounting Standard is initially
adopted or a revision to an existing accounting siandard requires a change in the accounting policy hitherto in use or
for the purpose of better presentation of financial statements. Management evaluates all recently issued or revised
Accounting Standards on an ongoing basis and accordingly changes the Accounting policies as applicable.

¢) Current and non-current classification
The Company presents assets and liabilities in the Balance Sheet based on current/ non-current classification.

An asset is treated as current when it is:

(i} Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle
(ii} Held primarily for the purpose of trading

(iii) Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

(iv) Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve
months after the reporting period

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when:

(1) [t is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle

(ii) It is held primarily for the purpose of trading

(iii} It is due to be seitled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

(iv) There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting
period

All other liabilities are classified as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilitics are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash
equivalents. The Company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle.

3A. Significant accounting policies
a. Foreign curreacies
The Company’s financial statements are presenied in Indian Rupees, which is also its funetional currency.
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Quality Care India Limited
Notes to the standalone financial statements
{AM amounts in ¥ millions, except share data and where otherwise stated)

b. Fair value measurement
The Company measures financial instruments at fair value at each Balance Sheet date.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that
the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either;

(&} In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
(ii) In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when
pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

The Company uses valuation technigues that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are
available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of
unohservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole:

Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
directly or indirectly observable

Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company determines
whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

The Company’s management determines the policies and procedures for both recurring fair value
measurement, such as unquoted financial assets measured at fair value, and for non-recurring measurement.

External valuers are involved for valuation of significant assets, such as unquoted financial assets, and significant
liabilities, such as contingent comsideration. Involvement of exiernal valuers is decided upon annually by the
management. Selection criteria include markei knowledge, reputation, independence and whether professional
standards are maintained.

At each reporting date, the management analyses the movements in the values of assets and liabilities which are
required to be re-measured or re-assessed as per the Company’s accounting policies. For this analysis, the

management verifies the major inputs applied in the latest valuation by agreeing the information in the valuation
computation to relevant documents,
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Quality Care India Lintited
Notes to the standalone financial statements
{All amounts in ¥ millions, except share data and where otherwise stated)

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of
the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above,

c. Revenue recognition
Revenue primarily comprises fees charged under contract for inpatient and/or outpatient hospital services and
includes sale of medical and non-medical items. Hospital services include charges for accommodation, medical

professional services, equipment, radiology, laboratory, pharmaceutical goods among others, used in treatments
provided to the patients.

Revenue is recognized on satisfaction of performance obligation upon transfer of control of promised products or
services to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration the Company expects to receive in exchange for
those products or services.

The Company does not expect to have any contracts where the period between the transfer of the promised goods or
services 1o the cusiomer and paymeni by the customer exceeds one year. As a consequence, it does not adjust any of
the transaction prices for the time value of money.

The Company satisfies a performance obligation and recognises revenue over time, if one of the following criteria is
met:

(i) the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided by the Company’s performance as the
Company performs;

{ii) the Company’s performance creates or enhances an asset that the customer controls as the asset is created or
enhanced; or

(iii) the Company’s performance does not create an asset with an alternative use to the Company and an entity has an
enforceable right to payment for performance completed to date.

For performance obligations where one of the above conditions are not met, revenue is recognised at the point in time
at which the performance obligation is satisfied.

Goods and services tax is not received by the Company on its own account. Rather, it is tax collected by the Company
on behalf of the Government. Accordingly, it is excluded from revenue.

Revenue from health care services and related activities

Income from healthcare services is recognised as revenue when the related services are rendered wnless significant
future uncertainties exists. Revenue is also recognised in relation to the services rendered, to the patients who are
undergoing treatment/observation on the balance sheet date to the extent of services rendered. Revenue is recognised
net of discounts and concessions, if any, given to the patients and disallowances including claims.

Other operating revenue comprises revenue from varions ancillary revenue generating activities such as clinical
research, income from outsourced facilities and academic/training services. The revenue in respect of such
arrangements is recognized as and when services are performed.
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Quality Care India Limited
Notes to the standalone financizl statements
(AH amounts in ¥ millions, except share data and where otherwise stated)

{nbilled receivables and Unearned revenue

Contract assets are recognised when there is excess of revenue eamed over billings on contracts. Contract assets are
classified as unbilled receivables when there is unconditional right to receive cash, and only passage of time is
required, as per contractual terms. Other contract assets have been disclosed as contract assets within other assets.

Unearned revenue (“contract lability™) is recognised when there are billings in excess of revenues. The billing
schedules agreed with customers could include periodic performance-based payments and/or milestone-hased
progress payments. Invoices are payable within contractually apreed credit period. Advances received for services are
reported as Yabilities until all conditions for revenue recognition are met.

Contract modifications - Services added that are not distinct are accounted for on a cumulative catch up basis, while
those that are distinct are accounted for prospectively, either as a separate contract if the additional services are priced
at the standalone selling price, or as a termination of the existing contract and creation of a new coatract if not priced
at the standalone selling price.

Revenue from sale of pharmacy

Revenue from sale of pharmacy is recognised when control is transferred to the customer and no significant
uncertainty exists regarding the amount of the consideration that will be derived from the sale of the goods and
regarding its collection.

Interest Income

For all debt instruments measured at amortised cost, interest income is recorded using the effective interest rate (EIR).
EIR is the rate that exacily discounts the estimated future cash payments or receipts over the expected life of the
financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset or to
the amortised cost of a financial liability. When calculating the effective interest rate, the Company estimates the
expected cash flows by considering all the contractuat terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment,

extension, call and similar options) but does not consider the expected credit losses. Interest income is included under
other income in the Statement of profit and loss.

Dividend Income
Dividend income is recognized when the Company's right to receive dividend is established.

d. Taxes
Current income tax
Current income fax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the

taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively
enacted, at the reporting date.

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in
other comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying
transaction either in OCI or directly in equity. Management periodicaily evaluates positions taken in the tax returns
with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and considers whether it is
probable that a taxation authority will accept as uncertain tax treatment. The Company measures its tax balances
either based at the most likely amount or expected value, depending on which method provides a better prediction of
the resolution of the uncertainty.
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Quality Care lndia Limited
Notes to the standalone financial statements
(All amounts in ¥ millions, except share data and where otherwise stated)

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the Balance Sheet approach on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets
and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except when the deferred tax liability
arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss. .

Deferred tax asseis are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits
and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused
tax losses can be utilised, except when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises
from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time
of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is

realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at
the reporting date.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
utilised. Unrecognised deferred rax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it
has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other

comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying
transaction either in OCI or direcily in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilitics are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) credit is recognised as an asset only when and to the extent it is reasonably certain
that the Company will pay normal income tax during the specified period. Such asset is reviewed at each Balance
Sheet date and the carrying amount of the MAT credit asset is written down to the extent there is no longer a
convincing evidence to the effect that the Company will pay normal income tax during the specified period.



Quality Care India Limited
Notes to the standalone financial statements
(All amounts in T millions, except share data and where otherwise stated)

¢. Property, plant and equipment (“PPE")

All other items of properiy, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less depreciation. Historical cost includes
expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items, Cost may also include transfers from equity of
any gains or losses on qualifying cash flow hedges of foreign cumrency purchases of property, plant and equipment.

Subsequent cosis are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company
and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The cartying amount of any component accounted for as a separate
asset is derecognised when replaced. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to profit or loss during the
reporting petiod in which they are incurred,

Transition to Ind AS

On transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all of its property, plant and

equipment measured as per the previous GAAP and use that cartying value as the desmed cost of the property, plant
and equipment.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate the cost of the assets, net of their residual values,
over their estimated useful lives as follows:

Asset class Usefui life (years)

[Buildings . 60 |
Plant and Machinery used in medical and surgical 13

Furniture and Fixtures 10 |
Vehicles 8

Office Equipment 5

Computer equipment {end user devices) || = 3 |

Leasehold improvements are depreciated over the shorier of their useful life or the lease term, unless the entity
expects to use the assets beyond the lease term.

The useful lives have been determined based on technical evaluation done by the management's expert which are
higher than those specified by Schedule II to the Companies Act; 2013, in order to reflect the actual usage of the
assels. The residual values are not more than 3% of the original cost of the asset.

The assets® residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting
period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to ifs recoverable amount if the asset’s carying amount is
greater than its estimated recoverable amount. Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds
with carrying amount. These are included in profit or loss within other gains/(losses).

f. Goodwill and other intangible assets

Other intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial recognition,
other intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses.
Internally generated intangibles, excluding capitalised development costs, are not capitalised and the related
expenditure is reflected in the Statement of profit and loss in the period in which the expenditure is incurred.
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Quality Care India Limited
Notes to the standalone financial statements
{All amounts in ¥ millions, except share data and where otherwise stated)

Other intangible assets are amortised on straight line basis over the estimated useful economic life. The estimated
useful life of other intangible assets is mentioned below:

|Asset class Useful life {vears)
[Software 3to5

Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of other intangible assets are measured as the difference between the net

disposal proceeds and the carrying amounts of the assets and are recognised in the Statement of profit and loss
{"SPL") when the assets are derecognised.

Goodwill arising on business combination is recorded at excess of the consideration paid over the fair value of the net
assets taken-over and is subsequently measured at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any.

g. Borrowing cost

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition or construction of an asset that necessarily takes a substantial
period of time to get ready for its intended use are capitalised as part of the cost of the asset. All other borrowing
costs are expensed in the period in which they occur. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity
incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing cost also includes exchange differences to the extent
regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing costs.

h. Leases

AS a lessee

Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a corresponding liability at the date at which the leased asset is
available for use by the Company. Contracts may contain both lease and non-lease components. The Company
aflocaies the consideration in the contract to the lease and non-lease components based on their relative stand-alone
prices. However, for leases of real estate for which the Company is a lessee, it has elected not to separate lease and
non-lease components and instead accounts for these as a single lease component.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially measured on a present value basis. Lease liabilities include the
net present value of the following lease payments:

» fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less any lease incentives receivable

+ variable lease payment that are based on an index or a rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at the
comumnencement date

» amounts expected to be payable by the Company under residual value guarantees

» the exercise price of a purchase option if the Company is reasonably certain to exercise that option, and

« payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the Company exercising that option.

Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain extension options are also included in the measurement
of the liability. The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be
readily determined, which is generally the case for leases in the Company, the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate is
used, being the rate that the individual lessee would have to pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset of
similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic environment with similar terms, security and conditions.
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Quality Care India Limited
Notes to the standalone financial statements
(A1l amounts in T millions, except share data and where otherwise stated)

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the Company:

+» where possible, uses recent third-party financing received by the individval lessee as a starting point, adjusted to
reflect changes in financing conditions since third party financing was received

« yses 8 build-up approach that starts with a risk-free interest rate adjusted for credit risk for leases held by the
Company, which does not have recent third party financing, and

« makes adjustments specific to the lease, e.g. term, country, currency and security.

If a readily observable amortising loan rate is available to the individual lessee (through recent financing or market

data) which has a similar payment profile to the lease, then the Company use that rate as a starting point to determine
the incremental borrowing rate.

The Company is exposed to potential future increases in variable lease payments based on an index or rate, which are
not included in the lease liability until they take effect. When adjustments to lease payments based on an index or rate
take effect, the lease liability is reassessed and adjusted against the right-of-use asset.

Lease payments are allocated between principal and finance cost. The finance cost is charged to profit or loss over the
lease period so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability for each
petiod.

Variable lease payments that depend on sales are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which the condition that
triggers those payments occurs.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the following:

» the amount of the initial measurement of lease liability

« any lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received
= any initial direct costs, and

= restoration costs,

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the shorter of the asset's useful life and the lease term on a straight-

line basis. If the Company is reasonably certain to exercise a purchase option, the right-of-use asset is depreciated
over the underlying asset’s useful life.

Payments associated with short-term leases of equipment and all leases of low-value assets are recognised on a
straight-line basis as an expense in profit or loss. Short-term leases are leases with a lease term of 12 months or less.
Low-value assets comprise 1T equipment and small items of office furniture

i. Inventories
Inventory of medical supplies, drugs and other consumables are valued at lower of cost or net realizable value, Cost
of medical supplies, drugs and other consumables is determined on ihe basis of Weighted Average Method. Net

realizable value is the estimateqd selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated cosis necessary to
make the sale,

Cost of inventories include purchase price, import duties and other taxes excluding taxes those are
subsequently recoverable from the concerned authorities, freight inwards and other expenditure incurred in bringing
the inventories to their present location and condition,



Quality Care India Limited
Nates to the standalone financial statements

(All amounts in T millions, except share data and where otherwise stated)

4. Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company’s non-financial assets are reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any indication
of impairment. If any such indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated.

For impairment iesting, assets that do not generate independent cash inflows are companied together into cash-
generating units (CGUs). Each CGU represents the smaltlest company of assets that generates cash inflows that are
largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or CGUs.

Goodwill arising from a business combination is allocated to CGUs or groups of CGUs that are expected to benefit
from the synergies of the combination.

The recoverable amount of a CGU (or an individual asset) is the higher of its value in use and its fair value less costs
to sell. Value in use is based on the estimated future cash flows, discounted to their present value using a pre-tax

discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the tfime value of money and the risks specific to the CGU (or
the asset).

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its estimated recoverable
amount. Impairment losses are recognised in the Statement of profit and loss.

An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not subsequently reversed. in respect of other assets for which
impairment loss has been recognised in prior periods, the Company reviews at each reporting daie whether there is
any indication that the loss has decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a
change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. Such a reversal is made only to the extent that the
asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or
amottisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised.

k. Provision and contingencies
Provisions
Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past

event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

When the Company expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, reimbursement is recognised as a separate
asset, but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to a provision is presented in the
Statement of Profit and Loss net of any reimbursement.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects,
when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the
passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.
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Quality Care India Limited
Notes to the standalone financial statements
(All amounts in ¥ millions, except share data and where otherwise stated)

Contingencies
Contingent liabilities is identified and disclosed with respect to following:

(i) a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the entity; or

(i) a present obligation that arises from past events but is not recognised because:
- it is not probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation;
- the amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability.

Contingent assets are neither recognized nor disclosed, unless inflow of economic benefits is probable.
However, when realization of income is vittually certain, related asset is recognized.

1. Employee benefits
Short term benefits
Short Term Employee Benefits are accounted for in the period during which the services have been rendered.

Post-employment benefits and other long term employee benefits

Provident Fund: Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme. The
contributions to the provident fund administered by the Central Govermment under the Provident Fund Act, 1952, are
charged to the Staternent of profit and loss (“SPL”) for the year in which the contributions are due. The Company has
no obligation, other than the contribution payable to the provident fund.

Gratuity: The Company operates a defined benefit gratuity plan in India, which requires contributions to be made to
a separately administered fund. The cost of providing benefits under the defined benefit plan is determined using the
projected unit credit method.

Remeasurements, comprising mainly of actuarial gains and losses, are recognised immediatety in the Balance Sheet
with a corresponding debit or credit to retained eamings through QCI in the period in which they occur.
Remeasurements are not reclassified to Statement of profit and loss in subsequent periods.

Leave Encashment: Accrued liability for leave encashment including sick leave is determined on actuarial valuation
basis using Projected Unit Credit (PUC) Method at the end of the year and provided completely in profit and loss
account as per Ind AS - 19 "Emplovee Benefits”,

m. Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity
instrument of another entity.

Financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value
through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset.

Equity instruments
All equity investments in scope of Ind-AS 109 are measured at fair vaiue. Equity instruments which are held for
trading are classified as at FVTPL. For all other equity instruments, the Company decides to classify the same either

as at FYTOCI or FVTPL. The Company makes such election on an instrument-by- instrument basis. The
classification is made on initial recognition and is irrevocable.
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Quality Care India Limited
Notes to the standalone financial statements
(All amounts in T millions, except share data and where otherwise stated)

If the Company decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOCI, then all fair value changes on the instrument,
excluding dividends, are recognized in the OCI. There is no recycling of the amounts from OCI to Statement of profit
and loss, even on sale of investment, However, the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity.

De-recognition

A financial asset is primarily derecognised when:

(i) The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

{ii) The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay
the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a “pass- through’ arrangement; and either
(a) the Company has trensferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b} the Company has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has iransferred control of the asset.

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership.

When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred
control of the asset, the Company continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the Company’s
continuing involvement. In that case, the Company also recognises an assoctated liability. The transferred asset and
the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Company has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the
original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Company could be reguired
to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and
recognition of impairment loss on the following financial assets and credit risk exposure:

Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortised cost e.g., loans, debt securities, deposits,
trade receivables, unbilled receivables and bank balances.

The Company follews ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on trade receivables
that do not contain a significant financing component.

The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it
recognises impairment loss aliowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right from its initial recognition,

For trade receivables or any another financial asset that result from transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS
113, the Company always measures the loss allowance at an amount equal to the lifetime expected credit losses.
Further, for the purpose of measuring lifetime expected credit loss allowance for these assets, the Company has used a
practical expedient method as permitted under Ind AS 109. This expected credit loss allowance is computed based on

a provision matrix which takes into account historical credit loss experience and adjusted for forward-looking
information.
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Quality Care India Limited
Notes to the standalone financial statements
(All amounts in T millions, except share data and where otherwise stated)

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the expected life of a
financial instrument.

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Company in accordance with the contract

and all the cash flows that the entity expects to receive (i.e., all cash shortfalls), discounted at the original EIR. When
estimating the cash flows, an entity is required to consider:

All contractual terms of the financial instrument (including prepayment, extension, call and similar options) over the
expected life of the financial instrument, However, in rare cases when the expected life of the financial instrument

cannot be estimated reliably, then the entity is required to use the remaining contractual term of the financial
instnrment

Cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized as income/expense in
Statement of Profit and Loss ("SPL"}). The Balance Sheet presentation for various financial instrumenis is deseribed
below:

Financial assets measured at amortised cost: ECL is presented as an allowance, i.e., as an integral part of the
measurement of those assets in the Balance Sheet. The allowance reduces the net carrying amount. Until the asset
meets write-off criteria, the Company does not reduce impairment allowanee from the gross cartying amount.

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of borrowings and payables, net of directly
attributable transaction costs.

The Company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables and borrowings.

Subsequent measurement
Borrowings
Afier initial recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost wsing the EIR

method. Gains and losses are recognised in Statement of profit and loss ("SPL") when the liabilities are derecognised
as well as through the EIR amortisation process,

Amoriised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are
an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amnortisation is included in the Statement of profit and loss.

Trade and other pavables

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Company prior to the end of financial year
which are unpaid. The amounts are unsecured and are usually paid as per agreed terms. Trade and other payables are
presented as current liabilities unless payment is not due within 12 months after the reporting period. They are

recognised initially at their fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method.




Quality Care India Limited
Notes to the standalone financial statements
(All amounts in ¥ millions, except share dats and where otherwise stated)

De-recognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the cbligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.
When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or
the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the de-

recognition of the original lability and the recognition of & new liability. The difference in the respective carrying
amounts is recognised in Statement of profit and loss ("SPL").

Offsetting of financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the Balance Sheet if there is a

currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention 1o seitle on a net basis, to
realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously,

n. Earnings per share

Basic eamings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity
shareholders (after deducting preference dividends and attributable taxes) by the weighted average number of equity
shares outstanding during the period.

For the purpese of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity
shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year are adjusted for the effects of all
dilutive potential equity shares.

0. Cash flow statement

The cash flow statement is prepared as per the Indireet Method. Cash Flow Statements present the cash flows by
opetating, financing and investing activities of the Company. Operating cash flows are arrived by adjusting profit or
loss before tax for the effects of transactions of a non- cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future

operating cash receipts or payments, and items of income or expense associated with investing or financing cash
flows.

For the purpose of Cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash on hand and balances with banks in
current accounts, balances in cash credit accounts and short-term deposits with maturity of three months.

p- Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the Balance Sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with
maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

q. Investments in subsidiaries and joint venture

The Company has elected to recognise its investments in equity instruments in subsidiaries and joint venture at cost in

accordance with the option available in Ind AS 27, ‘Separate Financial Statements’ .
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Quality Care India Limited
Notes to the standalone financial statements
(All amounts in ¥ millions, except share data and where otherwise stated)

r. Share-based payment transactions

The grant date fair value of equity setiled share-based payment awards/warrants granted to employees is recognised as
an employee expense, with a corresponding increase in equity, over the period that the employees unconditionatly
become entitled to the awards/ warrants. The amount recognised as expense is based on the estimate of the number of
awards/ warrants for which the related service and non-market vesting conditions are expected to be met, such that the
amount ultimately recognised as an expense is based on the number of awards/warrants that do meet the related
service and non-market vesting conditions at the vesting date. For share-based payment awards/warrants with non-
vesting conditions, the grant date fair value of the share-based payment is measured to reflect such conditions and
there is no true-up for differences between expected and actual outcomes.

s. Measurement of profit/Earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation (EBITDA)
As permitted by the Guidance Note on division Il — Ind AS Schedule III to the Act, the Company has ¢lected to

present earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation {EBITDA) as a separate line item on the face of
the Statement of profit and loss.

In its measurement of EBITDA, the Company includes other income but does not include depreciation and
amortisation expense, impairment losses, finance cost and tax expense.

t. Business combination

The acquisition method of accounting is used to account for all business combinations.

The consideration transferred for the acquisition comprises the

i) fair values of the assets fransferred

ii} liabilities incurred to the former owners of the acquired business

iii) equity interests issued by the Company

iv) fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a contingent consideration arrangemeni.

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent Yabilities assumed in a business combination are, with
limited exceptions, measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition date.

The excess of the consideration transferred over the fair value of the net identifiable assets acquired is recorded as
goodwill. If those amounts are less than the fair value of the net identifiable assets of the business acquired, the
difference is recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity as capital reserve provided there is
clear evidence of the underlying reasons for classifying the business combination as a bargain purchase. In other
cases, the bargain purchase gain is recognised directly in equity as capital reserve.

3B. Key accounting estimates and judgements
a. Defined benefit plans and other long-term benefit plan

The cost and present value of the defined benefit gratuity plan and leave encashment (other long-term benefit plan)
are determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ
from actual developments in the future. These include the determination of the discount rate, future salary increases
and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit

obligation and other long-term benefits are highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are
reviewed at each reporting date.

b. Useful lives of depreciable and amortisable assets

The Company reviews the estimated useful lives and residual value of Property, plant and equipment and intangible
assets at the end of each reporting period. The factors such as changes in the expected level of usage, technological
developments and product life-cycle, could significantly impact the economic useful lives and the residual values of

these assets. Consequently, the future depreciation and amonrtization charge could be revised and thereby could have
an impact on the future years.
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Quality Care India Limited
.Notes to the standalone financial statements

(All amounts in T millions, except share data and where otherwise stated)

¢. Impairment of Goodwill

Goodwill with indefinite life is tested for impairment on an annual basis and whenever there is an indication
thai the recoverable amount of a cash generating unit is less than its carrying amount. The recoverable amount of cash
generating units is determined based on higher of value-in-use and fair value less cost to sell.

The goodwill impairment test is performed at the level of the cash-generating unit which are benefiting from the
synergies of the acquisition and which represents the lowest level at which goodwilt is monitored for internal
management purposes. Market related information and estimates are used to determine the recoverable amount.

d. Expected Credit Loss

The impairment provision for trade receivables and unbitled receivables is based on assumpticns about risk of defautt
and expected loss rates. The Company uses judgements in making certain assumptions and selecting inputs to
determine impairment of these trade receivables, based on the Company’s historical experience towards potential
billing adjustments, delays and defaults at the end of each reporting period.

e, Assessment of claims and litigations disclosed as contingent liabilities

There are certain claims and litigations which have been assessed as contingent liabilities by the
Management which may have an effect on the operations of the Company should the same be decided against the
Company.

The Management has assessed that no further provision/adjusiment is required to be made in these Standalone
Financial Statements for the above matters, other than what has been already recorded, as they expect a favourable
decision based on their assessment and the advice given by the exiemal legal counsels/ professional advisors,

f. Fair valuation of assets and liabilities acquired in business combination

The Company allocates the purchase price of the acquired entities to the tangible, intangibie and other assets acquired
and liabilities assumed based on their estimated fair values, The Company engages third-party external appraisat firms
to assist in determining the fair values of the acquired assets and liabilities wherever needed. Such valuation requires
the Company to make significant estimate and assumptions, especially with respect to identification and valuation of
intangible assets and fair value of property, plant and equipment.

use C rtered A

- Q;\\O TLPINBAC 500 04./ -3

f W Ky
g. 1. e ',
® /&

W "?Nﬂ1zrs4ﬂmmm‘5 Y
=X Hyderabad * ==



| s5s0s'p
| 08°€sTp

| £TSPI'T

{(P1oF)

| 8¥'9€€
68°158°1

(01°91)
69°£2E

| 9E°4e8"

| 8L0SY'9
Lis)
16'8L1
ST0TY
69°'801°9
(kL 85}
75'98¢
16'08L%

e0],

¥T's
8901

79°c
(168
9T
L1771
{50°7)
£0°E
oT'1l

9991
6oz}
010
§8TT
617

HI'ST

SIIRA

615
s

0766

oo

SR'IT
LLLL

{os0)

0181
LI0%

67051

ooy

600
€L 12
69871

oD

TLOT
L8801

uandinbs
anndwo)

| s6€€
| Loee

| 9752
{6t0)
| 682
WL
[torD
| zse
| 129

| vT601

(o)
Sh1

|05

| e6001

Lz

| £9°€1

| 1568

wandinbs | saunxy pog

2WO

Y

8I'RPT1
(T0'L6c
(9€H5)
94898

| 08'0£01
tzoeze

(89'%)
ZLo9
8969
PSESEL

ey,

107

SPNPA

| suE
eTIS!
wosy)

s
(29°€6)

(g0

0L7TL

Araumasw
PUE JUll]

£CGETT
A=l
(67°9¢)
| 9,895
657756
[(£6'32T)
899
(16°65)
28759
| 6Ll

sdupng

1888 350-J0-1y Iy Jo La032983

L

| =h
Nz

e

_1005-ovy N

003y passyeud ©

€702 AMBIN € 1€ S¥ AUE] B
Tea’ aip 10§ a1y uouERr g
SUONRST

SUoLIpPY

TUT YHHEW 1€ 18 5 adusug
g3l a1 10§ 9 .an ELINTRETS on_.
ssunsafpe LYo

SUOHSRQg

SUOHIPPY
120z n1dy 10 18 S8 3oueeq

SAR DM

SIR55E SN-J0-1q3TY (M)

"S[JEIOp 1NN 10] pb-r 310U Jay3y “Surku s Awedwnog) U 0) sysuen Furpuad ate (5¢°501 © TTOT WIEW 1£) §5501 01 FurmBaiBSe pue jo spsap o 2wl (1)
wawdinba pre yweqd ‘Auadold uo sjrsp 2318Ys J0J 1t A0U T (1)

[oge
| 069¢

| 19%
(el
&6
[ 1s9
5°0)
| zes
| s6'is

| 15111

{6c°0)
98'L

| 81

| 19701

{z90)

| 619

| voie

FYLTUTO Y]

99°9£L]
SIF8H

€I'0EE']
{(v1of)
pLLOT
£5°851°L
0P
Zr el
£'900°1

6L°990°€
(P
L9Ztl
SO°SEE
L't
{orzs
£E'9TT
|LGOH'T

Alduigein
pue JUelg

95907
0T

£
azo
£6'6€
16'F72
Tz o)
PoLl
[1TA

sI'ELP
(6Z0}
pL9t
191
£1SEF
(9¢0)
SLLL
YL'LSE

suIwmdaosdug
Poyasear]

| 10vs0'
| 09050

| sopet

| seer

| ogert

| sTov

| 010z

| 99°8¥E'C

| oL os
06'L6T'T

| 06'1¥
| 00957

sBmppng

[sroce
| 8€°89¢

| sTocg
121
| 8E89€

| 8£°89¢

[ (mopq
(1) sap99)
poey
ployaalg

| 5c'8
EL
iy
| 600
3
Lot
| p60

pue|
PIOY3sEI]

20T YIERY [ V€ S¥ JOROOE Fuii 1163 12N
7707 YMEN € )6 5B JUR0MY JUTLIBI 57_”

£TOT WMEW [£ 18 58 NopeIsaadap paygnunade Jursol)

sjesodsip uQ

Jead oyt Feunp a8reys voneardsg

7707 YBW 1€ IE € uenewasdap pauemwne Suisol)

sfesodstp vO

Teak 2y Bunnp SBIE) tolelaudag

1z07 1rdy | 16 se uonepaadap pangmumase duvadp

ueprpAadaq pagnmnidy

€707 YME[Y 1§ ¢ se jumonre Supliaea ssor Fuser)

spesodsiy

UDHBUIQUIGS SSIUISNG JO JURCIIE UO SUDEPPY

SUOLIPPY

7702 YMEY 1€ 38 56 junowe Burkiaes s5043 Jureor)

sesodsic]
SUCHIpPY

[zoz 1dy 1 1 58 Junowe Twrdiass s50.08 Suwad

Junows Jul Ly 55000

sagnAIIRg

yuamdinba pus yued ‘A1iadoug (v)

r

'y

(PSTRIS FSLHUSNYI0 1w PITe wyep aTeys jdodwa ‘SUOH|IW 2 Ul SHUNOWE ||y}

SHIFNEIE [RIIURUY JRO{EPUIELS L) 0F $00N]
payuur BipE] 338 AEND



HUj1 JO JUNOWE S|aRIA03E] yEB1EER Y] paodxa ) WNGUlE QmAires a1e3aI8RE 2 ISNED JOU PINOM PITRA 51 JUROILN I)q
0L C] 0L o%0p S| WA T v Q0N M) EndeD 0 1500 afersay PawyBiam au) Bulaq “aje) JunooSIp xer-aid € 4q panumoastp & | .m _.m. \
Q ,

[[MPOOE (OIYA 12 [3A9] 1SIMO] SY3 SISSA Yajys Pie uoMISTBOR )
yun endsotf goea pagnuapt seq Auedwo) ag], (DD} 1N Funesuag gse € 01 [IMpood Jo anjes syt Bupsoo](e A4 Jraunredur fve uds

LI'F9S
L L1P95

(LA

| 80185
| 80°L8S
10101,

60°05¢ [ vT'99
| S6°6EE | PTEL
| sT8m | STRIT
| s9¢l 5oLl
| 0900z | 09'007
| ZI'E9 AR
| BFZEL | 8PTET
| pEsvs | 68T
€8l 6’1
| 95 966
| 55°0r% | PRELT
| 509 Sr09
lorosy | erelT
—ﬂuﬂ.ﬂ\ H..—H_.rfﬂ.—-vm
- (= [ [erp9s . [spEedt | - -
- [ - [etpos | sheen] [E== I
saeal | 1 T el | | [ITIT | 1
- - - Lm—
£ wE) A0 s g7 uwlz—1 2u0 weys s991 e, £ Tow) 21014 sk g7 sE T —[
TT0T PRI I WO SY £70Z YT 1€ U0 SV
m payaiwed 3G of, a1 paa|dwed 2q 0],
ey Feur Lo S 0) PeIB w03 1500 SIE PAPaasKe Sy YoTYM S5
- [ onesy | sg9z [ ee901 [z6'ssT't | 9mese [ prez | 8598
- |esesr esor | L£901 [ TeesT | omecy [ vLee | 8598
seop saead ¢ - sawad 7~ s bty sioal sagal £ — Sl - |
£ UUYl 2IDY £t L ) P uBy 55 oy £ UBY) 310} £-¢ z

TTOT YMBM [£ U0 5y

20} ssaaBoal-up-yaom piled ur sunowy

£T0Z NI I WO 5V

sonaLa st suandwasse A2y aa0qe agy ur sFueyd a(qssod A|qeuoseaI AU TBY} SaA11Y JuawaRBuRy ],

| S¥EBT
1L'99T

SEERT

Ll

1992

L9907

ALpOaTy

| shE6D’|
483
20 LR §527]

| p'169
| 72169

| 16t

Iue weyl §53

noo

suongafoid moy YseD 4 20 S1R Ymods ur-Bus| v Fuisn parejodennxa sread sat] puoAaq puw JUSWaGEUEN 101USS Aq Aosdde sB sreak aA1) 10§ ‘suonoafosd mof gses Jo areBardde | D0 Yoea Jo anjes asndiue sy1 9'r 98N Ul R

-sasodInd usmFeUR [RUISIUI 0] PAIOTTUOUL m__

£20T YW |§ I® SE Junome T iiaes you Fuisef)
7707 Py 1§ 1% 5% wonome Jupiaaes jen TursoJ)|

£Z0Z YPIBEA 1€ 1€ S¥ UOHBSILIOWE PAIERWNIE Funsor)y
adreys waunreduy

1824 3 10] 2310y VOLESTMOWY

707 MR TE I8 SE UOIJUSILIOWE P16 DUNDIE SUIE01
afreys Juauuedwy

1834 sy JoJ 810D UODESTRCWY

170Z {MdY [ 1€ SE nonEs;rowe parenumndde BuEold
WOV ESHAOIUE PHYRUINIDY

£707 YMETA 1§ 1€ S€ Junows Jupdraes 8018 Smsor)y
1eak atp Surmp suerRla

UONBUIQUIY SSAMSNQ JO IUNOINE WD SUCHIPPY
SuonIpPY

7207 YMBTA T¢ 1¢ s Junoms Juidiaes 58048 Bupsor)
SUONIpPY

120Z ady [ 1% 58 yonouie Bur£1aed 55008 Smuadgy
Junow e SMALIED 55000

saR[N21RAE] |

sjasse AQBUEILY 29YIQ PUE [IAPOCD
1ewg

wofoig AN mEsH Fealp
ssarsoud ui syaafoag (1}

SrRmONIE]

917037 U1 Y104 1291 [87) DU 9 3130 ], “MO13G SE SI INPISAO ST UON3] WIS 2S0YM 5531 Toal up y40m eIV 8D 10f apnpanas wonel wod () T'y

o,
papua sns Apurioduy sioafead (1)
ssaudoad ur spoaford (1)

sagmanIey

1M Jo Ty (81 T
ssaadpsd-orvaom eude)

30 saTBrOUAS Y1 WO ST YITYA “Hun esidsoy 1adejepy pue pim [edsoy sjjiH elefieg 6 ___S_UBw Sy pareony|e sBy Aredwoy) sy T, ‘ssodind s sy DD mw.__
q SBY 315Y) JOY2YM IUMENAP OF ATjenuUE [)I4po0d JO sAjRA SmALmo 2 SmatAL JawaBespy ||

N

|
8|
[&1]
--e
_-h”.

.
o
-

£F

v

[PIEIS ASLAIBYIO 1M pUE BIRD JIEYS 0% ‘SUOIT|TW 2 Ul SIUNCWIE ]|)
SJUILIMNGIS [FICUL IUOJRPUELS Y} F) SION
panary Bpuy 312D Anend

‘\\0\;5

2

WP i3}

=

W

e

I
1
{1

¥

/

~LRN012754

Ay

e

Lo

i,

N
L1

4 anls
SN
_..... %_. .;..r L1
il Els AR

ad

=

== % Hyderabad



Quaelity Care Indiz Limited
MNotes to the standalone financial statements
(All amounts in T millions, except share data and where otherwise stated)

4.4 Investments
Particolars
\a) Non-current )
Investment in equity instruments (Fully paid up)
Unquoted
Investment in subsidiaries - at cost

844,016 (31 March 2022: 844,016} equity shares in Ramkrishna Care Medical Sciences Private Limited
10,000 {31 March 2022: 10,000) equity shares in Quality Care Jharsuguda Private Limited

8,794,000 (31 March 2022 8,794,000) equity shares in Genga Care Hospital Limited

15,810 (31 March 2022: 15,810) equity shares in Galaxy Care Multispecialty Hospital Private Limited

£,976,529 (31 March 2022: NIL) equity shares in Convenient Hospitals Limited

39,040,870 (31 March 2022: NIL) equity shares in United CTIGMA Institute of Medical Sciences Private

Limited
Total

Unguoted
Envesiment In Joint ventare - at cost

5,000 (31 March 2022: 5,000) equity shares in Quality Care Health Services India Private Limited

Aggregate amount of unquoted investments (A)

b) Current

Investment in mutua! funds measured at FYTPL

Quoted
23,774 (31 March 2022 : NIL) units Mippon [ndia Ultra Shert Duration Fund
121 (31 March 2022 : NIL) units Nippon India Overnught Fund {Growih)
3,139,486 (31 March 2022 : NIL) units UT! Dynamic Bond Fund
742,067 (31 March 2022 : NIL) anits SBI Savings Fond - Regular Plan Growth
144,392 (31 March 2022 : NIL) units [CIC] Prudential Mutuai Fund
38,847 (31 March 2022 : NIL) units HDFC Money Market Fund
NIL (31 March 2022 1 2,333,335) units L & T Muwtual Fund
NIL (31 March 2022 : 40,568) units UTI Money Market Mutval Fund - Growth

NIL (3t March 2022 : 263,003) units Mippon India Money Market Mutual Fund - Growth

Taotal
Aggregate amount of quoted investments and market value thereof (B)
Aggregate amount of quoted & unguoted investments (A) + (B}

45 Other financial assets
Particulars

(a} Non currvent

Unseeured, considered good

Security deposits

Fixed deposits with banks with more than 12 months maturity

Interest accrued on fixed deposits with banks
Total

{b) Current

Unsecured, considered good

Security deposits

Interest accrugd on fixed deposits with banks
Unbilled receivables

Others
Total
59 Chéﬁered A
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As at
31 March 2023

25296
0.10
87.84
3,791.93
3,594.25

7,727.18

0.05
045

7,727.23

81.95
0.01
§2.09
2628
46.37
183.19

41489
424,89
8,152,12

As at
31 March 2023

157.63
2708
111
185.82

(293
1.28
97.10
11156
122.47

As at
31 March 2022

25296
.10
8794
101.26

442.26

Q.05
.05

44231

30.00
100.10

87335
1,023.65

1,023.65
1,465.96

As at
31 March 2022

117.75
41.99
3.9
163.70

5113
378
100.67
26,64
182.22



Quality Care India Limited
Maotes to the standalone financial statements
¢All amounts in 2 miltions, except share data and where othetwise stated)

4,6 Deferred tax assets (net)

The following is the analysis of deferred tax assets, net recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss and other comprehensive income

(i) Deferred tax assets/(linbilities) in As at {Charged)/credited  (ChargedVeredited Recognised in Asat
relation to: i April 2022 to Statement of to ofher Qther Equity 31 March 2023

Profit and Loss comprehensive

income

Property, plant and equipment ("PPE") {766.4%) 33.40 - - {733.09)
Borrowings measured at amortised cost 9.51) 328 - - 6.23)
Provision for doubtful irade reecivabloa 174,00 {%4.15) . . 7985
Provision for bad and doubtful loans 23.00 - - - 23.00
Provision for employee benefits 95.65 (14.50) 212 - 8327
Loss from specified business* 1,150.74 (340.36) - 31033
[ndexation benefit of land 78.78 728 - - 86.06
Expenses allowable on deduction of TDS 20.00 4.66 - - 24.66
MAT credit - 7462 - - 74.62
Right-of-usc assets {360.20) (75.95) . (436.15)
Provision for lease Jiabilities 433.65 8347 - - 517.12
On equity componznt of CCPS - - (233.24) (233.24)
On interest expense of CCPS - 13110 - - 131.10
Toual 39,62 (187.15) 212 {233.24) 421,35
(i) Deferred tax assets/{liabilities) in As at {Chargedycredited (Charged)fcredited Recagnized in As at
relation to: 1 April 20N to Statement of to ather Other Equity 31 March 2032

Profit and Lusy comprehensive

income

Property, plant and equipment ("PPE™) (1,036.39} 20990 - - (766.49)
Borrowings measuted at amoriised cost (12,55) 304 - - (.51
Provision for doubtful trade receivables 15825 15.75 - 174.00
Provision for bad and doubtful foans 23.00 - - 23.00
Provision for employee benefits 74,96 1917 1.52 9565
Loss from specified business® 1.408.24 {257,500 - - 1,150.74
Indexation benefii of land - 7878 - - 78.78
Expenses allowable on deduction of TDS 20.00 - 2000
Right-of-use assets (478.20) 118.00 - - (360.20)
Pravision for lzase liabilities 540,22 (106.57) - 433,65
Total (A+B) 677.53 160,57 1.52 839.62
“Note:

The Company has recopmised deferred tax asset on carried forward business toss of earlier years from specified business, 23 defined under Section 35AD of the
fncome Tax Act, 1961. There is no time limit for carrying forward aforesaid business losses as per the provisions of Income Tax Act, 1961, The Company has
carned profits on specified business in the current year and previous year. The management has concluded that such deferred tax asset will be recoverable using

the estimated future taxable income based on approved business plans and budgets of the Company. These losses can be carried forward for an indefinite period
as per the provisions of Income Tax Act, 1961.

4,7 Non- current tax assets |net)

Particulars Ag at As at

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Advance income tax {net of provision for taxation} 435,61 616.96
Total , 439.61 #16,96
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Quality Care India Limited
Notes to the standalone financial statements
¢All amounts in € millions, excep share data and where otherwise stated)

4.8 Other asseis
Particulars

|a) Non-current

Unsecured, considered good
Stetutory dues paid under protest
Capital advances

Others

Total

{b) Current

Unseeured, considered good
Prepaid expenses

Advances to vendors

Others

Total

4.2 Inventories*
Particulars

Medical consumebles and pharmacy items
Cther consumables
Total

* Refer note 4.14 for details of inventories pledged/hypothecaied as security, if any.

410 Trade receivables
Particulars

Trade receivables considered good - unsecured
Trade receivables which have significant increase in credit risk
Total

Less: Expected credrt loss*

Total trade recelvables including unbilled revenue

Trade receivables

Unbilled revenue recognised in other financial assets (refer note 4.5 (b))

As at
3 March 2023

$8.66
267.13
7.04
33283

35.59
2894
2.00

As at
31 March 2023
150,11
15.11
165.22

As at
31 March 2023
1,369.10
238.70
1,607.80

(238.70)
1,369.10
1,272.00

$7.10

*The movement in the expected credit loss on trade receivables for the year ended 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022 is as follows:

Opening balance at beginning of the year
Provision made during the year {refer note 4.24)
Bad debts writtzn off during the year

Closing balance at end of the year

Ageing of trade receivables and unbilled as at 31 March 2023

Particulars Unbilled|  Not due

Less than | 6 months - 1
| | ] | Gmonths | vyear
[Undisputed trade receivables and unbilled . )
-Considered good 97.10 538.78 51842 168 .90
-which have significant 285 | 23544 61.72 85.40 |
|increase in credit risk | 1 1 |
| Expected credit loss 285 2344 67.72 | 8540
Tatal 97.10 | 538.78 518.42 168.90

Ajeiny of trade receivables and unbilled as at 31 March 2022

Outstanding for following periods from the due date

Particalars Unbilled Not due Less than | 6 months - 1
6 months year

Undispuied trade receivabies and unbilled : X
-Considered good _ 10067 | 32723 | 483.70 | 72.88

-which have significant - 6191 109.03 45.26
|increase in credit risk 1 1 ] !
| _-Bxpected credit loss | -1 6191 109.03 4526

Total 100.67 327.23 483.70 72.38

Particulars Unbilled| Notdue | [essthan | 6 months - 1
] | | Gmonths | sear |

Expected credit loss rates 3% 4% 12% 34%

considered e
e Chart A
Co
/ *f:“‘ S ooﬁao,m

|
ta:,w‘?avmzmumsw“ 5\ ,x:f
-\..";_. * Hydera ::______

Outstanding for following periods from the due date

1-2 years

1-2 years

1-2 years

As at
3 March 2022

58.66
103,77
7.04
169.47

2963
39.68

2.67
71.98

As at
31 March 2022
105,88
11.08
117.96

As at
31 March 2022
984.48
N7
1,357.19

3721
984.48
283.81
100.67

For the jear ended

As at
31 March 2023
37N
14.15
(148.16)
238.70

Ouistanding for following periods from the due date

More than
2-3Iyears 3 years
4590 | = -
35.13 24.16 =
3513 24.16 | =
4590 | -] -

More than
2-3 years
3 years
69.30 | 53.65 | 3356 |
69.30 | 5365 33.56|

More than
3 iears |
100%

1-3 years

43%, 100% |

As at
31 March 2022
452.88
50.87
{131.04)
37271

Total

1,369.10 |
238,70

238.70)|
1,369.10

Total
$84.48
37271

37271
984.48

Total
15%



Quality Care India Limited
Notes to the standalone financial statements
{All amounts in T millions, except share data and where otherwise stated}

4.1t Cash and bank balances

Particulars Ag at As at
3 March 2023 31 March 2022
a) Cash and cash equivalents
Balances with banks
-in gurrent accounts 32381 21735
Cash on hand 5.51 664
32932 22399
b} Other bank balances
Deposits with maturity of more than 3 months but less than 12 months 16.81 224 44
Earmarked balances with bank in cutrent account™ 14.09 14.08
3090 138,53
Total 36022 46252

*Balances are restrictive in nature as they are earmarked funds payable to the minority share holders of Care Institute of Medical Sciences Limited,
which was amalgamated with the Company with effect from 1 April 2016 in acoordance with the terms of the scheme of amalgamation sanctioned by the
National Company Law Tribunal, Hyderabad vide its Order dated 5 May 2017. (Also refer note 4.18 (b))}

4.12 Loans
Particulars Asat As b
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Noo~-Current
Unsgcured, signilicant increase in credit risk
Loans to related parties 65,83 6583
655.83 63.83
less: Lass allowance {65.83) 1 65.83)
Total =
urrent
Linsecured, considered good
Advances to employees 0.61 018
Total 06l 0.18
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Quality Care India Limited
Notes to the standalene financial statements
(All amounts in T millions, except share data and where otherwise stated)

4.14 Long-term borrowings

As at 31 March 2023

- - Non-current Current Non-current  Current
Secured - at amortised cost
Term loans from banks
- HSBC - Term loan (refer note i) - 709.11 - §5.53 -
- Axis Bank - Term loan I (refer note ii) 206.96 5217 259.13 5217
- Axis Bank - Term loan II (refer note iii) 393.40 _9%.18 492.58 ~99.18
Term loans from banks (A) 1,300.47 151.35 837.24 15135
‘Ferm loans from financial institutions
- NIIF Infrastructure Finance Limited (refer note iv) 571.84 148.65 720.49 140.50
Term loans from financial institutions (B) 571.84 148.63 720.49 140.90
Total (A+B) 1,881.3t 300.00 1.557.73 292.25
Notes:
Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financial activities excluding interest acerued
For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Opening balance at beginning of the year o 1,849.98 2.050.74
Proceeds from long-term borrowings 623.58 85.53
Repayments of long-term borrowings (292.25) (236.29)
Closing balance at end of the year 2,181.31 1.349.98
Reconciliation of interest accrued on above borvowings
For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Opening balance at beginning of the year - -
Interest expenses 138.10 169.02
Enterest paid (138.10) (169.02)

Closing balance at end of the year -

“As at 31 March 2022

i HSBC Bank Term Loan- Secured by first pari passu charge on immovable & movable Property, plant and equipment ali present and future asset.
Second pari passu charge on stocks & receivabies all present and future assets towards overdraft and working capital loan facilities.
The loan is repayable in 8 years carries an interest rate of repo rate + 3% p.a (31 March 2023: 6.15% p.a. for 85.50 loan, 7.65% p.a. for 73.30
loan, 8.45% p.a. for 500.00 loan, 7.97% p.a. for 50.31 loan) {31 March 2022: 7.00% p.a.) payable at monthly intervals and moratorium period of 2

years.

il Axis Bank term loan - Secured by first pari passu charge over all movable and immovable property, plant and equipment, present and future of the

Company and also hypothecation of entire movable fixed assets both present and future of the Company.

Second pari passu charge over all present and future current assets of the Company. The said loan is repayable in 6 years and 7 months and carries
an interest rate of repo rate + 3% p.a. (31 March 2023: 9.50% p.a.) (31 March 2022: 7.00% p.a.) payable at monthly intervals.

iii Axis Bank term loan - Secured by first pari passu charge over all movable and immovable propetty, plant and equipment, present and future of the

Company and also hypothecation of entire movable fixed assets both present and futusre of the Company.

Second pari passu charge over all present and future current asset of the Company. The said loan is repayable in 6 years and 7 months and carries
an interest rate of repo rate + 3% p.a. (31 March 2023: 9.50% p.a) (31 March 2022: 7.00% p.a.} payable at monthly intervals.

iv NIIF [nfrastructure Finance Limited - The loan is secured by first pari passu charge over all movable and immovable property, plant and
equipment, present and future of the Company excluding MRI machine exclusively charged to Siemens Financial Services Private Limited. Second
pari passu charge over all present and future current assets of the Company. The loan carries an interest rate of five year NIIF IFL benchmark rate

+ 0.4% (As on 31 March 2023: 7.30% per annum) {As on 3| March 2022: 9.30% per anaum).
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Quality Care [ndia Limited
Notes to the standalone financial statements
{AN amounts in ¥ millions, except share data and where otherwise siated}

4.15 Employee benefis obligations - Non-current

Particulars Asat As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Provision for employee benefits
Gratuity 5854 91.86
Compensated absences 24.15. 27.57
Total 122.6% 119,53
4.16 Employee benefit obligations - curreat
Particulars As at Asat
— g 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Provision for employee benefits
Gratuity 5475 5425
Compensated zbsences 19.20 20.02
Total 73.9%6 74.27
4.17 Trade pasables » )
Particulars As af Asat
= I ‘31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Trade payable : Micro and smalf enterprises, (refer notg 4.31) 5711 21.67
Trade payable - others 1,001.28 1,113.76
Trade payable to related parties; (refer note 4.33) 1491 2129
1,073.30 1.156.72
Ageing of trade pavables as on 31 March 2023:
| | Qutstanding for following peviods |
Particulars Unbilled :nt : from the_due date - -
ue Less than 1 ]' More than 3 Total
1-2 years -3 years
. | Lear _kEars
iUndjsputed trade payables 1 |
Micro ent:iprises and small enterprises | - 5110 . - - | 5701
Others including related parties 314,06 56341 10168, 25.23 6.93, 488 1016.19,
|I-II| = 314.06] 620.‘52' 101 68 23.23 6.03 4,88 1,073.30)
|Ageing of trade payables a3 on 31 March 2022 |
| | Quistanding for Fsllowing periads
B Not from the due date
Particulars Unbllled due | Lesstham 1| -2 23 More than 3 Total
B - | | o -2 yenrs years . years
IUnclispumd trade payables | — |
| Micro enterprises and small enterprises [ 1501 2.43 0.17| - 0.01 21.67
[ Others including related parties | 226.50 773.82 100.27 17.44) 495, 12.07 1,135.05
[Total | 226,50, 792,83 0275 17.61] 495 12.08] 1,156.72|
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4.18 (a) Other financial liabilities- Non current
Particutars

As at Asat
= 31 March 2023 3 March 2022
Compulsory convertible preference shates 6,298 81 -
Total 529881

The Company has issued 14,572,480 Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares (coupon rate of 0.001%) of 2 10 eacht- @ ¥ 452.30 including a premium of T 442,30 per Compulserily
Convertible Preference Share to Touch Healthcare Privaie Limited, Mauritius, Helding Company. The Compulsorily Convertible Preference shares have been classified as financial liability
and measured at fair value in sccordance with [ndian Accounting Standards {Ind AS). The Board of directors of the company has resolved to convart Compulsory Convertible Preference
Shares into equity shares anytime before September 2023 at prevailing market rate as on conversion date. Accordingly, Compuisory Convertible Preference Shares have been measured at fair
value for a pariod of 14 months from allottment date at incremental borrowing rate.

Reconciliation of Comjiulsory convertible preference shares:
Particolars _Amgunt

|Face value of Compulsory convertible 6,591.13
preference shares | CCPS ! |
:Less Amotnt recognised in other squir 667.48 |
| Add: [nterest expenses dunn the ear 1 315.16 |
Amount presented in Other financial liabilities- 5,298.81

MNon current

(i} Recorcllintion of the preference shares owistanding at the beginning of the year and end of the reporting period

Compulsory convertible preference shares

As at 31 Marcch 2023
Particulars Number of Amount
- . shares- |
At the beginning of the year - .
.Issued during the year 14,572,480 | 6,591.13
Ralunce at the end of the rear 14,572,480 | 6,591.13

(i) Cempalsory convertible preference shaves held by the Holding Company

Particulars | Nature of Shares As at 31 March 2023
Number of Amount
| ) shares
Touch Heslthcare Private Limited, Mauritus Compulsory convertible
_preference shares 14,572,480 | 6,591.13 |

{1ty Particulars of shaveholders hiolding more than 5% Comjulsery convertible preference shares

As at 31 March 2022
Number of Amoant
shares

As at 31 March 2022
Number of Amount
shares

Particulars As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022
Number of . Number of
. shares | % holding s | Yo bolding
Touch Healthcars Private Limited, Mauritius 14,572,480 | 100.00% -
iv} Details of preference shareholdings by the Promoter/Promoter Group
As at 31 March 2023 As at % Change
PromoterPromoter Group Name 31 March 2022 dun::rlhe
Number af Shares % holdin :Numbex of Shares % holding |

. Touch Healthcare Private Limited, Mauritius | 14,572, 480 100.00% | - - 180%

Total | 39,782, 503 | | 100.00% - - 100%

4.18 (b) Other financial liabilities- current
Particulars As at As at
31 March 2023 31. March 2022

Capital creditors 32 20.56
Employes beaefit payables 51.90 96.65
Retention money and deposits 41.80 6.33
Purchase consideration payabla** 210,00 -
Onier payables* 16.85 15.14
Total 353.29 138.73

*Other payables includes T14.0% (31 March 2022: 214.09) payable to the minority share bolders of Care Institute of Medical Sciences Limited, which was amalgamated with the Company

with effect from 1 April 2016 in accordance with the terms of the scheme of amalgamation sanctioned by the National Company Law Tribunal, Hyderabad vide its Order dated 5 ay 2017,

** Balance purchase consideration payable to sharcholders of United Cligma Institute of Medical Sciences Private Limited, subsidiary which was engaged in healthcars services business with
respect to the acquisition of 76.06%.equity stake on 25 July 2022

4.19 Cther liabilities

Particulars v —
3 March 2023 31 March 2022
v s 66.05 73.74
Unearned revemue (refer note 4.43) - i
66.05 78.72
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Quality Care India Limited
Notes to the standalone financial statements

(All amounts in % millions, except share data and where otherwise stated)

4,20 Revenue from operations

Particulars For the year ended  For the year ended
3t March 2023 31 March 2022
Revenue from healthcare services 9,865.60 9,648.39
Revenue-from outpatient pharmacy 49775 537.49
Other operating income 38.03 37.19
Total 10.401.38 10.223.07
4.21 Other income
Particulars For the year ended  For the year ended
31 March 2623 31 March 2022
(a) Interest income
on financial assets ( bank deposits ) measured at amortised cost 2.99 13,78
on income tax refund 20.43 -
on financial assets carvied at amortised cost 11.47 9.81
{b) Other non-operating income
Net gain arising on mutual funds designated at FVTPL 41,62 26.95
Lease remeasurement Gain/Loss 5.49 2.06
Profit on Sale of Asset 0.30 -
Miscellaneous income 17.01 7.04
(¢} Income/liabilities written back from operating activities 0.10 -
Total 99.91 59.64
4.22 Changes in inventories of medical consumables and pharmacy items -
Particulars For the year ended  For the year ended
31 March 2023 . 31 March 2022
{nventory at the beginning of the year 106.88 106.50
Inventory at the énd of the year 150.11 106.88
Total {43.23) {0.38)
4,23 Employee benefits expense® _
Particulars For the year ended  For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Salaries, wages and bonus 1,365.34 1,352.79
Share based compensation expense - 68.32
Contribution to provident and other funds 88.43 87.34
Gratuity and compensated absences 2333 45.05
Staff welfare expenses 21.39 2348
Tokal 1,498.49 1,576.98

*Net of amount capitalised (refer note 4.29)

&



Quality Care India Limited
Notes to the standalone financial statements

(All amounts in ¥ millions, except share data and where otherwise stated)

4.24 Other expenses®
Particulars

Power and fuel
Rent
Repairs and Maintenance
- Buildings
- Plant and machinery and others
Hospital maintenance
Housekeeping charges
Security charges
Insurance
Water charges
Books and periodicals
Rates and taxes, excluding taxes on income
Travelling and conveyance
Communication expense
Marketing and business promotion expense
Expected credit loss
Printing and stationery
Payments to the auditor
Legal and professional charges
Catering charges, net
Diagnostics expenses
Contribution towards Corporate social responsibility
Professional charges to doctors
Property, plant and equipment written-off
Loss on sate of Property, plant and equipment net
Bank charges
Miscellaneous expenditure
Totat

*Net of amount capitalised (refer note 4.29)

Nate (a): Details of payments to auditors
Particulars

For statutory audit

Note (b): Details of Corporate social responsibility
Particulars

Contribution to Telangana Sikh Society - Eradica_ting Hunger by donation of food

Contribution to ISKCON for eradicating hunger, proverty & malnutition and

promoting education & skill development
Total

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
237.25 210.86
2429 12.68
3096 39.26
276.23 298.35
73.07 7591
236.54 259.09
93.48 94.86
8.33 8.09
2591 22.53
10.41 3.59
125.05 111.29
35.00 38.65
27.54 30.59
237.16 214.60
14.15 50.87
38.54 3202
6.05 5.50
76.81 75.02
130.94 111.57
3548 35.14
9.77 0.52
2,719.46 2,353.69
- 5.29
- 2.48
3.31 5.80
8.33 6.22
4,504.06 4,126.27
For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
6.05 5.50
6.05 5.50
For the year ended  For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
0.50 0.52
9.27 -
9.77 0.52

Details of CSR expenditure under Section 135(5) of the Act in respect of othellj_thim ongoing projects

Amomnt deposited in P
specified fund of uired to be Amount
Balance as at 1 April 2022 Schedule VILofthe | o0 o o spent during
Act ’p:' ::;ng the year
| witin 6 months | Y | |
Nil il 917 977 il
T Ameunt deposited in- [
spwcifed fund of | “_':’"l"t'; - Amount
Balance ns ai 1 April 2021 Schiedule V1L of the i spent daring
spent during
Acl the year the year
| within 6 months | ¥ | [
Mil | Nil 0.52 0.52 |
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Quality Care India Limited
Notes to the standalone financial statements
(Al amounts in T millions, except share data and where otherwise stated)

4.25 Finance costs

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 Mareh 2022
Interest on borrowings* 138.10 169.02
Interest on lease liabilities (refer note 4.38) : 150.53 131.58
Interest on compulsory convertible preference shares 375.16 -
Others 31.87 3542
Total 695.66 336.02

*Net of amount capitalised (refer note 4.2%)

4.26 Depreciation and ameortisation expense

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment 33648 - 323.6%
Amoriisation on other intangible assets 17.65 68.12
Depreciation on right-of-use assets 297.02 323.22
Total 651.15 715.03




Quality Care India Limited
Notes to the standalone financial statements
(All amounts in T millions, except share data and where otherwise stated)”

4.27 Income tax expense/ (credit)

. For the year ended For the year ended
g _ - 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Income tax expense/(credit) reported in the Statement of Profit and Loss
Tax expense comprises of:

Current fax expense 121.50 245.00

MAT Credit (74.62)

Income tax relating to earlier periods 157.63 2215

Deferred tax expense/{(credit) 261.77 (160.57)
466.28 106.58

Reconciliation of tax expense/ |credit) and the accounting profit multiplied by India's tax rate: = )

. For the year ended For the year ended
arteulsrs 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Profit before tax 839.41 1,161.83
Tax at the Indian tax rate 34.944% (31 March 2022: 34.944%) 293.32 405.99
Tax effect of amounts which are not deductible/{taxable) in calculating taxable income:

Effect of income not subject to tax under the Income Tax Act, 1961 @.0n (3.43)
Previously unrecognised tax losses from specified business, as defined under Section 3SAD of the Income 2§7 45
Tax Act, 1961, now recognised {net of deferred tax liability) N (257.43)
Indexation benefit on land (7.28) {78.78)
Income tax pertaining to earlier years 157.63 22.15
Other adjustments 26.62 18.10
Tax expense 466.28 - 106.58
4.28 Earnings per equity share (EPES) o

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended

B 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Profit for the year 373.13 1,055.25
Mumber of equity shares outstanding at the beginning of the year 41,496,894 41,496,894
Total number of equity shares outstanding at the end of the year 41,496,894 41,496,894
Weighted average number of equity shares considered in computation of Basic EPES 41,496,894 41,496,894
Basic Earnings per equity share in ¥ (absolute number) 3.9% 2543
Diluted Earnings per equity share in ¥ {absclute number) 8.99 2543

Mote:

Outstanding employee stock options and warrants have been settled during the year ended 31 March 2022,
Basic EPES and Diluted EPES are same as the potential equity shares are anti-dilutive in nature.
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Quality Care India Limited
Notes to the standalone financial statements
(All amounts in ¥ millions, except share data and where otherwise stated)

4.29 Incidental expenditure during the construction period

During the year ended 31 March 2023, the Company has capitalised the following amounts to the Capital work in progress (CWIP).
Consequently, amounts disclosed under the respective notes are after adjusting amounts capitalised by the Company.

Particulars Asat As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Opening Balance (A) 19202 18718
Employee benefits expense (refer note 4.23) (B) 0.82 0.26
Other expenses (refer note 4.24) (C) 6.80 4.34
Finance cost (refer note 4.23) (D) 4477 0.24
Total (E=A+B+C+D) ’ o 244.41 192.02
4.30 Segment Information
Baged on the “management approach” as defined in Ind AS 108, operating segments are to be reported in a manner consistent with
the internal reporting provided to the Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM). The management has assessed the identification of
reportable segments in accordance with the requirements of Ind AS 108 “Operating Segment” (“Ind AS 108”) and believes that the
Company has only one reportable segment namely "Medical and Health care services'
Geographical information
The Company primarly operates within India.
Major customers
The Company has no single customer who has contributed more than 10% of the Company's total revenue during the year ended 31
March 2023 and 31 March 2022.
4.31 Details of dues to Micro and Small Enterprises as per MSMED Act, 2006
The creditors covered by Micro, Smal! and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 ("the MSMED Act, 2006") have been
identified on the basis of information available with the Company. Disclosures in respeci of the amounts payable to such parties are
given below:
Particulars As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
.. Principal amount due to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act and remaining
() : 57.11 2167
unpaid as at year end
... Interest due to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act and remaining unpaid as at
(i) - -
year end
... Principal amounts paid to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act, beyond the
(iii) appointed day during the year ) )
. Interest paid, undet Section 16 of MSMED Act, to suppliers registered under the
") MSMED Act, beyond the appointed day during the year ) i
interest paid, other than under Section 16 of MSMED Act,to suppliers registered under
™) the MSMED Act, beyond the appointed day during the year - .
Amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which
(vi) have been paid but beyond the appointed day during the year) but without adding the - ) -
interest specified under the MSMED Act
(vii) Interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year - -
Amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until
(viii} such date when the interest dues above are actually paid to the small enterprise, for the - -

purpose of disallowance of a deductible expenditure under section 23 of the MSMED Act

Notes:

(a) Explanation- The terms ‘appointed day’, *buyer’, ‘enterprise’, ‘micre enterprise’, ‘small enterprise’ and ‘suppiier’, shall have the

same meaning as assigned to them under clauses (b}, {d), (&), {h), (m) and (n) respectively of section 2 of "the MSMED Act, 2006.”

{(b) This information has been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of informytion available with the

Company.
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Quality Care India Limited
Notes to the standalone financial statements
{All amounts in T millions, except share data and where otherwise stated)

4,32 Employee benefits

Defined benefit plan

The Company provides its employees with benefits under a defined benefit plan, referred to as the "Gratuity Plan”. The Gratuity
Plan entitles an employee, who has rendered at least five years of continuous service, to receive 15 days salary for each year of
completed service at the time of retirement/ exit in accordance with Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. The plan is managed by

Life Insurance Corporation of India. The Company accrues gratuity as per the provisions of the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972
as applicable as at the Balance Sheet date.

A Based on the actuarial valuation cbtained in this respect, the following table sets out the status of the gratuity plan and
the amounts recognised in the Company's standalene financial statements as at the reporting dates:

Particulars Asat As at

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Defined benefit obligation 160.06 153.09
Fair value of plan assets 6.76 6.98
Net defined benefit Jiability ' B 153.30 146.11
Non-current 98.54 91.86
Current 54.76 5425

B Reconciliation of net defined benefit liability

The following table shows a reconciliation from the opening balances to the closing balances for net defined benefit liability
and its components:

i} Recenciliation of present value of defined benefit obligation

C Expense recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss

Particulars

Particulars Asat As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the year 153.09 143.05
Benefit payments from plan assets (27.12) (21.29)
Current service cost 19.29 18.59
Interest expense 10.24 9.15
Actuarial losses/(gains)
- changes in financial assumptions 0.54) {1.38)
- experience adjustments 5.10 4,92
Defined benefit obligation at the closing of the year 160.06 153.09
i) Reconciliation of fair value of plan assets -
Particulars As at As at
31 March 2023 3 March 2022
Plan assets at the beginning of the year 6.98 4.81
Contributions 27.86 23.89
Benefits paid (27.12) (21.24)
[nterest income 0.54 042
Actuarial (losses)/gains {1.50) (0.90)
Plan assets at the closing of the year 6.76 6.98
iii) Net defined benefit liability 153.30 146.11

For the year ended  For the year ended

31 March 2023

31 March 2022

Current service cost 19.29 18.59
Interest on net defined liability / (asset) 9.70 8.73
Total cost, included in 'employee benefits expense’ 28.99 27.32
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Quality Care India Limited
Notes to the standalone financial statements
(All amounts in ¥ millions, except share data and where otherwise stated)

4.32 Employee benefits (continued)

D Remeasurements recognised in other comprehensive income

Particulars For the year ended  For the year ended
_ 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Actuarial gain/(loss) on defined benefit obligation (4.56) (3.54)
Actuarial gain/(loss) on plan assets (1.50) (0.90)
Total cost recognised in the other comprehensive income (6.06) (4.44)

E Actuarial assumptions
The following are the principal actuarial assumptions:

Particulars a As at As at

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Attrition rate 40.00% 40.00%
Discount rate 7.50% 7.34%
Salary escalation rate 5.00% 5.00%

Retirement age
Note:

a) The estimates of future salary incréases, considered in actuarial valuation, take account of inflation, seniority, promotion and
other relevant factors, such as supply and demand in the employment market.

58 vears 38 years

F Maturity profile of defined benefit obligation is as follows:

Particulars As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Within 1 Year 54.81 5425
2 to 5 years 106.20 99.11
6 to 10 years 28.04 26.36
] 189.08 179.72

G Sensitivity analysis

Reasonably possible changes to one of the relevant actuarial assumptions, holding other assumptions constant, can affect the
defined benefit obligation by the amounts shown below::

Particulars As at As at
31 March 2023 (%) 31 March 2022 (%)

Discount rate  (+ 1% movement) (328) (2.00)
Discount rate (- 1% movement}) 3.46 2.10
Salary escalation (+ 1% movement) 4.05 2.50
Salary escalation {- 1% movement) (3.91) (2.40)

H The Company expects to contribute ¥ 54.76 as its contribution to gratuity within one year from the yéar ended 31 March 2023,

[ Deflned contribution plan

The Company’s contribution towards its provident fund is a defined contribution retirement plan for qualifying employees. The

contributions are made to registered provident fund administered by the Government. Details for the expenditure recognised in
the Statement of Profit and Loss is as below:

Particulars For the year ended  For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Amount recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss towards -
Provident fund §1.91 79.01
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Quality Care India Limited
Notes to the dalone fi ial shat
{All amounts in ¥ millions, except share dats and where otherwise stated)

4,33 Related party disclosore

(r) Name of related parties and nature of relatonship

Nature of relationship Names

Subsidinries Ganga Care Hospital Linnted
Ramkrishna Care Medical Sciences Private Limited
Galaxy Care Multispecialry Hoapital Private Limited
Comvenient Hospitals Limited
Heart Care Institute and Research Centre {Indore) Py Lid
United Ciigma Instiute of Medical Sciences Private Limited
Ciigma Institute of Medical Sciences Private Limited
United Ciigma Hospitals Healthcare Private Limited
Quelity Care Tharsuguda Private Limited

Key Mansgement Personnel (KMP) Tasdeep Singh, Chisf Execive Officer
Sandeep Kumar, Chicf Financial Officer (upto 24 May 2021)
Vikas Rastogi, Chisf Financial Officer (w.e.£ 24 May 2021
Gayathri Chandramoulieswaran, Company Secretary

Holding Company and Ultimate Holding Comparny Tough Hezlthcare Private Limited, Maunitius, Holding Company
TFG Capital, L. P, Ultimace Holding Company

Entities in which Director is interested AEMA, Medical Private Limited
Indian Medtronic Private Limited
Asta Healtheare Holding Advisory LLP

Sister entiiy of ultimate holding compan: E Group Manag Lid ?

Joint venture Quality Care Health Services India Private Limited

{b) Transactions

‘Particutars For the year ended For the year ended
3 March 2023 31 March 2022
Teansactions during the year
1. Galaxy Care Multispeciality Hospital Private Limited
Purchaze of drugs and consumables (COVID Vaccine) - 39
Sate of drugs and consumables (COVID Vaccine) - 0.50
2. Ganga Care Hospital Limited
Sale of Property, plant and equipment 1.74 -
Repayment of loan - 5537
3. Ramkrishna Care Medical Sci Private Limited
Purchase of drugs and consamables 0.66
Sale of Goods [ILe) -
Purchaze of Property, plant and equipment - 0.06
4, AKNA Medical Private Limited
Purchase of drugs and consumables 0.26 4.07
3. Yodian Medtronic Privaie Limited
Purchasa of dmgs and consumables ’ 41.38 43,38
Advance for purchase of Rabo eguipmeant 5.00 -
6, Asia Healthcare Holding Advisory LLP
Professional and business services 11.98 3.87
7. Vikas Rastogi
Remumeration * 1114 7.64
8. Jasdeep Singh
Remuneration * 775 4294
9. Sandecp Kumar
Remuneration * 6.52
10. Gayathri Chandramoulicswaran
Remuneration * 1.51 0.97
11, Evercare Group Management Ltd
Revenue from professional services 15 17.50
12, Touch Healthcare Private Limited
Issue of Compulsory Convertibla Preference Sharss £,591.13 -

{c ) Balances outstanding from/ to the related parties
Particulars As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022
Balances outstanding from/ to the related parties
1. Ganga Care Hospital Limited
Trade Receivable 1.74
2. Gataxy Care Multispeciaity Hospital Private Limited
Trade payable 1.58 t.38
* 3. Quatity Care Health Services India Private Limited
Loans receivable** 55.83 65,83
4. Rambkrishna Care Medical Sciences Private Limited
Trade Payalble 052
3. AKNA Medical Private Limited
Trade payable - 0.14
6. [ndian Medivonic Private Limited
Trade payable 12.72 19.57
Advance for purchase of Robo squipment - 5.00 -
7. Evercare Group Management Lid

e bl Receivable - 3.56
\15 Chsrtidd = -_-l"q'.n-..ghsebenefts which are computed for the Comparry as a whole,
‘\0 \..'L- '——'::[:u-..ﬂ_ 7. ‘h\__ovismned entirely in the bocks (refer note 4.12),
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Quality Care India Limited
Notes to the standalone financial statements
{All amounts in T millions, except share data and where otherwise stated)

4,34 Categories of linancial instruments and their fair values

The carrying amount of alf financial assets and financial liabilities appearing in the financial statements are reasonable approximation of
their fair vaives.

Categories of financial instruments

As at 31 March 2023 | As at 31 Mavech 2022

FVTPL*  Amortised cost  FVTPL* | Amortised oost'

Financial assets |

|lnv&stments 424.89 - 1,023.635 -
Trade receivables - 1,272.00 - 883.81
Cash and cash equivalents - 329.32 - 223.99
Other bank balances .| 30.90 - 238.53
Loans | - 0.61 - 0.18
| Other financial assets | B | 308.29 - 34592 |
Total financial assets | 424.89 | 1,941.12 | 1,023.65 | 1,692.43 |
' As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022

FVTPL* | Amortised cost| FVTPL* | Amortised cost |

Financial liabilities

Bortowings - 2,181.31 - 1,349.98
Trade payables - | 1,073.30 - 1,156.72
Lease liabilities A 1,479.87 - 1.240.99
Other financial liabilities _ - 6,652.10 - 138,73
| Total financial liabilities f -1 11,386.58 = 4,386.42 |

The fair value of the financial assets and financial liabilities is included at an amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a
current transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale.

*FYTPL - Fair value through Profit and Loss

Fair value measurement

Fair value of the Company’s financial assets and financial liabilities that are measured at fair value on a recurring basis.

Fair value _Fair value as at (in T)
hierarchy 31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Particulars Valuation technique and key input

Fiﬂancit_!l assels
Based on the net asset value (‘NAV’") as stated by the
Investment in mutual  issuers of these mutual fund units in the pul.)llsht?d Lovel 1 12439 1,023.63
funds statements as at balance sheet date. (quoted prices in
active market)
“There was no transfes between Levei 1, Level 2 and Level 3 in the period.

The fair value hierarchy of financial assets and financial liabilities of the Company, except for 'investment in mutuat funds’ is level 3.

Hered,
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Quality Care India Limited
Notes to the standalone financial statements
(All amounts in T millions, except share data and where otherwise stated)

4.35 Financial instruments risk management

C.

Financial Risk Management Framework

The Company's Beard of Directors have an overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company's risk management framework. The Board
of Directors have ¢stablished the Risk Management Committee, which is responsible for developing and monitoring the Company's risk management policies.
The Committee reports regularly to the Board of Directors on its activities.

The Company’s principal financial liabilities comprises of borrowings, trade and other payables. The main purpose of these financial liabilities is to finance the
Company’s operations. The Company’s principal financial assets include investments, loans, trade and other receivables, and cash and bank balances that the
Company derives direcily from its operations. The Company also holds FVTPL investments,

The Company is exposed primarily to Credit Risk, Liquidity Risk and Market risk (fuciuations in interest rates and foreign currency rates), which may
adversely impact the fair value of its financial instruments. The Company assesses the unpredictability of the financial envitonment and secks o mitigate
potential adverse effects on the financial performance of the Company,

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading 10 a financial loss. Credit risk
encompasses of both, the direct risk of default and the risk of deterioration of creditworthiness as well as concentration of risks. Credit risk arises primarily
from financial assets such as wade receivables, investments, balances with banks, loans and other receivables.

Credit risk is controlled by analysing credit limits and creditworthiness of customers on a continuous basis to whom the credit has been granted after obtaining
necessary approvals for credit. Financial instruments that are subject to concentrations of credit risk principally consist of trade receivabies, investments, cash

and cash equivalents, bank deposits and other financial assets. None of the financial instruments of the Company result in material concentration of the credit
risk.

Financial assets that are neither past due nor impaired
None of the Company's cash equivalents, including fixed deposits, were either past due or impaired as at 31 March 2023, Credit risk on cash and cash

equivalents, including fixed deposits is limited as the Company generally transacts with banks and financial institutions with high credit ratings assigned by
international and domestic credit rating agencies.

Financial assets that are past due but not impaired :

Ind AS requires expected credit osses to be measured through a loss allowance. The Company assesses at each Balance Sheet date whether a financial asset or a
group of financial assets are impaired. Expected credit losses are measured at an amount equal to the [ife time expected credit losses. The Company has used a
practical expedient by computing the expected credit koss allowance for trade receivables based on a provision matrix. The provision matrix takes into account
historical credit loss experience and adjusted for forward-looking information.

Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and the availability of funding to meet obligations when due. Management monitors the

company's liquidity position and cash and cash equivalents on the basis of expected cash flows. This is generally carvied out at each hospital level in accordance
with practice set by the company.

As at 31 March 2023 Up to 1 vear More than 1 year Total
Borrowings 300.00 1,881.31 2,181.31
Trade payables 1,673.30 - 1,073.30
[_ease liabilities 195.51 1,284.36 1,479.87
|Other financial liabilitics 353.29 - 353.29
Total i . N 1,922.10 | 3,165.67 5,087.77
[ As ai 31 March 2022 e Uptolyear | Morethantyear |  Total ]
Borrowings 29225 1,357.73 1,349.98
Trade payables 1,156.72 - 1,156.72
Lease liabilities 227.51 1,013.48 1,240.99
Other financial liabilities 138.73 R E 138.73

| Total 1,815.21 2,571.21 4,386.42

Market risk:
Market risk is the risk of loss of future carnings, fair values or future cash flows that may result from adverse changes in market rates and prices. Market risk is
attributable to all market risk-sensitive financial instruments, such as foreign currency denominated receivables and payables and variable interest rates of shori-
term and long-term borrowings. Market risk comprises two types of risk: interest rate risk and currency risk.




Quality Care lndia Limited
Notes to the standalone financial statements
{All amounts in T millions, except share data and where otherwise stated)
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4.36

[nterest rate risk:

Interest tate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrament shall fluctuate because of changes in the market interest rates. The
Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Company’s borrowings with floating interest rates.

The expasure of the Company’s borvowing fo interest rate changes at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

Particulars "~ TFortheyearended For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Fixed rate instruments

Financial assets 43.89 266.43

Variable rate insiruments

Financial liabilities 2,181.31 1,849.98

The Company s investments are in deposits with reputed banks and therefore do not expose the Company to significant interest rates risk.

Sensitivity analysis

For the years ended 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022, every 50 basis point decrease in the floating interest rate component applicable to the Company's

borrowings would have mereased the profit before tax approximately by 10.91 and 1325 respectively. A 50 basis point increase in floating interest rate would
have led to an equal but opposite effect.

Foreign currency risk:

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure shall fuctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The
Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in foreign exchange rates relates primarily to the Company’s operating activities (when revenue or expense
including capital expenditure is denominated in a foreign currency). The exposure of entity to forsign currency risk is very limited on account of limited
transactions in foreign currencies.

The carrying amount of the Company's foreign currency denominated monetary items is nil as at 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022

Capital risk management

For the purpose of the Company’s capital management, capital includes issued equity capital, securities premium and 2ll othér equity reserves attributable to the
equity holders. The primary objective of the Company’s capital management is to macimise the shareholders value.

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjusiments in light of changes in economic conditions and the requirements of the financial covenants.
To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the dividend payments to the sharekolders, retwrn capital to shareholders or issue new
shares. The Company monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total equity plus et debt. The Company’s policy is to keep the gearing
ratio below 30%. The Comnany includes within net debt, borrowings (long and shart term}. less cash and cash equivalents and investments in mutual funds.

- Asat

31 March 2023 31 Mairch 2022
Borrowings (refer note 4.14) 2,181.31 1,849 98
Less; Cash and cash equivalents (refer note 4.11(a)) (329.32) (223.99)
Less: Cash and cash equivalents {refer note 4.§ 1{b)) {30.90) {238.53)
Less: Investment in mutual funds (refer note 4.4(b)) (424.39) {(1,023.65)
Net debt (A) 1,396.20 363.81
Total equits (B) o - e 7.330.50 6,522.07
Net debt and totad equity (A) + (B) 8,726,70 6,890.88
Gearing ratio (%) e 16.00% 5.28%

In order to achieve this overall objective, the Company’s capital management, amongst other things, aims to ensure that it meets the financial covenants
attached to the borrowings, Breaches in meeting the financial covenants would permit the lenders to immediately call back the borrowings. There has been no
breaches in the financial covenants of any borrowings during the year ended 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022.

Mo changes were made in the abjectives, policies or processes for managing the capital during the years ended 31 March 2023 and 31 Maych 2022,
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Quality Care India Limited
Notes to the standatone financial statements
{All amounts in ¥ millions, except share data and where otherwise stated)
4.37 Contingent liabilities and commitments
(a) Contingent liabilities
Particulars

Asat
31 March 2023

Claims agamst the Company not acknowledged as debts

- Dlsputed dlsa]luwances deemed dividend under Section 2(22](&) dlsputed income and deemed income under Section
56(2)(viib) of the Income Tax Act, 196]

- Dlsputecl 1&\!’1,r of sales tax on medical supp]les under the Andhra. Pradesh General Sales Tax Act, 1957
- Dlsputed wages of specific employees under the Minimutn Wages Act, 1948 '

- Dlsputed luxur} tax levied on bed charges under the Telangana Tax on Luxuries Act, 1987

- Dlsputed Bew of service tax on clinical l‘esea.rch, cosmetic surgencs, “health care services rendered to speci.ﬁt-: categories
of patients and other services and disputed availment of input credit on certain items under the Finance Act, 1994

- Disputed levy of Employee state insurance provISions on certain employees under the Embloyces‘ State Insurﬁnoé'Am,'

‘1948

k- Disput-ed IeTry of Provident fund pm\'«'iéions' on certain el_‘np_l?.;ees ‘under th;_Empioyees‘ Provident Funds and

Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952

e Disputed tax levied on specific buildiﬁg of the C(':mi:an'y under the Expenditure Tax Act, 1987
?atiéﬁi_lega'l'cl}iimé pending with various Consumer Disputes Redressal Commission

Other legal claims pending under the various Statutory Acts

(b) Commitments
Partlculars

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not pravided for (nek of advances)

3213

3.19
17.22

68.15

477

7.83
101.31
30229

As at
31 March 2023

22069

As at
31 March 2022

T 7178

3.56
319
117.22
68.15

1.26
8.77
783

203.08
99.68

As at
31 March 2022

431.17

4.38 Leases

The Company has taken hospital buildings, plant and machinery and vehicles on lease having a term ranging from | year to 15 years. The lease has an escalation clause
in the range of 5% to 10% per annutm, The Company obligations under its leases are secured by the lessor’s titls to the leased assets.

The Company alse has certain lease of building with lease terms of 12 months or less. The Company applies the 'short term lease’ recognition exemption for these

leases.

Carrying amount of lease liabilities and movement during the year
Particelars

As at As at
= 31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Balance at the beginmng of the year 1,240.99 1,541.84
Additions during the year 568.76 65.88
Deletions during the year {59.35) (67.83)
Finance cost accrued during the year 150.53 131.58
Other adjustments 394 (27.49)
Pavment of lease liabilities - (424.50) (402.99)
Lease liabilities s at the end of the sear 1,479.87 1,240.99
Current keass liabilities 19551 22731
Non-current lease liabilities N . 1,284.36 1,013.48
The effective interest rate for lease liabilities is 9.55% with maturity between 2020-2034.
Following amounts have been recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss: —
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended

—— 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Depreciation on Right-of-use assets 297.02 32322
[nferzst on lease liabilities 15053 131.58
Total amount recognised in the Statement of profit and loss 447.55 454.80
Details of the contractual maturities of lease liabilities on an undiscounted basis are as follows:
Particulars As at 31 March As at 31 March

2023 2022

Less than ong year 32825 33506
One to five years 1,051.28 1,006.3%
More than five » ears - 721.52 - 371.71
Total 2,101.05 571316

The Company dees not face a significant fiquidity risk with regard to its lease liabilities as the current assets are sufficient to meet the oblijations related to lease

liabilities as and when they fall due.

Rental expense reoorded for sho short term leases was ¥24.29 for the year ended 31 March 2023 (31 March 2022: 312.68).
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Quality Care India Limited
Notes to the standalone fimancial statements
{All amounts in T millions, except share data and where ctherwise stated)

4.4t Transfer pricing
The Company has entered into commercial {ransactions with ifs associated enterprises which are subject to assessment and test of transactions being carned out at an
*arm's length price,” in accordance with the provisions of chapter X of the income Tax Act, 1961.

The Compeny has established a comprehensive system of maintenance and documents as required by the transfer pricing legislation: under sections 92-92F of the Income
Tax Act, 1961, Management is of the opinion that its transactions with associated enterprises are at arm's length. Therefore, the legislation shall not have any impact on
the standalone financial statements.

4.42 Discloswre of interest in subsidiaries and joint venture:

| Ownership interest I the Company (%)

Particulars Nature of relationship Country of |As 131 March 2023 As at 31 Mxreh
incarporation 2022
Ganga Care Hospital Limited Subsidiary India | 4.13% 74 13%
Ramkrishna Care Medical Sciences Private Limited Subsidiary India 56.33% 56.33%
Galaxy Care Multispecialty Hospital Private Limited Subsidiary India 76.00% 76.00%
Quality Care Tharsuguda Private Limited Subsidiary india 100.00% 100.00%
Convenient Hospitals Limited Subsidiary India 95.00% -
United CHUGMA Institute of Medical Sciences Private Limited Subsidiary India 76.00% -
{vality Care Health Services india Private Limited = Joint verture India | 50.00% 50.00%

4.43 Unearned revenue
The Followimg table discloses the mov t in the unearned revenue during the ear ended 31 March 2023 aud 31 March 2022:

Particulars For the year ended  For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Balance at the beginning of the year 498 33.42
Revenue recognised during the year 498 3342
[evoiced during the year - 498
Bal at the end of the sear = 4.98

4,44 [n 2009, the Company had entered into an agreement with Andhra Pradesh [ndustrial Infrastructure Corporation Limited ("APIIC") to acquire 2 land parcel and
development of a Health City along with allied infrastructure (Project”) in Visakbapatnam, Andhra Pradesh. Pursuant to the terms of the said agreement, the APIIC
has allotted 4.1% acres of land to the Corpany upon payment of 10555 and included in Property, plant and equipment [refer note 4.1 {a)] subjected to conditional
registration of land in favor of the Company upon comgletion of the Project by 30 June 2020. The company has received extension of timeline from APIIC iill
Necember, 2023 Further the company has incucred sutn ageregating 1.093 .45 (31 March 2022: 564.17) towards land development and civil construction these on
which are inctuded in capital work-in-progress (refer note 4.2). Bascd on internal evaluation, the management of the Company is confident of completing the project
within stipulated timelines.
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Quality Care India Limited
Notes to the standalone financial statements
{All amounts in # millions. except share data and where otherwise stated)

4.45 Regulatory information

(i}  Details of benami property held
No proceedings have been initiated on or are pending against the company for holding benami prepecty under the Benami
Transactions (Probibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and Rules mada thercunder.

(i) Borrowing secured against ewrremt assets
The company has borrowings from banks and financial institutions oo the basis of security of current assets The quartetly
tevised returms or statements of current assets filed by the company with banks and financial institutions are in agreement
with the boeks of accounts.

(i)  Wilful defaulter

The company has not been declared wilful defavlter by any bank or financial institution or government or any govemment
authority.

(iv)  Relationship with struck off companies
The company has no transactions with the companies struck off under Companies Act, 2013 or Companies Act, 1956,

(v)  Compliance with number of layers of companies
The cornpany has complied with the number of layers prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013

(vl Compliance with approved schemae(s) of arrangements
The company has not entered into any scheme of arrangement which has an accounting impact on current or previous
financial year.

(vily Ltilisation of borrowed funds and share premium
(a) The company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds fo any other person{s) or entity(iss), including foreign entities
(Intermediaries) with the urderstanding that the Intermediary shall:
a. directly or indivectly lend or invest in other persens or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or
b. provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries.

{b) The Company has received funds from Touch Healthcare Private Limited, Holding company with the understanding that the
company shall further invest the funds in equity shares for the acquisition of 93% stake ir Convenient Hospitals Limited and
76% stake in United Ciigma Institute of Medical Sciences Private Limited. The Company has has not received any fund from
any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entitics (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or
otherwise) that the company shall provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries.

The details of date and amount of funds received from funding party during the +ear ended 3! March 2023 are as follows:

Name of the funding | Registered address of the | Relationship with the Date of fonds Amount of
pacty funding party fmnding party received funds veceived
Touch Healthcare 33 Edith Cavel] Street, |Holding Company ; 28-un23 | 341273 |
Private Limnited, 1 11324, | 25-Jul-23 | 3,178.40

The details of date and amount of funds further invested by the Company 1o ultimate beneficiaries during the year ended 31
March 2023 are as follows:

Name of the uvitimate = Registered address of the | Relationship with the | Date of investment |  Amount of

beneficiaries nltimate beneficiaries ultimate beneficiaries investment from
funds recelved
from Holding
i ! ! | Company |
Convenient Hospitals  Near LIG Square, Subsidiary Company 2%-Jun-23 341273
Limited A.B.Road, Indore, Madhya
_Pradesh - 452008, india. | | |
[United Ciigma Institute |Plot No. 6 & 7, Survey No.  Subsidiary Company 26-ful-23 3,17840
of Medical Sciences 10, Shahanoorwadi, Dargah
Private Limited Road, Aurangabad,
Maharashira - 431005,
[India.

{viii) Lndisclosed income
There is no income surrendered or disclosed as income during the current or previous year in the tax assessments under the
Income Tax Act, 1961, that has not been recordad in the books of account.

(ix)  Details of erypto currency or virtual carrvency
The company has not traded or invested in crypto currency or virtual currency during the current or previous year.

(x)  Valuation of Property, plant and equipment, intangible asset and investment property

The companty has not revalued its property, plant and equipment (including right-of-use assets) or intangible assets or both
during the current or previous year.
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Quality Care India Limited
Notes to the standalone finaneial statemen s
{All arnounts in ¥ millions, except share data and where otherwise stated)

447  Other regulatory information

(i} Titte deeds of immovable properties not held in aame of the company

The title deeds of all the immovable properties {other than properties where the company is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in
favour of the lessee), as disclosed in note 4.1 (a) te the financial statements, are held in the name of the company except for land aggregating to 2105.55,
(Refer note 4.44 for further details).

(i) Utilisation of borrowings availed from banks and financial institutions

The borrowings obtained by the company from banks and financial institutions have been applied for the purposes for which such loans were was taken.

(iii) The company has not given loansfadvances in the nature of loans to directors, promoters, KMPs or any other related parties which are repayable on
demand or without specifying terms & condilions of repayment.

(iv) Registration of charges or satisfaction with Registrar of Companies which are yet to be tegistered with the Registrar of Comgpanies beyond the
statutory period;

Charge holder aame Charge ID I Date of creation| Amount in INR Reason for delay

T o This charge belongs to old acquired company which wa_s|
ICICT Bank Limited 10568516 02-Aug-14 1,100.00 merged into QCILs Index of charges on merger, the
——— ' . +satisfaction could net be filed as the acquired company was
Andhra Bank 10160606 11-May-09 45,00 Mo longer in existence. The company is in the process of|
| | 1 getting the same removed
{CICI Bank Limited I0136344 g3 Dec 01 L Satisfaction of charge was done manually and the same was
IDBI | 90137502 | 19-Mai-93 | 49.50 ; X

- x T not reflected on conversion to electronic system on MCA

pew Bank O Indis | 90137145 20-Feh 88| 400 pertal. The company is in the process of petting the same
IDIBL | e013m107 15-Ma;-87 1000 72 - 8
IFCI Bank Ltd | S0137002 | 23-Jan-83 | 95.00

4.48 RBusingss combinations

On 14 April 2022, the Company has acquired Thumbay Hospital Mew Life, Hyderabad engaged in healthcare services business on a slump
sale basis. This acquisition is expected to further sirengthen the Company's presence in Hyderabad market. Management expects certain

synergies to be derived from this acquisition and accordingly, the goodwill recognised from this acquisition has been allocated to Thumbay
hospital unit.

‘The assets and liabilities acquired:

 Particulars Thumbay Hospital New Life
Property, plani and equipment 180.20
Inventory 2.66
Net identifiable assets acguired 182.86
Purchase consideration paid in cash ) 200.00
Goodwill recogmised (refer note 4.3) | 17.14

Also refer note 4.1(a) for the details of Property, plant and equipment acquired during the year as a part of this acquisition.

The above mentioned assets and liabilities are acquired at fair value as on acquisition date and there is no gain/loss atrributable on fair value.
The goodwill recognised is not deductible for tax purposes.

Revenue from operations and loss from the date of acquisition is ¥126.82 and 2144.33, respectively. If the acquisitions had occurred on 1
April 2022, the amount of revenue and Toss would have been ¥ 126.87 million and ¥144 .27, respectively.

4.4% Subsequent events

Quality Care India Limited (“QCIL") has divested iis entire equity investment held in Galaxy Care Multispeciatty Hospital Private Limited
(“Galaxy™) (15,810 equity shares) on fully diluted basis in the following manner:

1) Galaxy bas bought back 5,201 number of equity shares on 17 April 2023 for a consideration of 41.92

2y QCIL has transferred 10,609 number of equity Shares to the promoters of the Galaxy i.e., Dr. Shailesh Pagmakar Puntambekar and Dr.
Seema Shailesh Puntambekar for a consideration of 58.08.

Accordingly, as at 31 March 2023, investment held in Galaxy Care Multispecialty Hospital Private Limited (“Galaxy™) has been disclosed as
"Assets classified as beld for sale’.
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Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LIP

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Members of Quality Care India Limited
Report on the Andit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Opinion

1. We have audited the accompanying consolidated finaneial statements of Quality Care India Limited (hereinafter
referred to as the “Holding Company”) and its subsidiaries (Holding Company and its subsidiaries together referred
to as “the Group”) and joint venture {refer Note 2(f) to the attached consolidated financial statements), which comprise
the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2023, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other

2. In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
consolidated financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner
s0 required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of
the consolidated state of affairs of the Group and joint venture as at March 31, 2023, consplidated total comprehensive

income (comprising of profit and other comprehensive income), consolidated changes in equity and its consolidated
cash flows for the year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

3. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under Section 143(10) of the
Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the “Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Consolidated Financial Statements” section of our report, We are independent of the Group and joint venture in
accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial statements in
India in terms of the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the relevant
provisions of the Act, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements,
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit evidence obtained by the other anditors in terms of
their reports referred to in sub-paragraph 12 of the Other Matters section below is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our opinion.

Other Information

4. The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises
the information included in the Director’s report but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed and the reports of the other auditors as furnished to us (Refer paragraph 12 below),
we conclude that there is a2 material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

>

FHEE Wk Hhrus S Clpr tered Accountants LLP, Unit - 2B, 8th Floor, Octave Block, Block E1, Parcel - 4, Salarpuria
“hiteva Kniiuieds City, Raidurg, Hyderabad, Telangana - 500081
T: +91 (40} 4424 6000, F: +91 (40) 4424 6300

Registered office and Head office: 11-4, Vishnu Digamiber Marg, Suchela Bhawan, Gate No 2, 15t Floor, New Delhi - 110002

Price Waterhouse fa Partnership Firm) comverted into Price Waterhouse Ghartered Accountants LLP (a Limited Liability Parinership with LLP identity no: LLPIN MAC-5001)
with effect from July 25, 2014, Post its conversion to Prics Watsrhouse Chartered Accountants LLP, ils ICAI registration number is O12754N/NSD0016 (JCAI registration
number before conversion was 012754N)



Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Members of Quality Care India Limited
Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

7.

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and presentation of these consolidated
financial statements in term of the requirements of the Act that give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial
position, consolidated financial performance, consolidated cash flows, and consolidated changes in equity of the
Group including its joint venture in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including
the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act. The respective Board of Directors of the companies
included in the Group and of its joint venture are responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Group and of its joint venture and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies;
making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance
of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for

the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements by the Directors of the Holding Company, as
aforesaid.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Board of Directors of the companies included in
the Group and of its joint venture are responsible for assessing the ability of the Group and of its joint venture to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern
basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group and of its joint venture or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group and of its joint venture are responsible for
overseeing the financial reporting process of the Group and of its joint venture.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

8.

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an anditor's report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

® Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform andit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion, The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

® Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our
opinion on whether the Holding company has adequate internal financial controls with reference to
consolidated financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

® Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.




Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Members of Quality Care India Limited
Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements

10.

11,

® Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the ability of the Group and iis joint venture to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Qur conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our anditor’s report.

However, future events or conditions may cause the Group and its joint venture to cease to continue as a going
concern.

®  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

¢  Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group and its joint venture to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements,
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit of the financial statements of
such entities included in the consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent auditors. For
the other entities included in the consolidated financial statements, which have been audited by other auditors,
such other auditors remain responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audits carried ont
by them. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Holding Company and such other entities included in
the consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent auditors regarding, among other matters, the

planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit,

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safegnards.

Other Matters

13,

We did not audit the financial statements of one subsidiary whose financial statements reflect total assets of Rs. 0.04
million and net assets of Rs. (0.01) million as at March 31, 2023, total revenue of Rs. Nil, total comprehensive income
{comprising of loss and other comprehensive income) of Rs. Nil and net cash flows amounting to Rs. Nil for the year
ended on that date, as considered in the consolidated financial statements. The consolidated financial statements also
include the Group's share of total comprehensive income {comprising of loss and other comprehensive income) of Rs.
(0.01) million as considered in the consolidated financial staternents, in respect of joint venture whose financial
statements have not been audited by us. These financial statements have been audited by other auditors whose reports
have been furnished to us by the Management, and our opinion on the consolidated financial statements insofar as it
relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of this subsidiary and joint venture and our report in terms
of sub-section (3) of Section 143 of the Act including report on Other Information insofar as it relates to the aforesaid
subsidiary and joint venture, is based solely on the reports of the other auditors.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, and our report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

below, is not modified in respect of the above matters with respect to our reliance on the work done and the reporis
of the other auditors.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

13. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“CARO 2020"), issued by the Central

Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of Section 143 of the Act, we give in the Annexure B a
statement on the matter specified in paragraph 3(xxi) of CARQ 2020,
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Members of Quality Care India Limited
Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements

14. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report, to the extent applicable, that:

(a)

(b)

{(c)

(d)

(e)

(f)

(&)

(h)

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and
belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated financial statements,

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid
consolidated financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our examination of thase books
and the reports of the other auditors, except that the backup of books of account and other books and

papers maintained in electronic mode has not been maintained on a daily basis on servers physically
located in India during the year.

The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including other
comprehensive income), the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and the Consolidated Statement
of Cash Flows dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of account and records
maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements,

In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the Aceounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act.

On the hasis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding Company as on
March 31, 2023 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company and the reports of the
statutory auditors of its subsidiary companies and joint venture incorporated in India, none of the directors
of the Group companies and joint venture incorporated in India is disqualified as on March 31, 2023 from
being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

With respect to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith, reference is made to
our remarks in paragraph 14(b) above.

With respect to the adequacy of internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial
statements of the Group and of its joint venture and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to
our separate report in Annexure A.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the

Companies (Audit and Auditor’s) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us:

i, The consolidated financial statements disclose the impact of pending litigations on the consolidated

finaneial position of the Group and its joint venture— Refer Nate 4.36(a) to the consolidated finanecial
statements.

ii. The Group and its joint venture were not required to recognise a provision as at March 31, 2023
under the applicable law or accounting standards, as it does not have any material foreseeable losses

on long-terrn contract. The Group and joint venture did not have any derivative contracts as at March
31, 2023.

iii. Duringthe year ended March 31, 2023, there were no amounts which were required to be transferred
to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Holding Company, and its subsidiary
companies and joint venture incorporated in India.

iv. (@)  Therespective Managements of the Holding Company and its subsidiaries/ joint venture which
are companies incorporated in India whose financial statements have been andited under the
Act have represented to us and the other auditors of such subsidiaries/ joint venture
respectively that, to the best of their knowledge and belief, as disclosed in the notes to the
accounts, no funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been
advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other
sources or kind of funds) by the Holding Company or any of such subsidiaries/ joint venture to
or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (*Intermediaries”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, directly
or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by
or on behalf of the Holding Company or any of such subsidiaries/ joint venture (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries™) or provide any punarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries, (Refer Note 4.44(vii){A) to the consolidated financial statements);
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Members of Quality Care India Limited
Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements

(b)

©

The respective Managements of the Holding Company and its subsidiaries/ joint venture which
are companies incorporated in India whose financial statements have been audited under the Act
have represented to us and the other auditors of such subsidiaries/ joint venture respectively that,
to the best of their knowledge and belief, other than as disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no
funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been received by the
Holding Company or any of such subsidiaries/ Joint venture from any person(s) or entity(ies),
including foreign entities (“Funding Parties™), with the understanding, whether recorded in
writing or otherwise, that the Holding Company or any of such subsidiaries/ joint venture shall,
directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries, (Refer Note 4.44(vii)(B) to
the consolidated financial statements):

Based on the audit procedures, that has been considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, performed by us and those performed by the auditors of the subsidiaries/ joint
venture which are companies incorporated in India whose financial statements have been audited
under the Act, nothing has come to our or other auditor’s notice that has caused us or the other
auditors to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e) contain any
material misstatement.

v.  The Holding Company, its subsidiary companies and joint venture, has not declared or paid any
dividend during the year.

vi. As proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 (as amended), which provides for
books of account to have the feature of audit trail, edit log and related matters in the accounting
software used by the Group and joint venture, is applicable to the Group and joint venture only with
effect from financial year beginning April 1, 2023, the reporting under clause (g} of Rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended), is currently not applicable.

15. The Group and joint venture have paid/ provided for managerial remuneration in accordance with the requisite
approvals mandated by the provisions of Section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act.

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration Number: 012754N/N500016

Srikanth Pola
Partner

Membership Number: 220916
UDIN: 23220916BGXUX V5932

Place: Hyderabad

Date: August 23, 2023



Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP

Annexure A to Independent Auditor’s Report

Referred to in paragraph 14(g) of the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of Quality Care
India Limited on the consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to consolidated financial statements under clause
(i) of sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Act

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the Company as of and for the year ended
March 31, 2023, we were engaged to audit the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial
statements of Quality Care India Limited (“the Holding Company”) as of March 31, 2023 in conjunction with our audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the Quality Care India Limited and its subsidiary companies and joint
venture (* the Group”) for the year ended on that date,

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

2.

The respective Board of Directors of the Holding Company, subsidiary companies and joint venture, to whom
reporting under clause (i) of sub section 3 of Section 143 of the Act in respect of the adequacy of the internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements is applicable, which are companies incorporated in India, are
responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal control over financial
reporting criteria established by the Group considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (“the Guidance Note”) issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI”). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial conirols that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to Group’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention
and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable firancial information, as required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility

3.

4.

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Group's internal financial controls with reference to consolidated
financial statements based on our audit conducted in accordance with the Guidance Note and the Standards on
Auditing deemed to be prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act to the extent applicable to an audit of internal
financial controls, both applicable to an audit of internal financial controls and both issued by the ICAIL

Because of the matter described in Disclaimer of Opinion paragraph below, we were not able to obtain sufficient
appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis for an audit opinion on internal financial controls system with reference
to consolidated financial statements of the Group.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to consolidated financial statements

a.

A company's internal financial control with reference to consolidated financial statements is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of consolidated
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A Group's
internal financial control with reference to consolidated financial statements includes those policies and procedures
that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions
and dispositions of the assets of the Group; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as
necessary {o permit preparation of consolidated financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the Group are being made only in accordance with anthorisations of
management and respective directors of the Companies in the Group and joint venture; and (3) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the Group's
assets that could have a material effect on the consolidated financial statements.
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Referred to in paragraph 14(g) of the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of Quality Care
India Limited on the consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion

6.

As explained in Note 4.48 of the consolidated financial statements, the audit reports dated August 21, 2023 for the
following subsidiaries of the Holding Company: United Ciigma Institute of Medical Sciences Private Limited, Ciigma
Institute of Medical Sciences Private Limited, United Ciigma Hospitals Healthcare Private Limited, Convenient
Hospitals Limited and Heart Care Institute And Research Centre {Indore) Pvt Ltd for the year ended March 31, 2023,
contained a disclaimer of opinion on the system of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
which has been assessed as having a material and pervasive impact on the system of internal financial controls with
reference to consolidated financial statements of the Group.

Disclaimer of Opinion

7.

The audit reports on the system of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements for the following
subsidiaries of the Holding Company: United Ciigma Institute of Medical Sciences Private Limited, Ciigma Institute
of Medical Sciences Private Limited, United Ciigma Hospitals Healthcare Private Limjted, Convenient Hospitals
Limited and Heart Care Institute And Research Centre (Endore) Pvt Lid for the year ended March 31, 2023 contained
a disclaimer of opinion as detailed in Note 4.48 of the consolidated financial statements and, consequently, we are
unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis for our opinion on whether the Group had
adequate internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements and whether such internal
financial controls were operating effectively as at March 31, 2023 based on the internal control over fnancial reporting

criteria established by the Group considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note
issued by the ICAL

8. We have considered the disclaimer reported above in determining the nature, timing, and extent of audit tests applied

in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended March 31, 2023, and the
disclaimer does not affect our opinion on the consolidated financial statements of the Group.

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration Number: n12754N/N500016

Srikanth Pola

Partner

Membership Number: 220616
UDIN: 23220016BGXUX V5932

Place: Hyderabad
Date: August 23, 2023
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Annexure B to Independent Auditors’ Report

Referred to in paragraph 13 of the Independent Auditors’ Report of even date to the members of Quality Care India
Limited on the Consolidated Financial Statements as of and for the year ended March 31, 2023

As required by paragraph 3(xxi) of the CARO 2020, we report that the auditors of the following companies have given qualification
or adverse remarks in their CARO report on the standalone financial statements of the respective companies included in the
Consolidated Financial Statements of the Holding Company:

S.
No.

Nameofthe CIN Relationship
Company with the Holding
Company
(Holding
Company/
Subsidiary/
Joint Venture)
Quality Care U8510TG  Holding Company
India Limited  1992PLCo
14728
Galaxy Care U85110PN  Substdiary
Multispeciality ~2005PTCo  Company
Hospital Private 20122
Limited
Ganga Care UBs110M  Subsidiary
Hospital Hzoo05PL  Company
Limited Ci50811

Date of
the
respective
auditors’
report

August 21,
2023

August 21,
2023

August 21,
2023

Paragraph number and comment in
the respective CAROQ report
reproduced below

()(c) - The title deeds of all the immovable
properties {other than properties where the
Company is the lessee and the lease
agreements are duly executed in favour of the
lessee), as disclosed in Note 4.1 to the
standalone finanecial statements, are held in
the name of the Company, except for the
following: {Refer note 1 below)

(vii){a} - According to the information and
explanations given to us and the records of the
Company examined by us, in our opinion, the
Company is generally regular in depositing
undisputed statutory dues in respect of
provident fund, though there has been a slight
delay in a few cases, and is regular in
depositing undisputed  statutory  dues,
including, employees’ state insurance, sales
tax, income tax, service tax, duty of customs,
duty of excise, value added tax, cess, goods and
services tax and other material statutory dues,
as applicable, with the appropriate anthorities.

{vii){(a) - According to the information and
explanations given to us and the records of the
Company examined by us, in our opinion, the
Company is generally regular in depositing
undisputed statutory dues in respect of
provident fund, though there has been a slight
delay in a few cases, and is regular in
depositing undisputed statutory dues,
including, employees’ state insurance, sales
tax, income tax, service tax, duty of customs,
duty of excise, value added tax, cess, goods and
services tax and other material statutory dues,
as applicable, with the appropriate autharities.

(vii)(a) - According to the information and
explanations given to us and the records of the
Company examined by us, in our opinion, the
Company is generally regular in depositing
undisputed statutory dues in respect of
Income tax and provident fund, though there
has been a slight delay in a few cases, and is
regular in depositing undisputed statutory
dues, including employees’ state insurance,
sales tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of
excise, value added tax, cess, goods and
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Referred to in paragraph 13 of the Independent Auditors’ Report of even date to the members of Quality Care India
Limited on the Consolidated Financial Statements as of and for the year ended March 31, 2023

4. Ramkrishna U85110CT = Subsidiary August 21,
Care Medical ~ 1998PTCo Company 2023
Sciences Private 13035
Limited
5. Quality Care U85300T  Subsidiary August 21,
Jharsugnda G2016PTC  Company 2023
Private Limited 112746
6. Quality Care U85100T  Joint Venture August 21,
Health Services G2008PT 2023
India Private Cos8264
Limited
7. Convenient UBs110M  Subsidiary August 21,
Hospitals P1993PLC  Company 2023
Limited 007654
8. Heart Care U8s110M  Subsidiary August 21,
Institute And ~ P1999PTC  Company 2023
Research Centre 013924
(Indore) Pvt Ltd
g. United Ciigma ~ U74120M  Subsidiary August 21,
Institute of H2011PTC Company 2023
Medical 213136
Sciences Private
Limited

&

services tax and other material statutory dues,
as applicable, with the appropriate authorities.

(vii}(a) - According to the information and
explanations given to us and the records of the
Company examined by us, in our opinion, the
Company is generally regular in depositing
undisputed statutory dues in respect of goods
and services tax, though there has been a slight
delay in a few cases, and is regular in
depositing  undisputed  statutory  dues,
including provident fund, employees’ state
insurance, sales tax, income tax, service tax,
duty of customs, duty of excise, value added
tax, cess and other material statutory dues, as
applicable, with the appropriate authorities.

(xvii} - The Company has incurred cash losses
in the current and in the immediately
preceding financial year.

(xvii) - The Company has incurred cash losses
in the current and in the immediately
preceding financial year.

(vii}(a) - According to the information and
explanations given to us and the records of the
Company examined by us, in our opinion, the
Company is generally regular in depositing
undisputed statutory dues in rvespect of
Income tax, goods and service tax, provident
fund and employees’ state insurance, though
there has been a slight delay in a few cases, and
is regular in depositing undisputed statutory
dues, including sales tax, service tax, duty of
customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess
and other material statutory dues, as
applicable, with the appropriate authorities.

(vii)(a) - According to the information and
explanations given to us and the records of the
Company examined by us, in our opinion, the
Company is generally regular in depositing
undisputed statutory dues in respect of
Income tax, goods and service tax, provident
fund and employees’ state insurance, though
there has been a slight delay in a few cases, and
is regular in depositing undisputed statutory
dues, including sales tax, service tax, duty of
customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess
and other material statutory dues, as
applicable, with the appropriate authorities.

{(vii)(a) - According to the information and
explanations given to us and the records of the
Company examined by us, in our opinion, the
Company is generally regular in depositing
undisputed statutory dues in respect of
provident fund, Income tax and goods and
service tax, though there has been a slight
delay in a few cases, and is repular in
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Referred to in paragraph 13 of the Independent Aunditors” Report of even date to the members of Quality Care India

Limited on the Consolidated Financial Statements as of and for the year ended March 31, 2023

10.

11.

United Ciigma
Hospitals
Healthcare
Private Limited

UJ85110M
Hz016PT

Cz79990

Ciigma Institate U85110M
of Medical Hz007PT
Sciences Private  Ci72787
Limited

Subsidiary
Company

Subsidiary
Company

August 21,
2023

August 21,
2023

depositing  undisputed  statutory  dues,
including employees’ state insurance, sales
tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise,
value added tax, cess and other material
statutory dues, as applicable, with the
appropriate authorities.

(vii{a) - According to the information and
explanations given to us and the records of the
Company examined by us, in our opinion, the
Company is generally regular in depositing
undisputed statutory dues in respect of
Income tax and goods and service tax, though
there has been a slight delay in a few cases, and
is regular in depositing undisputed statutory
dues, including provident fund, employees’
state insurance, sales tax, service tax, duty of
customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess
and other material statwtory dues, as
applicable, with the appropriate authorities.

(i)(c)- The title deeds of all the immaovable
properties as disclosed in Note 4.1 to the
financial statements, are held in the name of
the Company, except for the following: (Refer
note 2 below).

(vii)(a) - According to the information and
explanations given to us and the records of the
Company examined by us, in our opinion, the
Company is generally regular in depositing
undisputed statutory dues in respect of
Income tax, Goods and service tax and
provident fund, though there has been a slight
delay in a few cases, and is regular in
depositing undisputed statutory  dues,
including employees’” state insurance, sales
tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise,
value added tax, cess and other material
statutory dues, as applicable, with the
appropriate authorities,

(xvii) - The Company has incurred cash losses
of Rs. 4.41 million in the financial year and had
not incurred cash losses in the immediately
preceding financial year.
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Referred to in paragraph 13 of the Independent Auditors’ Report of even date to the members of Quality Care India
Limited on the Consolidated Financial Statements as of and for the year ended March 31, 2023

Note 1:
Description of | Gross | Held in the Whether | Period held - | Reason for not being
property carrying name of promoter, indicate held in the name of the
value director or range, where | Company
(Rs. in their relative | appropriate
millions) or employee
Land, Plot no. 3 | 105.55 Andhra Pradesh | No From 2009 Refer note 4.1 to the
measuring  4.18 Industrial standalone financial
acres situated in Infrastructure statements and refer note
Chinagadili Corporation 4.1(b) to the consolidated
village, Limited | financial statements.
Visakhapatnam | | |
Note 2:
: ! : | . .
Description of | Gross | Held in the | Whether | Period | Reason for not being held in
property carrying name of promoter, | held the name of the Company
value (Rs, director or their
in million) relative or | [
| employee
Building located | 21.20 Unmesh Promoter and | 2007 Refer note 4.1 to the financial
in Aurangabad Vidyadhar director of the statements*
Takalkar Company

* Included in note 4.1{c} to the
consolidated financial
statements.

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration Number; 012754N/N500016

Qﬂ-j i ol -I!'f

Srikanth Pola

Partner

Membership Number: 220916
UDIN: 23220016BGXUX V5032

Place: Hyderabad
Date: August 23, 2023
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Quality Care India Limited
Consolidated Balance Sheet
(Al anounts i T millions, except share data and where otherwise stted)

Notes As at
Paticalay 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
ASSETS
A, Nom-current assets
{a Property, plant and equip a1 8.584.17 5,275.02
(b} Right-cf-use assets 4.2 191538 1,389.48
(¢} Capitad work-in-progress 43 1,257.10 62374
{dy Goodwill ) 4.4 6.042.1% 330.51
(¢} Other intangible assets 4.4 71981 78.14
i) Investiments 4.5 (a) 0.02 0.02
(2} Financial assets
{i) Other financial assets 4.6 (m) 667,59 18849
{h) Deferred tax azsets {ner) 4.7 (a) Ta4.02 904 98
(i) Non-currens tax assets (net) 47 (b) 571.24 68833
{j) Onther non-current assets 4.8 (a) 528.567 178.28
Total Ron-current assets (A) 21,030,19 9,657.01
B. Current assets
{a) [Inventories 49 266.75 152,53
{b) Finmcial agsets
(1) Investiments 4.5 (b)y 430.87 102935
(i) Trade receivables 4.10 1.796.41 1.172.61
{ifi) Cash and cash equivateris 4.11 (a} 52293 31551
{iv} Bank balances other than (iii} above 411(b) 57546 TIB T4
¥) Loans 4.12 243 0.41
{vi) Other financial assets 4.6 (b} 20088 224 68
(c}  Other current asssts 48t 91.23 85.80
(d) Assets hald for sale 449 293 81 -
Total current assets (B) 4,131.75 3,759.63
Total assets {A+B) 25211.94 13,416.64
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equlry
A. Equity
(&) Equity share capital 4,13 (a} 41497 414,97
{by  Other equity
(i}  Reserves and surplus 413 7,824 40 6,536.87
Equity attribatable to the owners of the Company 8,23%.37 6,951.84
(e} Non-contrelling interest 1,.988.26 520.88
Total equity (4) 10,227.63 747272
Linbilities
B. Non-Current Liabilities
(a} Financial liabilities
(i) Bormowings 4.14 2,979.96 1,859.10
i1} Lease liabilities 4.37 1.984.24 1.381.98
(iii} Other firancial liabilities 4.17 {a) 6.310.61 11.00
(b} Employes benefit obligat 4.15 {a) 176.18 153.95
(2] Deferred tax hiabiliries {net) 4.7 {a) 152.26
Total non-current Uabilities (B) 11,603,258 340603
C. Current Liabilities
(2) Financial Liabilities
(  Bomowings 4,14 513.61 42637
{ii} Lease Lliabilities 437 60,17 28288
{tii) Trade payables
(a) total outstaading duss of micro and small enterprises 4.16(a) 36.60 30.54
(b) total outstanding dues other than (iii) (a} above 4.16 (b) 1,654.86 1,406.34
{iv} Other financial Liabilities 417 (b 47617 159,12
{b) Employee banefit obligations 4.15 (b 122.00 96.57
{¢) Other currem liabilities 413 147.32 136.07
{d) Liabilitizs directly associated with assets held for salke 4.49 120353 -
Total current liabilities (C) - 338106 2,537.89
Total linbilities {B+C) 1498431 3,943.92
Total equity snd liabilities {A+B+C) 2520194 13,416.64
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the lidated financial
This is the Consolidated Balance Sheer referred to in our report of even date.
For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LILP For and on behalf of Board of Directors of
Finm'a Registration Mo; 012 754WN500016 Quality Care [ndia Limited
Ifl CIN: UBS110TGI992PLCO14T28 /]
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Anth Pola v B 1
Partner Massimiliano Cokella "
Membership No: 220916 Flnapet- Direk d Chief Executive Officer
DIN: 03729468 DIN:

Place + Dubai, UAE
Date; 23 Auguse 2023

it

GEyathri Chandramoulieswaran

Company Secretary
Membership No.: 41863

Place: Hyderabad, India

Place: Hyderabed
Date: 23 August 2023

Date: 23 August 2023

Place : Hyderabad

Vikat B tog
Chief Financial Officer

Place; Hyderabad
Date: 23 August 2023
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Quality Care India Limited
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss
(All amounts in ¥ millions, except sharé data and where otherwise stated)
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Irecior
Membcrshlp No: 220916 DIN: 08729468

Place : Dubai, UAE

Date: 23 August 2023
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Gayathri Chandramoulieswaran

Company Secretary
Membership No.: 41863
Place: Hyderabad, [ndia Place: Hyderabad
Date: 23 August 2023 Date: 23 August 2023

Jasd

Particulars Notes For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
I Revenue from operaticns 419 16,043.95 13,181.61
Il Other income 420 191,99 08.56
1 Total income {1+1EF) 16,235.94 13,280.17
IV Expenses
(i} Purchases of medical consumables and pharmacy items 3.580.83 3,075.44
(i) Changes in inventories of medical consumables and pharmacy items 4.21 (73.58) (9.41)
(iii) Employee benefits expense 4.22 2,244 89 1,982.45
(iv) Other expenses 4.23 711427 5.515.93
Total expenses (1V) 12,866.41 10,563.41
Y Earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation (EBITDA) (111-1V) 3.369.53 2.715.76
() Finance costs 4.24 B86.27 421.02
(ii) Depreciation and amortisation expenss 4.25 988.05 905.27
¥1 Profit before exceptional lems, share of loss of a joint venture and tax 1,495.21 1,389.47
Exceptional items 447 41,41 =
¥11 Profit before share of loss of a joint venture 1,453.80 1,389.47
(i} Share of loss of a joint venture 0.00 0.01
V1IN Profit before tax 1,453.80 1,389.46
IX Income Tax expense/(credif):
(i) Current tax expense 4.26 278.19 302.84
(i) MAT Credit 4.26 {74.62) -
(iiiy [Income tax relating to earlier periods 4.26 166.37 21.51
{iv) Deferred tax expense 4.26 100.66 {163.80)
Total tax expense 470,60 160.55
X Profit for the year (VIII-IX) 983.28 1,228.91
XI Other comprehensive income;
(it ltems that will not be reclassified to Statement of Profit and Loss
(a) Gain/{loss} on remeasurement of posi-employment benefit obligations 3.09 (7.08)
(ii) [ncome tax relating to these items (0.19) 2.19
Other Comprehensive income for the year, net of tax 2.90 (4.89)
XII Total comprehensive income for the year (X+XI) 986.10 1,224.02
XIH Profit for the year attributable to:
Ovwmners of the parent 850.54 1,157.87
Non-controlling interests 132.66 71.04
X1V Other compreheasive income attributgble to:
Owners of the parent 2.75 4.17)
Non-controlling interest 0.15 {0.72)
XV Total comprehensive income ateributable to:
Owners of the parent 853.29 1,153.70
Non-controlling interests 132.81 70.32
Earnings per equity share (Nominal value of equity share Z10 (31 March 2022 : T10))
Basic carnings per equity share {in ¥) 427 20.50 2190
Diluted eamings per equity share (in %} 20.50 2790
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
This is the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss referred to in our report of aven date.
.For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP For and on behalf of Board of Directors of
Firm's Registration No: 012754N/N500016 Quality Care India Umi*ﬂ]’ms

Directo 'c‘.l Chief Executive Officer

DIN: 02705303

Place ; Hyderabad

Date: 23 Awjost 2023

Chief Financial Offter

Place: Hyderabad

Date: 23 August 2023



Quality Care lndia Linited
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
(Al amounts in T miflions, except share data and where otherwise stated)

Particulars

Cash flow from operating activities
Profit before tax
Adjustrents:
Changes in fair value of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Share of loss of a joint venture
Depreciation and amortisation expense
Expected credir loss
Property plant and equipment written off
Lossf{profit} on sale of property, plant and equipment
Loss on sale of equity shares and loss om sale of mutual fimds
Share based compensation expense
Lease remeasurement (iain
Income/liabilities written back from operating activitics
Inventory writter off
frberest income
Finance costs
Change In operating assets and liabilities:

Increase in ventories
Increase in trade raceivables
(Increase ¥decrease in loans
Decrease in other assets
Inceease in other financial assets
Tncreass in irade payables
Increasef{ decrease) in provisions
Increase/{decrease) in other Gnancial liabilities
Incrense in other lizbilities
Cash generated from operations
Income tax {paid)¥refund, net
Net cash inflow from operating activities {A)

Cash flow from investing actlvities
Payments for property, plant and equipmens and intangible assers
Proceads from sale of property, plant and equipment
Purchase of mutual funds
Sale of mutwal funds
¥ for acquisition of subsidiarie
Enterest received on fixed deposits
Interest received on income tax refimd
Movement in other bank balances, net
Net cash outflow frem investing activities {B)

Cash flow from finawcing activities
Proceeds from borrowings
Fepaymenis of borrowings -
Proceeds from issue of preference shares
Interest paid
Dividend paid
Payment of lease liabilities
Net cash inflow (outflow) from financing activities (C)

Net increasef{decresse) in cash and cash equivabents(A + B + )
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
LCash and cash equivalents at the end of the year (nore 1)

Note 1:
Cash and cash equivalenss as per above compeise of the following
- Inchuded in cash and cath equivalents (refer note 4.11{a))
Cash on hand
Balances with banks in current accounts
- Assets classifled as held for gale
Balances as per Statement of Cash Flows

This is the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows referred to in our report of aven date.

For the period ended
31 March 2023

1,453,830

(45,603
988,05
5741
6.44
(13.82)
6.45
5.49)
0.75)
41.41
(82.61)
886.27
3,291.56

{73.58)
(343.25)
(L74)
213.85
(1710
626.97
(42.34)
2120
310.3%
3,980.39
(268.92)
371147

{1,651 54)
173.73
(637.55)
128808
{7.376.18)
4369
27.45
{146.33}
(8,278.65)

623.58
11,499.00)
6.591.14

(289.36)
(629.15)
4797.21

230.03
31551
545.54

For the |-e.riod ended
31 March 2023

1274
510,19
22.61

For Price Waterhowse Chartered Accountants LLP  For and on behalf of Board of Directors of

Firm's Registration No: 012754N/N300016

h-iig=a=4

Massimiliano Colella
Srikanth Pola i Mhiin ey
Pariner DIN: 08729468
Membership No: 220916

Plaze : Dubai, UAE

Date: 33 August 2023
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Quality Care India Limited
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For the rear ended
31 March 2022

1,389.46

{2717
0.01

505.67

105 78
529
39

(14.58)
(4.13)

4630}
380.59
2,698.53

{9.41)
{150.32)
12,05
4026
129.66)
17028
2248
{46.19)
0.20
2,708,122
(367.86)
234036

(664.08)
5142

{1,349.93)
35323

43.25
28.57
(1,537.54)

§5.53
{417.94)

{208.58)
{0.07)
(49269
{1,033.75)

(230.93)

546.44
315,51

For the year ended
31 March 2022

169
2t7 82

315.51

Drirecto Chiaf Executive Officer

DIN: 02705303

Place : Hydarabad

Date: 23 Angst 2023

Gayathri Chandramouvlieswaran Vilmsr-q g

Place: Hyderabad, India
Date: 23 August 2025

Company Secretary
Membership No.: 41363

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 23 Aupust 2023

Chief Financial Officer

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 23 August 2023
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Quality Cave India Limited
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(All amounts in ¥ millions, except share data and where otherwise staied)

1. Corporate information

The consolidated financial statements of "Quality Care India Limited” (“the Company”™ or “QCIL” or “Parent Company” or “Parent™} and its
subsidiaries {collectively referred to as “Group™) and a joint venture are for the year ended 31 March 2023, The Company is a public company
domiciled in India and is incorporated under the erstwhile provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 applicable in India, The registered office of
the Company is located at #6-3-248/2, Road no. 1, Banjara Hilts, Hyderabad - 500034,

The Group is primarily engaged in providing healthcare and related services. The Group has a network of multi-speciality hospitals across
various cities in lndia.

The Holding Company of QCIL is Touch Healthcare Private Limited and the Ultimate Holding Company upto 21 June 2019 was Abraaj
Growth Markets Health Fund General Partner Limited, United Arab Emirates (“UAE™. With effect from 21 June 2019, the Ultimate Holding
Company of QCIL has changed to Evercare Health Fund, L.P, Cayman Island. The consolidated financial statements were approved for
issue in accordance with a resolution of the Board of Directors on 23 August 2023,

2. Basis of preparation of Financial Statements

a) Statement of Compliance

The Consolidated Financial statements have been prepared and presented in accordance with all material aspects with the Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS) notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) [Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,
2015] and ather relevant provisions of the Act. Details of accounting policies are included in Note 3.

b) New and amended standards adopted

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs had vide notification dated 23 March 2022 notified Companies (Indjan Accounting Standards) Amendment
Rules, 2022 which amended certain accounting standards, and are effective 1 April 2022. These amendments did not have any impact on the
amounts recognised in prior periods and are not ¢xpected to significantly affect the current or future periods.

New and amended standards issued but not effective
The Ministry of Corporaie Affairs has vide notification dated 31 March 2023 notified Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment
Rules, 2023 (the *Rules’) which amends certain accounting standards, and are effective | April 2023,

The Rules predominantly amend Ind AS 12, Income taxes, and Ind AS [, Presentation of financial statements, The other amendments to [nd
AS notified by these rules are primarily in the nature of clarifications.
These amendments are not expected to have a material impact on the group in the current or future reporting periods and on foreseeable future

transactions. Specifically, no changes would be necessary as a consequence of amendments made to Ind AS 12 as the group’s accounting
policy already complies with the now mandatory treatment.

¢) Basis for measurement

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis under historical cost, except for the following:

i) certain financial assets and liabilities are measured either at fair value or at amortised cost depending on the classification:

ii) Liabilities for cash-sentled share-based payment arrangements; and

iiiy empleyee defined benefit liability are recognised as the net total of the fair value of plan assets, plus actuarial losses, less actuarial gaing
and the present value of the defined benefit obligation.

d) Functional and presentation currency
The consolidated financial statements are presented in T and all values are rounded to the nearest millions, except when otherwise indicated.

€) Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where a newly issued Accounting Standard is initially adopted or a revision to an
existing accounting standard requires a change in the accounting policy hitherto in use or for the purpose of better presentation of financial
statements. Management evaluates all recently issued or revised Accounting Standards on an ongoing basis and accordingly changes the
Accounting policies as applicable.

(o ) *



Quality Care India Limited
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(All amounts in ¥ millions, except share data and where otherwise stated)

1) Basis of consolidation
The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries and a joint venture.

List of subsidiaries and joint venture included in the consolidated financial statement is as under:

Name of the entity Relationship  Country of Projiortion of Ownership Interest as at
Incorporation 31 March 2023 (%) 31 March 2022 (%)

Ganga Care Hospital Limited (GCHL) Subsidiary India 74.13 74.13

Ramkrishna Care Medical Sciences Private Limited Subsidiary India 56.33 56.33

(RCMSPL)

Galaxy Care Multispecialty Hospital Private Limited Subsidiary India 16.00 76.00

{GCMHPL)

Quality Care Jharsuguda Private Limited (QCJPL) Subsidiary India 100.00 100.00

Convenient Hospitals Limited (CHL) Subsidiary [ndia 95.00 NIL

United Ciigma Institute of Medical Sciences Private Limited ~ Subsidiary Indiz 26.00 NIL

(UCIMSPL) '

Quality Care Health Services India Private Limited Joint Venture India 50.00 50.00

{QCHSPL)

(2) Busimess combinations

Business combinations are accounted for using the Acquisition method. The acquisition date is the date on which contrel is transferred to the
acquiret. The cost of an acquisition is measured as the aggregate of the consideration transferred measured at acquisition date fair value and
the amount of any non-controiling interests in the acquiree, For each business combination, the Group elects whether to measure the non-
controlling interests in the acquiree at fair value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. Acquisition-related costs
are expensed as incurred. For the non-controlling interests in consolidated subsidiaries, the Group efected to recognise the non-controlling
interests at its proportionate share of the acquited net identifiable assets.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed are at their acquisition date fair value. For this purpose, the
liabilities assumed include contingent liabilities representing present obligation and they are measured at their acquisition fair values
irrespective of the fact that outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is not probable. However, the deferred tax assets or liabilities,
and the assets or liabilities related to employee benefit arrangements are recognised and measured in accordance with Ind AS 12 [ncome Tax
and Ind AS 19 Employee Benefits, respectively.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and designation in
accordance with the contractual terms, economic circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date. If the business combination
is achieved in stages, any previously held equity interest is re-measured at its acquisition date fair value and any resulting gain or loss is
recognised in the Statement of profit and loss or Other Comprehensive Income (“OCI*), as appropriate.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the aggregate of the consideration transferred and the amount recognised for non-
controlling interests, and any previous interest held, over the net identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed, If the fair value of the net
assets acquired is in excess of the aggregate consideration transferred, the Group re-assesses whether it has correctly identified all of the assets
acquired and all of the liabilities assumed and reviews the procedures used to measure the amounts to be recognised at the acquisition date, If
the reassessment still results in an excess of the fair value of net assets acquired over the aggregate consideration transferred, then the gain is
recognised in OCI and accumulated in equity as capital reserve, However, if there is no clear evidence of bargain purchase, the entity
recognises the gain directly in equity as capital reserve, without routing the same through OCIL,
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Quality Care India Limited
Notes (o the Consolidated Financial Statements
(All amounts in ¥ millions, except share data and where otherwise stated)

{h} Subsidiaries 2nd joint venture

Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to
affect those retums through its power over the investee. Specifically, the Group controls an investee if and only if the Group has:

- power over the investes (Le. existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee):

- exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee; and

- the ability to use its power over the investée to affect its retums.

Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of voting rights result in control. To support this presumption and when the Group
has less than a majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all relsvant facts and circumstances in assessing
whether it has power over an investee, including:

- the contractual arangement with the other vote holders of the investee:

- rights arising from other contraciual arrangements;

- the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights; and

- the size of the Group’s holding of voting rights relative to the size and dispersion of the hotdings of the other voting rights holders.

The Group re-assesses whether or not it conirols an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of the
three elements of control. Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group
losses control of the subsidiary. Assets, liabilities, income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed-off during the year are included
in the consolidated financial statements from the date the Group gains control until the date the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Consolidated financial statements are prepared using uniform accounting policies for like transactions and other events in similar
circumstances. If a member of the Group uses accounting policies other than those adopted in the consolidated financial statements for like
transactions and events in similar circumstances, appropriate adjustments are made to that Group member’s financial statements in preparing
the consolidated financial statements to ensure conformity with the Group®s accounting policies.

The financial statements of all entities used for the purpose of consolidation are drawn up to same reporting date as that of the Parent
Company, i.e., year ended on 31 March. When the end of the reporting period of the Parent Company is different from that of a subsidiary, the
subsidiary prepares, for consolidation purposes, additional financial information as of the same date as the financial staternents of the Parent
Company to enable the Parent Company to consolidate the financial information of the subsidiary, unless it is impracticable to do so.

(i) Consolidation procedure

(a) Combine like items of assets, liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows of the Parent Company with those of its subsidiaries. For
this purpose, income and expenses of the subsidiary are based on the amounts of the assets and liabilities recognised in the consolidated
financial statements at the acquisition date.

(b) Offset (eliminate} the carrying amount of the parent’s investment in each subsidiary and the parent’s portion of equity of each subsidiary.
Business combinations policy explains how to account for any related goodwill or capital reserve.

{c} Eliminate in full intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between entities of the
Group (profits or losses resulting from intra- group transactions that are recognised in assets, such as inventory and fixed assets, are eliminated
in {ull). Intra-group losses may indicate an impairment that requires recognition in the consolidated financial statements. Ind AS12 Income
Taxes applies to temporary differences that arise from the elimination of profits and losses resuiting from intra-group transactions.

Profit or loss and each compenent of OCI are atiributed to the equity holders of the Parent of the Group and to the non-controlling interests,
even if this resuits in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity transaction. [f the Group loses
control over a subsidiary, it;

- Derecognises the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary;

~ Derecognises the carrying amount of any non-controlling interests;

- Derecognises the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity;

- Recognises the fair value of the consideration received;

~ Recognises the fair value of any investment retained;

- Recognises any surplus or deficit in the Statement of profit and loss; and

- Reclassifies the parent’s share of components previously recognised in OCI to the Statement of profit and loss or retained eamings, as
appropriate, as would be required if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets ot liabilities. \
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Quality Care India Limited
Notes to the Consolidated Fimancial Statements
(All amounts in ¥ millions, except share data and where otherwise stated)

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that have joint controf of the arrangement have rights to the net assets of the joint

Distributions received from a joint venture reduces the carrying amount of the investment, The carrying value of the Group's invesiment
includes goodwill identified on acquisition, net of any accumulated impairment losses, When the Group’s share of losses of a joint venture
exceeds its interest in that joint venture, the carrying amount of that intersst (including any long-termn investments} is reduced to zero and the
recognition of further losses is discontinued except to the extent that the Group has obligations or has made payments on behalf of the joint
venture. An investntent in a joint venture is accounted for using the equity method from the date on which the investee becomes a joint venture
and discontinues from the date when the investment ceases to be a joint venture, or when the investment is classified as held for sale.

The difference between the camying amount of the joint venture at the date the equity method was discontinued, and the fair value
of any retained interest and any proceeds from disposing of a part interest in the Joint venture is included in the determination of the gain or
loss en disposal of the joint venture. In addition, the Group accounts for all amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income in
relation to that joint venture on the same basis as would be required if that joint venture had directly disposed off the related assets or
liabilities. When a Group entity Iransacts with a joint venture of the Group, profits and losses resulting from the transactions with the joint
venture are recognised in the Group’s consolidated financial statements only to the extent of interests in the joint venture that are not related to
the Group.

{j) Current versus non-cerrent classification

The Group presents assets and liabilities in the Balance Sheet based on current/ non-current classification.

An asset is treated as current when it is:

- Expected to be reatised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle

- Held primarily for the purpose of trading

- Expected 0 be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

- Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to setile a liability for at least 12 months after the reporting period

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when;

- [t is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle

= [t is held primarily for the putpose of trading

- It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

- There is no unconditional right 1o defer the settiement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period
All other liabilities are classified as non-currens.

Deferred tax assets and liabitities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.
The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents. The Group
has identified twelve months as its operating cycle,

3A. Significant Accounting Policies

a. Foreign currencies
The functional currency of the Parent Company, its subsidiaries and joint venture is Indian rupee (INR). These financial statements are
presented in [ndian rupees, which is Parent Company’s functional currency.

b. Fair value measurement
The Group measures financial instruments at fair value at each Balance Sheet date.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transter a liability in an ordetly transaction between market participants
at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability
takes place either:

= In the principal market for the asset or lability, or

- In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Group.
The fair value of an asset or a Hability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability,
assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.




Quality Care Indis Limited
Notes 10 the Consolidated Financial Statements
(All amounts in ¥ millions, except share data and where otherwise stated)

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair
value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the fair value
hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

- Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

= Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the [owest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or indirectly
observable

- Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Group determiines whether transfers have
occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the fowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

The Group’s management determines the policies and procedures for both recurring fair value measurement, such as unquoted financial assets
measured at fair value, and for non-recurming measurement.

Extemal valuers are involved for valuation of significant assets, such as unquoted financial assets, and significant liabilities, such as
contingent consideration. [nvolvement of external valuers is decided upon annually by the management. Selection criteria include market
knowledge, reputation, independence and whether profissional standards are maintained,

At each reporting date, the management analyses the movements in the values of assets and liabilities which are required to be re-measured or
re-assessed as per the Group's accounting policies. For this analysis, the management verifies the major inputs applied in the latest valuation
by agreeing the information in the valuation computation to relevant documnents.

Fot the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Group has determined classes of assets and fiabilities on the basis of the naturg, characteristics
and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above.

¢. Revenue recognition

Revenue primarily comprises fees charged under contract for inpatient and/or outpatient hospital services and includes sale of medical and non-
medical items. Hospital services include charges for accommodation, medical professional services, equipment, radiology, laboratory,
pharmaceutical goods among others, used in treatments provided to the patients.

Revenue is recognized on satisfaction of performance obligation upon wansfer of control of promised products or services 10 customers in
an amount that reflects the consideration the Group expects to receive in exchange for those products or services,

The Group does not expect to have any coniracts where the period between the transfer of the promised goods or services to the customsr and
payment by the customer exceeds one year. As a consequence, it does not adjust any of the iransaction prices for the time value of money,

The Group satisfies a performance obligation and recognises revenue over time, if one of the following criteria is met:

- the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided by the Group’s performance as the Group performs;

- the Group’s performance creates or enhances an asset that the customer controls as the asset is created ot enhanced; or

- the Group's performance does not create an asset with an alternative use to the Group and an entity has an enforceable right to payment for
performance completed to date.

For performance obligations where one of the above conditions are not met, revenue is recognised at the point in time at which the
performance obligation is satisfied.

Goods and services tax is not received by the Group on its own account. Rather, it is tax collected by the Group on behalf of the Government.
Accordingly, it is excluded from revenue.




Quality Care India Limited
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(All amounts in ¥ millions, except share data and where otherwise stated)

Revenue from health care services and related activities

Income from healthcare services is recognised as revenue when the related services are rendered unless significant future uncertaintics exists.
Revenue is also recognised in relation to the services rendered, t the patients whe are undergoing treatment/observation on the balance sheet
date to the extent of services rendered. Revenue is recognised net of discounts and concessions, if any, given to the patieats and disallowances
including claims.

Other operating revenue comprises revenue from various ancillary revenue generating activitics such as clinical research, income from
outsourced facifities and academic/training services. The revenue in respect of such arrangements is recognized as and when services are
performed.

U'nbilled receivables and Gnearned revenue

Contract assets are recognised when there is excess of revenue earned over billings on contracts. Contract assets are classified as unbilled
receivables when there is unconditional right to receive cash, and only passage of time is required, as per contractual terms, Other contract
assets have been disclosed as contract assets within other assets.

Uneamned revenue (“contract liability™) s recognised when there are billings in excess of revenues. The billing schedules agreed with
customers could include periodic performance-based payments and/or milestone-based progress payments. Invoices are payable within

contractually agreed credit period. Advances received for services are reported as liabilities until all conditions for revenue recognition are
met. '

Contract modifications - Services added that are not distinct are accounted for on a cumulative catch up basis, while those that are distinct are
accounted for prospectively, either as a separate contract if the additional services are priced at the standalone selling price, or as a termination
of the existing contract and creation of a new contract if not priced a1 the standalone selling price.

Revenue from sale of pharmacy
Revenue from sale of pharmacy is recognised when control is transferred to the customer and no significant uncertainty exists regarding the
amount of the censideration that will be derived from the sale of the goods and regarding its coilection.

Interest Income

For all debt instruments measured at amortised cost, interest income is recorded using the effective interest rate {EIR). EIR is the rate that
exacily discounts the estimated future cash payments or receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, where
appropriate, to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset or to the amortised cost of a financial liability. When calculating the effective
interest rate, the Group estimates the expected cash flows by ¢onsidering all the contractual terms of the financial insirument (for example,
prepayment, extension, <all and similar options) but does not consider the expected credit losses. Interest income is included under other
income in the Statement of profit and loss.

Dividend Income
Dividend income is recognized when the Group's right 1o receive dividend is established.

d. Taxes

Current income tax

Current income tax assets and liabitities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax
raies and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date.

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profic or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income
or in equity). Current tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity. Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to
interpretation and considers whether it is probable that a taxation authority will accept as uncertain tax treatment, The Ciroup measures its tax
balances either based at the most {ikely amount or expected value, depending on which method provides a better prediction of the resolation of
the uncertainty.
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Quality Care lndia Limited
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(All amounts in T millions, except share data and where otherwise stated)

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the Balance Sheet approach on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts for financial repotting purposes at the reporting date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for alt taxable temporary differences, except when the deferred tax liability arises from the mitial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and any unused tax losses.
Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible femporary
differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except when the deferred tax asset relating to the
deductible temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of an asset ot liability in a ransaction that is not a business combination
and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss.

Deferred tax adsets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is realised or the liability is
settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-
assessed at cach reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred
tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income or in
equity}. Deferred tax items are recognised in corredation to the underlying transaction either in OCT or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

Minimum Alternate Tax {MAT) credit is recognised as an asset only when and to the extent it is reasonably certain that the Group will pay
normal income tax during the specified period. Such asset is reviewed at each Balance Sheet date and the carrying amount of the MAT credit
asset is written down to the extent there is no longer a convincing evidence to the effect that the Group will pay normal income tax during the
specified period.

e Property, plant and equipment (“PPE™)

All other items of property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less depreciation. Historical cost includes expenditure that is
directly attributable to the acquisition of the items. Cost may also include transfers from equity of any gains or losses on qualifying cash flow
hedges of foreign currency purchases of property, plant and equipment.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured refiably. The
carrying amount of any component accounted for as a separate asset is derecognised when replaced. All other repairs and maintenance are
charged to profit or loss during the reponting period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation is provided on the basis of straight line method, except for RCMSPL where depreciation is provided on the basis of writtent down
value method. Depreciation is provided using the useful lives and in the manner prescribed below:

Asset Class Useful Life [ Years)
Buildings 60
Plant and Machinery used in medical and surgical operations 13
Furmniture and Fixtures 10
Vehicles 8
Office Equipment 5
Computer equipment (end user devices) 3

e 'C.harlerec-i,'q '--':;.';{“
S QuSe e 0ey, Si,
ST PIN RAC-5007 7 N
{ g [ |?_ 11

AN AN
W Riorarsame® 7
i __:___.":_ !-fyckg_;aba._d___:_.__-_-::.-



.Quality Care Indis Limited
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
{All amounts in ¥ millions, except share data and where otherwise stated)

Leasehold improvements are depreciated over the shorter of their useful life or the lease term, unless the entity expects to use the assets beyond
the lease term.

The useful lives have been determined based on technical evaluation done by the management's expert which are higher than those specified
by Schedule 11 to the Companies Act; 2013, in order to reflect the actual usage of the assets, The residual values are not more than 5% of the
original cost of the asset.

The assets” residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset's carrying amount is greater than its estimated
recoverable amount. Gains and losses on disposals are determined by compating proceeds with carrying amount. These are included in profit
or loss within other gains/(losses).

f. Goodwill and other intangible assets

Other intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial recognition, other intangible assets are
camied at cost less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. Intemally generated intangibles, excluding
capitatised development costs, are not capitalised and the related expenditure is reflected in the Statemens of prodic and loss in the period in
which the expenditure is incurred.

Other intangibe assets are amortised on straight line basis over the estimated usefuf economic life. The estimated useful life of other intangible
assets is mentioned below:

- Asset ) Useful Life |Years)
Software 3wl

Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of other intangible assets are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amounts of the assets and are recognised in the (*SPL") when the assets are derecognised.

Goodwill arising on business combination is recorded at excess of the consideration paid over the fair value of the net assets taken-over and is
subsequently me¢asured at cost less accurnulated impairment losses, if any.

g. Borrowing cost

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition or construction of an asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get
ready for its intended use are capitalised as part of the cost of the asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they
occur. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borowing of funds, Borrowing cost also
includes exchange differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing costs.

h. Leases
The Group as a lessee

Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a corresponding liability at the date at which the leased asset is available for use by the
Group. Contracts may contain both lease and non-lease components, Thé Group allocates the consideration in the contract to the lease and non-
lease components based on their relative stand-alone prices. However, for leases of real estate for which the Group is a lessee, it has clected
not to separate lease and non-lease components and instead accounts for these as a single lease component.

Assets and liahilities arising from a lease are initially measured on a present value basis. Leass liabilities include the net present value of the
following lease payments:

» fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less any lease incentives receivable

» variable lease payment that are based on an index or a rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at the commencement date

» amounts expected 1o be payable by the Group under residual value guarantess

* the exetcise price of a purchase option if the Group is reasonably certain to exercise that option, and

* payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the Group exercising that option.
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Quality Care India Limited
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Al amounts in T millions, except share data and where atherwise stated)

Lease payments to be made under reasonably ceriain extension options are also included in the measurement of the liability. The lease
payments are discounied using the interest rate implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be readily determined, which is generally the case for
leases in the Group, the lessee’s incremental horrowing rate is used, being the rate that the individual lessee would have to pay to borrow the
funds necessary to obiain an asset of similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic environment with similar terms, security and
conditions.

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the Group:

* where possible, uses recent third-party financing received by the individual lessee as a starting point, adjusted to reflect changes in financing
conditions since third party financing was received

» uses a build-up approach that starts with a risk-free interest rate adjusted for credit risk for leases held by the Group, which does not have
recent third party financing, and

« makes adjustments specific to the lease, e.g. term, country, currency and security.

If a readily observable amortising loan rate is available to the individual lessee (through recent financing or market data) which has a simitar
payment profile to the lease, then the Group use that rate as a starting point to determine the incremental borrowing rate.

The Group is exposed to potential future increases in variable lease payments based on an index or rate, which are not included in the lease
liability until they take effect. When adjustments to lease payments based on an index or rate take effect, the lease Tiability is reassessed and
adjusted against the right-of-use asset.

Lease payments are allocated between principal and finance cost. The finance cost is charged to profit or loss over the lease period so as to
produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability for each period.

Variable Iease payments that depend on sales are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which the condition that triggers those payments
occurs.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the following;

» the amount of the initial measurement of tease liability

» any lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received
« any initial direct costs, and

« restoration costs.

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the shorter of the asset's useful life and the lease term on a straight-line basis. If the Group is
reasonably certain to exercise a purchase option, the right-of-use assei is depreciated over the underlying asset’s useful life.

Payments associated with short-term leases of equipment and ell leases of low=value assets are recognised on a straight-line basis as an
expense in profit or loss. Short-term leases are feases with a lease term of 12 months or less.

i. [nventories

Inventory of medical supplies, drugs and other consumables are valued at lower of cost or net realizable value, Cost of medical supplies, drugs
and other consumables is determined on the basis of Weighted Average Method. Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business, less estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Cost of inventories include purchase price, import duties and other taxes excluding taxes those are subsequently recoverable from the
concerned authorities, freight inwards and other expenditure incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition.

j- Impairment of non-financisl assets
The Group’s non-financial assets are reviewed at each reporting date 10 determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such
indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated.

For impairment testing, assets that do not generate independent cash inflows are companied together into cash-generating units (CGUs). Each

CGU represents the smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or
CGUs.

Goodwill arising from a business combination is allocated to CGUs or groups of CGUs that are expected 1o benefit from the synergies of the
combination.
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Quality Care India Limited
Notes to the Censolidated Financial Statements
{All amounts in ¥ millions, except share data and where otherwise stated)

The tecoverable amount of a2 CGU (or an individual asset) is the higher of its value in use and its fair value less costs to sell. Value in use is
based on the estimated future cash flows, discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time valug of money and the rigks specific to the CGU (or the asset).

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its estimated recoverable amount, [mpairment
losses are recognised in the Statement of profit and loss.

An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not subsequently reversed. In respect of other asseis for which impaimment {oss has been
recognised in prior periods, the Group reviews at each reporting date whether there is any indication that the loss has decreased ot no longer
exists. An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. Such a reversal is
made only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of
depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised.

k. Provision and contingencies

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that an
outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount
of the obligation.

When the Group expects some or all of a provision t¢ be reimbursed, reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset, but only when the
reimbursement is virtually certain, The expense relating to a provision is presented in the Statement of profit and loss ("SPL") net of any
reimbursement.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions ate discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the
risks specific to the liability, When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

Contingencies
Contingent liabilities is identified and disclosed with respect to following:
{i} a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence wili be confirmed only by the sccurrence or non-occurrence of one
or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the entity; or
{ii} apresent obligation that arises from past events but is not recognised because;
- it is not probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation; or
- the amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliabitiey.
Contingent assets are neither recognized nor disclosed, unless inflow of economic benefits is probable.
However, when realization of income is virtwally certain, related asset is recognized.

I. Employee benefits
Short term benefits
Short Term Employes Benefits are accounted for in the period during which the services have been rendered,

Post-employment benefits and other long term employee benefits

Provident Fund: Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme. The contributions to the provident fund
administered by the Central Government under the Provident Fund Act, 1952, are charged to the Siatement of profit and loss ("SPL.") for the
year in which the contributions are due. The Group has no obligation, other than the contribution payable to the provident fund.

Gratuity: The Group operates a defined benefit gratuity plan in India, which requires contributions to be made to a separately administered
fund. The cost of providing benefits under the defined benefit plan is determined using the projected unit credit method,

Remeasurements, comprising maioly of actuarial gains and losses, are recognised immediately in the Balance Sheet with a
corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through OC1 in the period in which they occur. Remeasurements are not reclassified to the
Statement of profit and loss in subsequent periods.
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Quality Care India Limited
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
{All amounts in ¥ millions, except share data and where otherwise stated)

Leave Encashment: Accrued liability for leave encashment including sick leave is determined on actuarial valuation basis using Projected
Unit Credit (PUC) Method at the end of the year and provided completely in profit and loss account as per ind AS - 19 "Employee Benefits”.

m. Financial instruments

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair valve through profit or loss,
transaction costs that are attributable 10 the acquisition of the financial asset.

Eijuily_instruments

All equity investments in scope of Ind-AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity instruments which are held for trading are classified as at
FYTPL. For all other equity instruments, the Group decides to classify the same either as at FYTOCI or FVTPL. The Group makes such
election on an instrument-by- instrument basis. The classification is made on initial recognition and is irevocable.

[F the Group decides to classify an equity instrument as at FYTOCL, then all fair value changes on the instrument, excluding dividends, are
recognized in the OCI. There is no recycling of the amounts from OCT 1o Statement of profit and loss, even on safe of investment. However,
the Group may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity.

De-recognition

A fimancial asset is primarily derecognised when:

- The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

- The Group has transferved its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full
without material delay to a third party under a “pass-through” arrangement; and ¢ither (a) the Group has iransferred substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has
rransferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass- through arrangement, it evaluates if
and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks
and rewards of the asset, nor transferred conirol of the asset, the Group continues to fecognise the transferred asset to the extent of the Group’s
continuing involvement. In that case, the Group alse recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are
measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Group has retained,

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying amount
of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Group could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets
in accordance with Ind AS 109, the Group applies expected credit loss (ECL} model for measurement and recoghition of impairment loss on
the foltlowing financial assets and credit risk exposure:

- Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortised cost €.g., foans, debt securities, deposits, trade receivables,
unbilled receivables and bank balances.

The Group follows “simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on trade receivables that do not contain a significant
finanicing component.

The application of simplified approach does not require the Group to irack changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognises impairment loss
allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right from its initiai recognition.

For trade receivables or any another financial asset that result from transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 115, the Group always
measures the loss allowance at an amount equal fo the lifetime expected credit losses. Further, for the purpose of measuring lifetime expected
credit loss allowance for these assets, the Group has used a practical expedient method as permitted under Ind AS 109, This expected credit
loss allowance is computed based on a provision matrix which takes inte account historical credit loss experience and adjusted for forward-
looking information.

LR T reanms®
= =X_Hyderabad _*




Quality Care India Limited
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(Al amounts in ¥ millions, except share data and where otherwise stated)

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial instrument.

ECL is the differenice between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that

the entity expects to receive (i.e., all cash shortfalls), discounted at the original EIR. When estimating the cash flows, an entity is required to
consider:

- All contractual terms of the financial instrument (including prepayment, extension, call and similar options) over the expected life of the

financial instrument. However, in rare cases when the expected life of the financial instrument cannot be estimated reliably, then the entity is
required to use the remaining contraciual term of the financial instrament

- Cash flows from the sale of coltateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms

ECL impairment loss allowance {or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized as income/ expense in Statement of Profit and Loss
("SPL"). The Balance Sheet presentation for various financial instruments is described below:

- Financial assets measured as at amortised cost: ECL is presented as an allowance, ie., as an integral part of the measurement of those assets
in the Balance Sheet. The allowance reduces the net carrying amount. Until the asset meets write-off criteria, the Group does not reduce
impairment allowance fiom the gross carrying amount.

Financial linbilities

Initial recoznition and measurement

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction
costs.

The Group's financial liabilities include trade and other payables and borrowings.

Subseijuent measurement

Borrowings

After initial recognition, mterest-bearing borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are
recognised in Statement of profit and loss {"SPL"} when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisatéon Process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the
EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in the Statement of profit and loss.

Trade and other pasables

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Group prior to the end of financial year which are unpaid. The
amounts are unsecured and are usually paid as per agreed terms. Trade and other payables are presented as current liabilities unless payment is
not due within 12 months after the reporting period. They are recognised initially at their fair value and subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method,

De-recognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing financial
liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantiafly
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the de-recognition of the original liability and the recoghition of a new liability,
The difference in the respective canrying amounts is recognised in Statement of profit and loss ("SPL").

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the Balance Sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal
right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and setile the liabilities
simultancously. I
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Quality Care India Limited
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(All amounts in € millions, except share data and where otherwise stated)

n. Earnings per equity share
Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity sharcholders (after deducting
preference dividends and attributable taxes) by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period.

For the purpose of catculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders and the
weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

o. Cash flow statement

The cash flow statement is prepared as per the Indirect Method, Cash Flow Statements present the cash flows by operating, financing and
investing activities of the Group, Operating cash flows are amived by adjusting profit or loss before tax for the effects of transactions of a non-
cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash receipts or payments, and items of income ot expense associated with
investing or financing ¢ash flows.

For the purpose of Cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash on hand and balances with banks in current accounts,
balances in cash credit accounts and short-term deposits with maturity of three months or less.

p- Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the Balance Sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with maturity of three months or
less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value,

q. Measurement of profit/Earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation (EBITDA)
As permitted by the Guidance Note on division II - Ind AS Schedule [II to the Act, the Group has elected to present earnings before interest,
tax, depreciation and amortisation (EBITRA) as a separate line item on the face of the Statement of profit and loss,

In its measurement of EBITDA, the Group includes other income but does not include depreciation and amortisation expense, impairment
losses, finance cost and tax expense,

3B. Key accounting estimates and judgements

3.1 Critical accounting estimates

2. Defined benefit plans and other long-term benefit plan

The cost and present value of the defined benefit gratuity plan and leave encashment (other long-term benefit plan) are determined using
actuarial vafuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developrnents in the future.
These include the determination of the discount rate, future salary increases and monality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the
valuation and its long- term nature, a defined benefit obligation and other long-term benefits are highly sensitive to changes in these
assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

b. Useful lives of depreciable and amortisable assets

The Group reviews the estimated useful lives and residual value of Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets at the end of each
reporting period. The factors such as changes in the expected tevel of usage, technological developments and product life-cycle, could
significantly impact the economic useful lives and the residual values of these assets. Consequently, the future depreciation and amortization
charge could be revised and thereby could have an impact on the future vears.

c. Impairment of Goodwill
Goodwill with indefinite life is tested for impairment on an annual basis and whenever there is an indication that the recoverable amount of a

cash generating unit is less than its carrying amount. The recoverable amount of cash generating units is determined based on higher of value-
in-use and fair value less cost to sell,

The goodwill impairment test is performexd at the level of the cash-generating unit which are benefiting from the synergies of the acquisition
and which represents the lowest level at which goodwill is monitored for internal management purposes. Market related information and
¢stimates are used to determine the recoverable amount.
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Quality Care India Limited
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
{All amounts in ¥ millions, except share data and where otherwise stated)

d. Expected Credit Loss

The impairment provision for trade receivables and unbilled receivables is based on assumptions about risk of default and expected loss rates.
The Group uses judgements in making certain assumptions and selecting inputs to determine impairment of these trade receivables, based on
the Group’s historical experience towards potential billing adjustments, delays and defaults at the end of each reporting period.

€. Assessment of claims and litigations disclosed as contingent liabilities

There are cerfain claims and litigations which have been assessed as contingent liabilities by the Management which may have an
effect on the operations of the Group should the same be decided against the Group.

The Management has assessed that no further provision / adjustment is required to be made in these Consolidated Financial Statements for the
above matters, other than what has been already recorded, as they expect a favourable decision based on their assessment and the advice given
by the external legal counsels / professional advisors,

f. Fair valuation of assets and liabilities acquired in business combination

The Group allocates the purchase price of the acquired entities to the tangible, intangible and other assets acquired and liabilities assumed
based on their esimated fair values. The Group engages thitd-party external appraisal firms to assist in determining the fair values of the
acquired assets and liabilities wherever necded. Such valuation requires the Group to make significant estimate and assumptions, especially
with respect to identification and valuation of intangible assets and fair value of property, plant and equipment,
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Chellity Care India Limited
Notes io the Coasolidated fi I
(All amounts i £ millions, except share data and where ofherwise stated)

4.5  Investmemis

Particulars As at As ar
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
11 Nor-curvent
Unqusted
Investment in foinl venture- aceounted for usie the squity method
- 5.000131 March 2022. 5,000) aquity shares in Quality Care Health Services India Privare Limilsd 0.02 o2
Aggregate t of unruosed & [EY] o2 0.02
! !! gnmnl
Investment in mutual fonds
Quated
176,889 (31 March 2022: 176,889) units IDFC Ultra Short Term Fund-Grothe{ Cirect Plan) 592 $.64
1,3%0 (31 March 2022: 1,390) unnis in LIDFC Swper Saver Income Fund-Medium-Term Plan-Growsh 0.06 0.08
Nil (31 March 2022: 23,33.355) unirs LET Money Market Fund - Growth . 50,00
Nil (31 March 2022; 40,568) units LTI Money Marker Furid - Growrh R 100.30
Mil 131 March 2022; 261,003} units Nippon [ndia Money Market Fund - Growth . 51355
23,774 (31 March 2022 : Nil) unita Nippon [ndia Ulira Short Durstion Fund 2193
121 (31 March 2022 : Nil) units Nippon India Gvernight Fund (Growth) 0.01
3,139,486 (31 March 2022 - Nil} ynits UTI Dynamic Bond Fund 22,09
742067 (31 March 2022 . Nil} units SB1 Savings Fund - Regular Plan Growth 26.1%
144,352 (31 March 2022 _ Nil} units KCICTPrudential Mutual Fund 46,37
38,847 (31 March 2022 : Nil} units HOFC Money Market Fund 188,19
Toral 434.87 1.029.35
Aggrepate sf quoted i and market vabee thereof (B) 430.87 102,35
Aggregate saspamt of quoted & unquated invesiments {A) + (B} 430,59 1.029.37
46 Other finasiciad assets
Partlculars As at Asal
31 March 2023 31 March 2002
L) Notterrens
Umserured, considered sood
Security deposits 13781 139.86
Pirxed deposits with banks with more than 12 months maiurity 467.51 4239
Inrevest accrued oo fixed deposils with banks 1227 6,24
Totad 66759 188.40
(b} Crarremt
Ussecured, considered jood
Security deposits i385 51.58
Irnerest accrued on fixed deposits with banks 409 12,89
Unbillzd receivables 148.01 131357
Onhere. 2193 26,64
Totsl 200.88 4
4.7 (%) Delerved tax assets/| liabitites)
The Tellowing is the anal;sis of deferved tax assets, net vecognised in the Statement of Profii and Loas and other comprehenzive ineanse
{i} Deferred tax assets in relation to: Asal Additions on accomnt  [(Chargedioredited  Charged/{cradited) Reacognised in Deferred tax velated Asal
L Apsil 2022 of baai to S ol fo other Other Equity to Assests hebd for 31 March 2023
combinatien Prafit snd Loss comprehensive ke
mcome
B 1at d eosl %513 {0.03) - - - {2.54)
Expactad credit loss 209 30 FO V7776 - - {167 108,91
lizwable on d of TDS 2125 13.30 - - {0.07) M8
[ncbemnmbenaﬁ of land ®725 766 - - 94,91
Lozs from specified husiness | Refer oote below}) 1,150.74 {34037 - - £10,37
Lass from business {Refer note below) - 4782 - - 4782
MAT credit 1349 7462 - - 10811
O interes) sxpomse: of COPS 13110 - - I3tia
On equity compenem of CCES - - §233.24) (233.24)
Others 10.24) - - - {0.24)
Provisica for bad and doobiful toms 23.00 . - - 2300
Provision for employes benefils 11084 42 {7.89) (2.48) {1.86) 100.07
Provision for lease lisbilities 54059 157,05 - - {1785 709,79
Property, plant and equipoment (778 52) (16.94) 22193 - $3.39) {576.88)
Raght-of-use assets 45072 168193 - - 14.27 604,641
Total 904.98 96.00 10,11 — )] _1233.24) | 53 T44.02
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Quality Care Indin Limited

Notes to the C

KA oand i1 Eal

(Al asoounts in Z millions, except share data 20d where othervise stared)

(ii) Deferved 1ax Gabdities in relation ta:

Expected credit loss.

Expenses allowable on deducrion of TDS

Indexarion benefit of land

MAT Crednt

Oa equity component of loan taken frot holding company
Property, plant and equipment

Provision for empkyee benefis

Total

{iliy Peferved eax assets/(liabilities) in velation tn:

A at ised cost

Expmed amdlt loss

llowable on deduction of TDS

Indmnun benefit of lwid

Others

Loss froen specified business (Refer note below)
Praperty, plant and equipment ("PPE")
Provision for bad and doubtful loans

Provision for emploves benefits

Provision for lease abilines

Righr-of-use assets

Torad
Note:

(1) The Group hes recognised deferred tax asser on carried forward business loss of ealier years from specified business, as defined under Section 35AD of the Incoms Tax Act,
aloresaid business bosses s per the provisions of Income Tax Act, 1961, The Group has eamed profits on specified business in the current year and p

As at

| April 2022

Additions on acromnt  (Charged)Voredited  (Chargedieredited As at
of b s of to sther 31 March 2023
combinatsa Profit amd Lass comprebensive
bacome

{15.7h B33 - [6.B0)

- 14.81} . {481

3.14) (1,48} - (9.62)

1051 - - {0.51)

176 5% 818 - 185.14

12.38) 4.5 26T {1.1h

139.60 15.33 267 15226

Az at {Charged)yoredited (Chargedyeredited Az af
1 Apwil 2021 o Staiement off o other 31 March 2022
Prafit and Loss comprehensive
income

112.5%) kX - (%50

179.72 2958 - 20930

- 2125 . 2025

- B¥.25 - §7 25
703 [2737) - {0.24)

L408.24 {25750y - Lise T
{1,048.7%) 260.73 . (778.52)

2500 - - 1300

BRIV 2148 et LIT.Ba

63495 1£14.36} - w059

581420 130. 70 - 150.72)

T390 16330 119 904,98

1961, There iz no time limit for cnm_.-ing forward

year. The

has

Tuded that such defurred 1ax asset will be

recoverable using the estimated future taxable income based on appmued busmess plans and budgets of the Geoup These losses can be caried Forwerd for an indefinue pariod as per the pnmslons of Income Tax Act, 1961,

(i} The CGroup has ako recognised defarred eax asset on current year b

luded that such daf;

business plans and budeets of the group.

b Noni- corvens tn asseds oel

Particulars

Advance incote uec (et of provision Eor fxalion)

Total

f_,f uge Chartared,q
1

f-"' \9‘\-"{\_?\ AAC-5007 ,,;,%\\\
|

Qx%mwm\%o 4
rabad S

d tax assat wall be

1

uging lhe

d future taxable mcome based on approved

Asat Asat

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
§71.24 68833
57124 688,33



Quality Care India Limited

Notes to the Consolidated financial statements
(All amounts in T millions, except share data and where otherwise stated)

4.8 Other assets
Particulars As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
(a} Non-current
Unsecured, considered good
Statutory dues paid under protest 58.66 60,22
Capital advances 450.58 107.55
Prepaid expenses 297 3.46
Others 16.46 7.05
Total 528.67 178.28
{b) Current
Unsecured, considered pood
Prepaid expenses 46.34 35.15
Advances to vendors 41.23 4785
Others 3.66 2.80
Total 91.23 85.80
4.9 loventories*
Particulars Asat As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Medical consumables and pharmacy items 24471 149.51
Other consumables 22.02 3.02
Total 266.73 152.53
*Refer note 4.14 for details of inventories pledged as security/hypothecated, if any.
4,10 Trade reeeivables
A Asat As at
Far@ieuldss 31 March2023 31 March 2022
Trade receivables considered good - unsecured 1,944.42 1,306.18
Trade receivables which bave significant increase in credit risk 373.18 494.15
Total 2,317.60 1,300.33
Less: Expected credit loss* {373.13) {494.13)
Total trade recelvables and unbilled revenue 1,944.42 1,306.18
Trade receivables 1,796.41 1,172.61
Unbilled revenue recognised in other financial assets (refer note 4.6 (b)) 148.01 133.57
*The movement in the expected credit loss on trade receivables for the year ended 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022 is as follows:
For the vear ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Opening balance at beginning of the year 45415 537.99
Provision made during the year (refer note 4.23) 57.41 105.78
Bad debts written off during the year (503.23) (149.62)
Liabilities directly associated with assets held for sale (6.65)
Additions on account of business combination 331.50 -
Closing balance at end of the year ¥73.18 494.15
Ageing of trade receivables and unbilled as at March 31 2023
| Outstandiag for following periods from the due date
Particulars Unbilled| Not due Less than | 6 months - 1 More than
1-2 years 2-3 years Total
6 months vear 3 vears
Undisputed trade receivables and unbilled
-Considered good | 148.01 688.74 789.90 269.77 48.00 - - 1,944 42
-which have significant Y1 37.51 99.80 120.29 68.02 2926 12.89 37318
increase in credit risk l
| -Expected credit loss 1541 (37.51) (99.80)  (120.29) (68.02) {25.26) (12.39) (373.18)
Total | 148.01 688.74 789.90 269,77 48.00 - - 1,944.42




Quality Care India Limited

Notes to the Consolidated financial statements
{All amounts in ¥ millions. except share data and where otherwise staied)

Apeing of trade receivables and unbilled as at 31 March 2022

| | Qutstanding for following periods from the due date
Particul |Unbilled| ~otd )
articulars nbille ot due Less than | 6 months - 1 1-2 years 2.3 years More than Total
6 months year | 3 years
Undisputed trade receivables and unbilled = )
-Considered good 133.57 438.78 639.76 92.39 1.68 - l - | 1.306.18 |
-which have significant - 74.00 130.51 66.37 92.46 65.84 6497 494,15
increase in credic risk |
- -Expected credit loss ) (74.00) (130.51) (66.37) (92.46) 165.84) (64.97) {494.15)
Total 133.57 438.78 639.76 92.39 1.68 - - 1,306.18
|Expected credit loss rate [ 42| 5%, 11%)] 3%, 59%| 100%, 100%)| 16%
4.11 Cash and bank balances
Particulars As at As at

31 March 2023

31 March 2022

a) Cash and cash equivalents

Balances with banks
-in current accounts
Cash on hand

b) Other bank balances

Deposits with maturity of more than 3 months but less than 12 months
Earmarked balances with bank in current account (refer note below)

Unpaid dividend account

Total

Neote

51019 306.76
12.74 8.75
522.93 315.51
562.30 764.51
14.09 14.09
0.07 0.14
576.46 T18.74
1,099.39 1,004,25

Balances are restrictive in nature as they are earmarked funds payable to the minority share holders of Care lnstitute of Medical Sciences Limited, which
was amalgamated with the Company with effect from 1 April 2016 in accordance with the terms of the scheme of amalgamation sanctioned by the
National Company Law Tribunal, Hyderabad vide its Order dated 5 May 2017

4.12 Loans

Parsiculars

As at

31 March 2023

As at

31 March 2022

Non-Current

Unsecured, siznificant increase im credit risk

Loans to related parties

Less: Loss allowance
Total

Current
Unsecured, considered good
Advances to employees
Total

65.83 65.83

6583 65.83
(65.83) (65.83)

. 243 0.41
2.43 0.41
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Quality Care India Limited
Notes to the Consolidated financial statements
{All amounts in T millions, except share data and where otherwise stated}

4.14 Long-term borrowings

As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022
Non-current Current Non-current Current
Secured - at amortised cost
Term loans from banks

- HDFC Bank term loan - [ {refer note i) 186.70 117.21 300.09 121.34

- HDFC Bank term loan - [l (refer note ii} - £.28 128 10.67

- HDFC Bank term loan - Il {refer note iii} - - - 211

- Axis Bank - Term loan [ (refer note iv) 20696 52,17 259.13 5217

- Axis Bank - Term loan [I {refer note v) 393.40 99.18 492,58 59.18

- HSBC - Term loan (refer note vi) 709.11 - 8553 -

- [ndusind Bank- Term Loan - [ (refer note vii) 463.18 4509 - -

- Induslnd Bank- Term Loan - N[ (refer note vii) 234.60 27.56 - -

- The South Indian Bank Lid.(refer note viii) 214,47 2375 - -
Liabilities associated with Assets held for sale - {1.28) - -
Term loans from banks (A) 2,408.12 364.96 1,138.61 285.47
Term loans from financial institutions

- NIIF Infrastructure Finance Limited (refer note ix) 571.84 148.65 720.49 14490
Term loans from financial institutions (B) 571.84 148.65 720.49 140.90
Total (A+B) _&979.96 5§13.61 1,859.10 426.37
Notes:

Recouciliation of liabilities arising from financial activities excluding interest accrued**

For the year ended For the year ended

31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Opening balance at beginning of the year 2,282.72 2,615.13
Additions on account of busingss combination 2,084.17 -
Proceeds from long-term borrowings 623.58 8553
Repayments of long-term borrowings (1,499.00) 424.83)
Onhers - 6.89
Closing balance at end of the year 3.491.47 2,282.72

**Borrowings include current and non-current portions of term loans from banks and financial institutions.

Reconciliation of interest accrued on above borrowings

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Opening batance at beginning of the year 2.75 3.80
Interest expenses 24474 207.59
Interest paid v (245.39 {208.58)
Others - (0.06)
Closing balance at end of the year 2.10 2.75

Ramkrishna Care Medical Sciences Private Limited

HD¥C Term Loan - 1 and Cash Credit Facility - The term loan and cash credit facility is secured by
(i) equitable mortgage of hospital land and building;

(ii) first exclusive charge on the entire assets (fixed assets/ movable assets) created out of bank finance both present and future excluding medical
equipment's specifically financed by another financier;

(iii) first and exclusive charge on all present and future current assets of the Company;

The loan is repayable in 29 months and carrics interest at rate of MCLR (1 year) plus 0.50% p.a.




Quality Care India Limited
Notes to the Consolidated financial statements
{All amounts in  millions, except share data and where otherwise stated)

iv

v

viii

ix

Galaxy Care Multispecialty Hospital Private Limited

HDFC Bank term loan - I1: The loan is secured by

-first charge on the unencumbered fixed assets of the Company:

-first charge on the current assets of the Company;

-personal guarantee of Dr. Shailesh P. Puntambekar and N. Krishna Reddy (earlier shareholder)

-comfort letter given by Quality Care India Limited to the extent of sanctioned limits;

As at 31 March 2023. the loan is repayable in 2 monthg with monthly equated instatintents and carries an interest rate of bank base rate + 1.30 %
spread.

i Galaxy Care Multispecialty Hospital Private Limited

HDFC Bank term loan - 111: The loan is secured by first charge on the medical equipment purchased out of the sanctioned facility. As at 31 March
2023, the loan is completely repaid.

Quality Care India Limited

Axis Bank - Term loan I - Secured by first pari passu charge over all movable and immovable property, plant and equipment, present and future of
the Company and also hypothecation of entire movable fixed assets both present and future of the Company.

Second pari passu charge over all present and future current assets of the Company. The said loan is repayable in 6 years and 7 months and carries
an interest rate of repo rate + 3% p.a. (31 March 2023: 9.50% p.a.) (31 March 2022: 7.00% p.a.) payable at monthly intervals.

Quality Care India Limitd

Axis Bank - Term loan II - Secured by first pari passu charge over atl movable and immovable property, ptant and equipment, present and future of
the Company and also hypothecation of entire movable fixed assets both present and future of the Company.

Second pari passu charge over all present and future current asset of the Company. The said loan is repayable in 6 years and 7 months and carries
an interest rate of repo rate + 3% p.a, (31 March 2023: 9.50% p.a.} (31 March 2022: 7.00% p.a.) payable at monthly intervals.

Quality Care India Limited

HSBC Bank Term Loan- Secured by first pari passu charge on immovable & movable Property, plant and equipment all present and future asset.
Second pari passu charge on stocks & receivables all present and future assets towards overdrafi and working capital loan facilities.

The loan is repayable in 8 years carries an interest rate of repo rate + 3% p.a (31 March 2023; 6.15% p.a. for 85.50 loan, 7.65% p.a. for 73.30

toan, 8.45% p.a. for 500.00 loan, 7.97% p.a. for 50.31 loan) (31 March 2022: 7.00% p.a.) payable at monthly intervals and moratorium period of 2
years.

i United Ciigma Institute of Medical Sciences Private Limited

Indusind Bank- Term Loan - I & 1II: Secured by first & pari passu charge on immovable & movable Property, plant and ¢quipment all present and
future asset and also on all the current asscts of the Company. The loan is repayable in 6 to 12 years carries an interest rate of 3|1 March 2023
9.09% p.a. for loan [ and 8.93% p.a. for loan 111 payable at monthly intervals.

United Ciigma Institute of Medical Sciences Private Lintited

South Indian Bank Ltd - Secured by first & pari passu charge on immovable & movable Property, plant and equipment all present and future asset
and also on all the current assets of the Company. The loan is repayable in 12 years carries an interest rate of 31 March 2023: 8.98% & 31 March
2022: 8.74% p.a. payable at monthly intervals.

Quality Care India Limited

NIF Infrastructure Finance Limited - The loan is secured by first pari passu charge over all movable and immovable property, plant and
equipment, present and future of the Company excluding MR machine exclusively charged to Siemens Financial Services Private Limited. Second

pari passu charge over all present and future current assets of the Cempany. The loan carries an interest rate of five year NIIF IFL benchmark rate +
0.4% (As on 31 March 2023: 7.30% per annum) (As on 31 March 2022: 9.30% per annum),




Quality Care lndia Limited
Notes to the Consolidated Noanclal statements
LAl amounts in ¥ millions, excepr share data and where otherwise stated)

4.15 Emjilosee benefit obligations
Particulars As at Asat
31 Mairch 2023 31 March 2022
|a) Nen-current
Proevision for employee benefits

Gratuity 136 91 119.01
Compensated absences 3927 3494
Total _ 176,18 153.95%
{b} Cyrrent
Provision for employee benefits
Giratuicy B89.69 7Ll
Compensated absences 3331 25.56
122.00 96,57
4,156 Trade ja- ables
Particulars As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
{a) Trade payable : Micre and simall enterprises; (refer note 4.30) 36.60 3054
(b1 Trade payable : others 1.641.68 406 34
Trade payable to related parties; {refer note 4.32) 13.18 -
1,741.46 1,436.88

|Axeing of irade payables a5 om 31 March 2023:
Outstanding for following periods

Particulars Unblled = U _ from the due date _ |
| | Lessthan 1 sear  i-27ears | 2-3rears | Morethan 3 vears Total
Undisputed trade pavables 1 ] |
Micro ente: rises and small ente:rises . ] 86.60/ ] B ] E| 86.60,
Others including related parties | 513.04 841.39 236.t4. 37.69. g.50] 18,10 1.654.36
Total ] 513.04 927.9% 236,14 3769 4,50 18.10 1,741.46
Ageing of trade paynbles as on 31 March 2022: . :
Not Outstanding for following periods
Particulars Lnbilled due ) from the due date ' |
| 1 (Lessthamd vear | 1-Zvears | 2-3 yearg | More than 3 rears | Total
Undispured rade payables | | ] | | A ]
Micro enteiprises and small entoprises 1 - 2719 319 0.16| - - 30.54
Others including related parties | 282.74 941,26 131.99] 20.32 6.95| 23.08 140634
Total 28274, 968,45 135.18 20.48| 6,95 23,08 1.136.88

417 Other financtal liabilitics
Particulars As at As at

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
|3) Non-curvent

Compulsory convertible preference shares® 6,298.31 -
Crthers 11.80 11.00
Total 6,310.61 11.00

The Company has issued 14,572,480 Compalsorily Convertible Preference Shares (conpon rate of 0.001%) of T 10 each/~ @@ ¥ 452.30 including a premium of ¥ 442,30 per Compulsorily
Convertible Preference Share to Touch Healthcare Private Limited, Mauritins, Holding Company. The Computsorily Conventible Preference shares have been classified as financial
lighility and measured at fair value in accordance with Indian Accounting Standerds (Ind AS). The Board of directors of the cowpany has resolved to convent Compulsory Convertible
Preference Shares into equity shares anytime befors September 2023 at prevailing market rate as on conversion date. Accordingly, Compulsory Convertible Preference Shares have been

measured at fair value for 5 period of 14 months from allotment date at & I borrowing rate.
Reconciliation of Comywisory convertible preference shares:

Particulars | Amount

Face value of Compalsory comvertible 6,591.13

preference shares (CCPS)

Less: Amount reco; rised in other e uit ] 66748

Add: Interest expense durin the ' ear ] 37516

Amount presented in Other financial liabilities- 5,298.81

Non current

(i) Reconciliation of the preference shares outstanding at the begtuning of the year and end of the reporting period

Compulsory convertible preference shares

As at 31 March 2023 | As at 31 March 2022
Particulars Number of Amount Number of Amount
shares | . shares |
At the beginning of this year - - - -
|Lssved dunin: the «ear L 14,572,480 | 6,591.13 | -1 - |
Balance at the end of the 1 ear | 14,572,480 659113 | - -
.-__.-__;.- e = iy,



Qraality Care Indiz Limited
Notes to the C lidated financial stab i
{All amounts in  millions, except share data and witere otherwise siated)

{ii) Compulsory convertible preference shares held by the Holding Company

[Particulars Nature of Shares | “Asat 31 ‘March 2023 _ As at 31 March 2022 =
Number of Amonnt Numbgr of | Amount
N | L shares | . shares |
Touch Healthcare Privare Limited, Maritios Compulsory
convertible
_oreference shares | (4,572,430 | 6,591.13 | - -

_(iil] Particolars of shareholders holding more than 5%, Comwlsg- i convertible preference shares

Partieulars Asat3] March 2023 | As at 31 March 2022
Number of . Number of "

| | shares % holding P Yo holding

Touch Healthcare Private Limited, Mauritivs | 14572, 430 E00.00%,| |

(iv} Details of preference shareholdings by the Promoter/Promoter Gronp

As at 31 March 2023 Asat | % Change during ]

Promoter/Promoter Group Name 31 Mareh 2022 | thesear
| Number of Shares | T % holdinr Number of Shares | % holdin
Touch Healthcare Private Limited, Mawritius | I4.5?2,480 | 100 00% | - -1 105% |
Total [ 39782603 | 100.00% R Y 100%
Particulars As at AS at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

(b} Current
Capital creditors 92,60 2385
Employee benefir payables 94,18 1632
Retention money and deposits 48.09 %1
Purchase consideration payable®* 210.00 .
Other payables* 3130 19.57
Total _4'.-'6.] T l59.12
*Other payables includes 214.09¢31 March 2022: 214,09} payable to the minority share holders of Care Institute ot‘ Medicat Sciences Limited, which was amalgamated with the Company
with effect from | Apnil 2016 in accordance with tre wrms of the scheme of amal ticn toned by the National Company Law Tribunal, Hyderabad vide its Order dated § May
2017,

** Balance purchase comsideration payable o sharcholders of United Ciigma [nstiute of Medical Sciences Private Limited, subsidiary which was engaged in bealthcare services business
with tespect to the acquisition of 76.06% equity stake on 25 July 2022

4.3 Other liabilltes

Particulars Agat As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Current
Statutory dues payable 101.18 95,35
Unearned revenue {refer note 4.42) 45,02 40.54
Dividend payable to minccity sharehobders 007 AL
Others 0.05 - 0.04
o 14732 136,07
se Chartered ,q %
ll/e-" ..3::“ TPy AAC-50gi J{; é‘&u_
. 12 ]} |
o cn Fi|

\ %d Bvorrsmnsi®20
e X Hyderabad *_.-ﬁ-‘



Quality Care India Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial statements
{All amounts in T millions, except share data and where otherwise stated)

4.19 Revenue from operations

Particutars

Revenue from healtheare services
Revenue from outpatient pharmacy
Other operating income

Total

4.20 Other income
Particulars

(a) Interest imcome
On financial assets ( bank deposits ) measured at amortised cost
On income tax refund
On financial assets carried at amortised cost

(b) Other non-operating income
Net gain arising on mutual funds designated at FVTPL
Lease remeasurement gainfloss
Profit on sale of fixed assets
Miscellancous income

{¢) Incomefliabilities written back from operating activities
Total

4.21 Changes in inventories of medical consumables and pharmacy items

Particulars

Inventory at the beginning of the year

Additions on account of business combination (Refer note 4.45)
Inventory at the end of the year

loventory reclassfied to assets held for sale

Inventory written off

Total

4.22 Employee benefits expense*
Particulars

Salaries, wages and bonus

Share based compensation expense
Contribution to provident and other funds
Gratuity and compensated absences
Staff welfare expenses

Total

*Net of amount capitalised (refer note 4.28)

.-,:'-'::T:::é_Chaf[eredA":::;::;-.
QUEE == 100,
r {%ﬁxﬁ"\,\.\@lrgﬂk/c-soay SN
/ S
\ )& )
% BN 1 27NN
St Hyderabad X==

e —

g
.

For the year ended  For the year ended
31 Mareh 2023 3t March 2022
15,104.99 12.478.91
899.79 H65.51
39.17 37.19
16.043.9% 13.181.61
For the year ended  For the year ended .
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
43.69 36,49
2745 020
11.47 9.81
45.60 27.17
5.49 2.06
16.61 -
40.93 18.70
0.75 4.13
191.99 08.56
For the year ended  For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 Mareh 2022
152.53 143.12
85.75 -
266.73 152.53
372 -
41.41 -
(73.58) {9.41%
For the year ended  For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
2,033.40 1,703.93
- 68.32
135.33 112.8i
46.19 56.79
20.97 . 40.60
2,244.8% 1,982.45




Quality Care India Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial statements
(All amounts in T millions. except share data and where otherwise stated)

4.23 Other expenses®

Particulars For the year ended  For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Power and fuel 348.59 268.25
Rent (refer note 4.37) 64,55 25.88
Repairs and maintenance

- Buildings 43.27 45.62

- Plant and machinery and others 417.67 37342
Hospital maintenance 256.65 105.09
Housekeeping charges 389.32 361.43
Security charges 127.90 124.85
Insurance 15.03 8.36
Water charges 28.50 23.56
Books and periodicals 10.50 5.59
Rates and taxes, excluding taxes on income 173.10 146.20
Travelling and conveyance 47.00 42.47
Communication expense 3947 33.58
Marketing and business promotion expense 33517 283.85
Expected credit loss 57.41 105.78
Printing and stationery 58.10 42.75
Payments to the auditor (refer note a) 9.90 7.00
Legat and professional charges 106.82 86.93
Catering charges, net 189.10 152.88
Diagnostics expenses 141.96 141.25
Coniribution towards corporate social responsibility (refer note b) 17.48 2.03
Professional charges to doctors 4,201.15 3,098.91
Property, plant and equipment written-off 6.44 5.29
Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment net 2.79 39
Bank charges 6.26 9.61
Loss on sale of investment in equity shares 3.66 -
Loss on sale of mutual funds 2,79 -
Miscellaneous expenditure 13.29 11.44
Taotal 711427 5.515.93

*Net of amount capitalised (refer note 4.28)

Note (a): Details of payments to auditors

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
For statutory audit 9.50 7.00
For other services 0.40 -
2.90 7.00

Note (b): Details of corporate social responsibility

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Contribution to Telangana Sikh Society - Eradicating Hunger by donation of food 0.50 0.52
Contribution Annamrira Foundatien - 1,00
Contribution to Friends of Tribal society - 0.51
Contribution to Rashtrasanth Janardhan Swami Foundation- Promoting Health & Education 110 -
Contribution to CHL Charitable Trust towards - Promoting Health care & Education 1.44 -
Contribution to ISKCON for eradicating hunger, poverty & malnutrition and

promoting ¢ducation & skill development 14.44 -
Total 17.48 2.03

———
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Quality Care India Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial statements

{All amounts in ¥ millions, except share data and where otherwise stated)

Details of CSR expenditure under Section 135(5) of the Act in respect of other than ongoing projecis

Amount deposiud

%3 Hyderabad

in Amount Ambumt
Balance as at 1 April 2022 g e U netived to . spent during Balance as at 31 March 2023
Schedule V1L of spent during the year
the Act the year ¥
- within 6 month -
| - - NIL | NIL 17.48 17.48 | NiL
= Amount deposited - Hi
in Amount Amount
Balanee as a¢ 1 April 2021 precifisdfemd of )| [required Selbe spent during Balance as at 31 March 2022
Schedule VII of spent during The veat
the Act the year ey
_ wlthin 6 months | .
| NIL | NIL | 2.03 2.03 NIL
4.24 Finance costs
Particulars For the year ended  For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2422
Interest on borrowings* ) 244.74 207.59
Interest on lease liabilities {refer note 4.37) 222.40 173.01
Interest on compulsory convertible preference shares 37516 -
Others 43.97 40.42
Total 886.27 421,02
*Net of amount capitalised (refer note 4.28)
4.25 Depreciation and amortisation expense
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment 569.32 445.17
Amortisation on other intangible assets 20.50 68.36
Depreciation on right-of-use assets 398.23 391.74
Teotal 988.05 == H5.27
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Quality Care India Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial statements
(All amounts in T millions, except share data and where otherwise stated)

4,26 Income tax expense/{credit)
Particulars

For the_year ended For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Income tax expense/(credit) reported in the Statement of Profit and Loss
Tax expense comprises of;

Current tax expense 278.19 302.84
MAT credit {74.62) -
Income tax relating to earlier periods 166.37 21.51
Deferred tax expense/{credir) 100.66 {163.80)
- 470.60 168.55

Reconciliation of tax expense/ (¢redit) and the accounting profit multiplied by ladia's tax rate:

, For the year ended For the year ended
Sartieulara = 31 March 2023 31 Mareh 2022
Profit before tax 1.453.80 1.389.46
Tax at the Indian tax rate 34.944% (31 March 2022; 34.944%) 508.01 485.53
Tax effect of amounts which are not deductible/(taxable) in calculating taxable income:

Effect of income not subject to tax under the [ncome Tax Act, 1961 (4.01) (3.43)
Previously unrecognised tax losses from specified business, as defined under Section 35AD of the Income 257.45)
Tax Act. 1961, now recognised (net of deferred tax liability) - (237,
Deferred tax asset created on tax losses during the year (21.98) -
Indexation benefit on land (7.28) (78.78)
Income tax pertaining to earlier years 166.37 2215
Effect of difference in applicable tax rates to subsidiary companies - (22.00}
Tax impact on fair value of property, plant and equipment (178.50) -
Other adjustments 799 14.53
Tax expense 470.60 160.55
4.27 Earunings per equity share (EPES) g
Particolars For the year ended For the year ended
3t March 2023 31 March 2022
Profit for the year 850.54 1.157.87
Number of equity shares outstanding at the beginming of the year 41,496,894 41,496,394
Total number of equity shares ouistanding at the end of the year 41,496 894 41,496,894
Weighted average number of equity shares considered in computation of Basic EPES 41,496,894 41,496,894
Basic earnings per equity share in 2 (absolute number) 20.50 7.9
Diluted earnings per equity share in T (absolute aumber) - 20.50 2790
Note:

Outstanding employee stock options and warrants has been settled during the year ended 31 March 2022,
Basic EPES and Diluted EPES are same as the potential equity shares are anti-dilutive in nature.

== se Charlered,q
Fia \0“1 g, MC‘5°01 0“’/ ”‘\.
Ii i 2
-
: Q, "PNﬂms‘tNmsnm‘% N $A
"'.:-_: Hydefabad * '.:

|
i



Quality Care India Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial statements
{All amounts in T millions, except share data and where otherwise stated)

4.28

4.29

4.30

{H
(ii)
(iii)
(iv)
%))
{vi)
(vii)

{viii}

Incidental expenditure during the construction period

During the year ended 31 March 2023, the group has capitalised the following amounts to the capital work in progress (CWIP).
Consequently, amounts disclosed under the respective notes are after adjusting amounts capitalised by the group.

Particulars As at As at

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Opening Balance (A) 192,02 187.18
Employee benefits expense (refer note 4.22) (B) 0.82 0.26
Other expenses (refer note 4,23)(C) 6.80 4.34
Finance cost (refer note 4.24) (D) 44.77 0.24
Total (E=A+B+HC+D) 244.41 192.02

Segment Information

Based on the “management approach™ as defined in Ind AS 108, operating segments are to be reported in a manner consistent with
the internal reporting provided to the Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM). The management has assessed the identification of
reportable segmenis in accordance with the requirements of Ind AS 108 “Operating Segment” (“Ind AS 108") and believes that the
Group has only one reportable segment namely 'Medical and Health care services'.

Geographieal information
The Group primarly operates within India.

Major customers
The Group has no single customer who has contributed more than 10% of the Group's total revenue during the year ended 31 March
2023 and 31 March 2022,

Details of dues to Micro and Small Enterprises as per MSMED Act, 2006

The creditors covered by Micro, Smali and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 ("the MSMED Act, 2006™) have been
identified on the basis of information available with the Group. Disclosures in respect of the amounts payable to such parties are
given below:

Particulars As at As at
3t March 2023 31 March 2022

Principal amount due to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act and remaining unpaid as at

86.60 30.54
year end

Interest due to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act and remaining unpaid as at year end

Principal amounts paid to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act, beyond the appointed
day during the year

Interest paid, under Section 16 of MSMED Act, to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act,
beyond the appointed day during the year

Interest paid, other than under Section 16 of MSMED Act, to suppliers registered under the
MSMED Act, beyond the appointed day during the year

Amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which have
been paid but beyond the appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest - -
specified under the MSMED Act

Interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year - -
Amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such

date when the interest dues above are actually paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose of - -
disallowance of a deductible expenditure under section 23 of the MSMED Act

MNotes:

{a) Explanation- The terms appointed day’, *buyer’, “enterprise’, ‘micro enterprise’, *small enterprise’ and *supplier”, shall have the

same meaning as assigned to them under clauses (b), (d), (), (h), {m) and (n) respectively of section 2 of “the MSMED Act, 2006.”

{b) This information has been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of inforvgation-a ailable with the

Group. — - ;
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Quality Care India Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial statements
(All amounts in T millions, except share data and where otherwise stated)

4.31 Employee henefits

Defined benefit plan

The Group provides its employees with benefits under a defined benefit plan, referred to as the "Gratuity Plan”. The Gratuity
Plan entitles an employee, who has rendered at least five years of continuous service, to receive 15 days salary for each year of
completed service at the time of retirement/ exit in accordance with Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. The plan is managed by
Life Insurance Corporation of India. The Group accrues gratuity as per the provisions of the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 as
applicable as at the Balance Sheet date.

A Based on the actuarial valuation obtained in this respect, the following table sets out the status of the gratuity plan and

the amounts recognised as at the reporting dates:

Particulars As at As at

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Defined benefit obligation 250.87 197.36
Fair value of plan assets 24.27 7.34
Net defined benefit liability 226.60 190.02
Non-current 136.91 119.01
Current 29.69 71.01

B Reconciliation of net defined benefit liability

The following table shows a reconciliation from the opening balances to the closing balances for net defined benefit liability

and its components:

i) Reconciliation of present value of defined benefit obligatipn

C Expense recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss

Particulars As at As at

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the year 197.36 180.12
Additional obligation pursuant to business combination 50.52 -
Benefit payments from plan assets (33.06) (24.23)
Benefit payments from employer {0.77) -
Current service cost 30.32 24.01
Interest expense 1695 11.61
Actuarial losses/(gains)
- changes in demographic assumptions 0.25 0.16
- changes in financial assumptions (0.87) (0.69)
- experience adjustments (4.44) 6.38
Liabilities associated with assets held for sale (5.39) -
Defined benefit obligation at the closing of the year 250.87 197.36

ii} Reconciliation of fair value of plan assets

Particulars As at As at

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Plan assets at the beginning of the year 7.34 5.68
Additional assets acquired pursuant to business combination 15.10 -
Contributions 35.37 26.64
Benetits paid (33.04) (24.23)
Interest income 1.73 0.48
Actuarial (losses)/gains {1.97) (1.23)
Assets held for sale {0.26) -
Plan assets at the closing of the year 24.27 134

Particulars

For the year ended

For the year ended

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Current service cost 30.32 24.01
Interest on net defined liability / (asset) y 15.22 11.13

Total cos

35.14




Quality Care India Limited
Motes to the consolidated financial statements
{All amounts in  millions, except share data and where otherwise stated)

4.31 Employee benefits (continued)

D Remeasurements recognised in other comprehensive income

Particulars For the year ended  For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Actuarial gain/{loss) on defined benetit obligation 506 (.85}
Actuarial gain/{loss) on plan assets {1.97; (1.23)
Total cost recognised in the other comprehensive income 3.09 (7.08)

E Actuarial assumptions
The tollowing are the principal actuarial assumptions:

Particulars As at As at

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Altrition rate 40.00% 40.00%
Discount rate 7.50% 7.34%
Salary escalation rate 5.00% 5.00%
Retirement age 58 years 58 years
Note:

a) The estimates of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation, take account of inflation, seniority, promotion
and other relevant factors, such as supply and demand in the employment market.

F Maturity profile of defined benefit obligation is as follows:

Particulars As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Within 1 Year 89.96 7100
2 to 5 years 162.29 126.82
6 to 10 years 42.78 33.60
295.03 231.42

G Sensitivity analysis
Reasonably possible changes to one of the relevant actuarial assumptions, holding other assumptions constant, can affect the
defined benefit obligation by the amounts shown below:
Particulars As at As at
31 March 2023 (%) 31 March 2022 (%)

Discount rate  (+ 1% movement) (5.04) (8.00)
Discount rate (- 1% movement) 5.32 8.40
Salary escalation (+ 1% movement) 6.39 10.00
Salary escalation (- 1% movement) (6.18) (9.60)

H The Group expects 1o contribute 89.69 as its contribution to gratuity within one year from the year ended 31 March 2023,

I Defined contribution plan

The Group's contribution towards its provident fund is a defined contribution retirement plan for qualifying employees. The
contributions are made to registered provident fund administered by the Government. Details for the expenditure recognised
in the Statement of Profit and Loss is as below:

For the year ended For the year ended

Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Amount recognised in the Staterent of Profit and Loss towards
Provident fund 135.33 112.81




Quality Care Indi» Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial statements

(A1l amounts i  millions. except share data and where otherwise stated)

4.32 Related party disclosure

(a) Name of retated parties and eatwre of relationship

Nature of relationship

Key Management Personmel (KMP)

Key Management Persoaael (KMP) of subsidiaries

Relatives of Key Management Personnet (KMP) of subsidiaries

Names
Jasdeep Singh, Chief Executive Officer

Sandeep Kumar, Chief Financial Ofticer {upto 24 May 2021)

Vikas Rastogi, Chief Financial Officer (w.e.f. 24 May 2021)
Gayathri Chandramoulieswaran, Company Secretary {w.e.f. 21 January 2021}

Dr. Shailesh P. Puntambekar, Director

Dr. S¢ema Shailesh Puntambekar, Director
Dr. Sandesp Dave, Managing Director

Dr. Yarun C. Bhargava, Managing Director
Rahu Agrawal, Company Secretary

Dr. Unmesh Takalkar, Managing Director

Vinay Gupta, Chief Financial Officer (w.e.f. 06 December 2022)

Holding Company and Ultimate Holding Company

Eatitles in which Director is interested

Dr. Marnsha Takalkar
Dr. Alka Bhargava
Dr. Neha Bhargava
Vija: Bhar ava

Touch Healthcare Private Limited. Mauritius, Holding Company

Evercare Health Fund, L P, Cayman Islands, Ultimate Holding Company

AKNA Medical Private Limited
Indian Medtronic Private Limited
Asia Healthcare Holding Advisory LLP

Sister eatir: of ultimate holding compans

Joint venture

(b) Tramsactions

Evercare Group Maragement Lid

Quality Care Health Services India Private Limited

Particulars

Transactions dwuring the vear

1 AKNA Medicsl Private Limited
Purchase of drugs and consumables

2. Imdian Medtronic Private Limited
Purchasg of drugs and consumables
Advance for purchase of Robo equipment

3. Asin Healthcare Holding Advisory LLP
Protessional and business services

4. Remungration to Key managerial personnel

Shoit-term and post employment benefits* -

5. Professional fee
Dr. Shailesh P. Puntambekar
Dr. Seema Shailesh Puntambekar
Dr. Sandeep Dave
Dr. Varun C. Bhargava
Dr. Alka Bhargava
Dr. Neha Bhargava
Dr. Manisha Takalkar
Dr. Unmesh Takalkar
6. Rent
Dr. Seema Shailesh Puntambekar
Dr. Sandeep Dave
Vijay Bhargava
7. Purchase of land
Dr. Unmesh Takalkar
8. Evercare Group Managemeat Ltd
Revenue from professional services
9. Touch Healthcare Private Limited

[ssue of Compulsory Convertible Preference Shares

e rtere_d',a;'*'-::.b
e UaNered Ace, R,
SO PACS00T 6 N
f 2 = Il
! o A
am-:_xq,_;-.'.‘Z?_A{:o12754_bm~!59@;"'3ﬂ;”

""-'.:-_---_-___*_ _l-fyderabad_.__-_::f”

For the year ended
31 March 2023

For the year ended
31 March 2022

0.26

41.38
5,00

1198
5354

6045
1234
23.01
1.5
0.50
1.34
0.30
39.60

0.06
1648
026
487.51
215

6,591.13

4.07

4338

187

66.23

60.39
T.44
i8.4%
1.46
0.67
0.9

.12
15.58
024

17.50



Quality Care lodia Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial statements
(All amounts in € millions. except share data and where otherwise stated)

(¢ } Balanrces uistanding from/ to the velated parties
Particulars u -
Balances outstanding from/ to the related parties
1 Quality Care Health Services India Private Limited
Loans receivable®*
2 AKNA Medical Private Limited
Trade payable
3 Indion Medtronlc Private Limited
Trade payable
Advance for purchase of Robo equipment
4 Professional fee payable
Pr. Shailesh P. Puntambekar
Dr. Seema Shailesh Puntambekar
Dr. Sandeep Dave
Dr. Varun C. Bhargava
Dr. Neha Bhargava
Dr. Alka Bhargava
Dr. Manisha Takalkar
Dr. Unmesh Takalkar
5 Evercare Group Management Lid
Revenue from protessional services

As at 31 March 2023

6583

13.18
5.00

502
D86
2.73
013
0.28
0.11
0.26
£38

As at 31 March 2022

6583

a.14

1957

5.94
0.67
1.69
01t
0.10
003

3.56

* Short-term and post employment benefits, disclosed above, does not include those benefits which are comp?ed for the Group- as a whole,
** The outstanding amount as at 31 March 2023 aggregating to ¥65.83 (31 March 2022: 265.83) is provided for in the books {refer note 4.12).



Quality Care India Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial statements
{All amounts in T millions, except share data and where otherwise stated)

4.33 Categories of financlal instruments and their fair values
The carrying amount of all financial assets and financial liabilities appearing in the financial statements are reasonable

approximation of their fair values.

Categories of financial instruments

B As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022
FVTPL* Amortised cost FYTPL Amortised cost
Financial assets 1
Investments 430.87 - 1.029.33 -
Trade receivables - 1,796.41 - 1.172.61
Cash and cash equivalents - 522.93 - 315.51
Other bank balances - 576.46 - 778.74
Loans - 243 - 0.41
{Other financial assets - 868.47 - 413.17 |
\Total financial assets 430.87 3,766.70 1,029.35 2,680.44 |
~Asat3] March 2023 As at 31 March 2022
FYTPL Amortised cost FVTPL |  Amortised cost
Financial liabilities
Borrowings - 3,493.57 - 2,282.72
Trade payables - 1.741.46 - 1,436.88
Lease liabilities - 2.244.41 - 1,664.86
Other financial liabilities - 6,786.78 - 172.87
Total financial liabilities . 14,266.22 | -

5,557.33

The fair value of the financial assets and financial liabilities is included at an amount at which the instrument could be
exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale.

*FYTPL - Fair value threugh Profit and Loss

Fair value measurement

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and financial liabilities that are measured at fair value on a recurting basis.

Particulars

Valuation technique and key

Fair value as at (in ¥)

Fair value

input hierarchy As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Financial assets
Based on the net asset value
(*NAV’) as stated by the issuers of
Investiment in mutual  these mutual fund units in the Level 1 430.87 1,029.35

funds

published statements as at balance
sheet date. {quoted prices in active
market)
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Quality Care India Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial statements
{All amounts in ¥ nillions, except share data and where otherwise stated)

4.34 Financial instruments risk management

Financial Risk Management Framework

The Group's Board of Directors have an overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Group's risk management framework, The Board of
Directors have established the Risk Management Committee, which is responsible for developing and monitoring the Group's risk management policies. The
Committee reports regularly to the Board of Directors on its activities.

The Group's principal financial liabilities comprises of borrowings, trade and other payables. The main purpose of these financial liabilitics is to finance the
Group’s operations. The Group's principal financial assets include investments, loans, trade and other receivables. and cash and bank balances that the Group
derives directly from its operations. The Group also holds FVTPL investments,

The Grroug is exposed primarily to Credit Risk, Liquidity Risk and Market risk (fluctuations in interest rates and foreign currency rates), which may adversely
impact the fair value of its financial instruments. The Group assesses the unpredictability of the financial environment and seeks to mitigate potential adverse
effects en the financial performance of the Group.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading to a financial loss. Credit risk
encompasses of both, the direct risk of default and the risk of deterioration of creditworthiness as well as concentration of risks. Credit risk arises primarily
from financial assets such as trade receivables, investments, balances with banks, Ioans and other receivables.

Credit risk is controlled by analysing credit limits and creditworthiness of customers on a continuous basis to whom the credit has been granted after obtaining
necessary approvals for credit. Financial instruments that are subject to concentrations of credit risk principally consist of trade receivables, mvestments, cash
and cash equivalents, bank deposits and other financial assets. None of the financial instruments of the Group result in material concentration of the credit risk.

Financial assets that are neither past due nor impaired

Nane of the Group's cash equivalents, including fixed deposits, were either past due or impaired as at 31 March 2023. Credit risk on cash and cash equivalents,
including fixed deposits is limited as the Group generally transacts with banks and financial institutions with high credit ratings assigned by international and
domestic credit rating agencies.

Financial assets that are past due but not impaired : Refer note 4.10 - Trade Receivables

Ind AS requires expected credit losses to be measured through a loss allowance. The Group assesses at each Balance Sheet date whether a financial asset or a
group of financial assets are impaired. Expected credit losses are measured at an amount equal to the life time expected credit losses. The Group has used a
practical expedient by computing the expected credit loss allowance for trade receivables based on a provision matrix. The provision matrix takes into account
histotical ¢redit loss experience and adjusted for forward-looking information.

Liquidity risk

Prudent tiquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and the availability of funding to meet obiigations when due. Management monitors the
Group’s liquidity position and cash and cash equivalents on the basis of expected cash flows. This is generally carried out at each hospital level in accordance
with practice set by the Group,

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Group's financial liabilities based on contractual undiscounted payrments:

As at 31 March 2023 . Uptolisear | Morethan 11ear ‘ Total ]
Bomowings 514.89 | 2,979.9¢6 3,494.85
Trade payables 1,741.46 - 1,741.46
Lease liabilitics 272.47 2.042.86 2,315.33
Other financial liabilities - - L 48THT - as197|
[Total - 3,016.79 | 502282 | 8,039.61 |
As at 31 March 2022 - | Uptolvear | Morethanlsear | Total . |
Borrowings 423.62 1.859.10 2,282,72 |
Trade payables 1.436.88 - 1,436.88
Lease liabilities 282.88 1,381.98 1,664.86
Other financial liabilities _ le1.837] 100 172.87
Total ] 2,305.25 3.252.08 5,557.33 |
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Notes to the consolidated financiafl statements
{All amounts in T millions, except share data and where otherwise stated)

4.34 Financial instruments risk management (continued)

C.

4.35

Market risk:

Market risk is the risk of loss of future earnings, fair values or future cash flows that may result from adverse changes in market rates and prices. Market risk is
attributable to all market risk-sensitive financial instruments, such as foreign currency denominated receivabtes and payabies and variable interest rates of short-
term and long-term borrowings. Market risk comprises twe types of risk: interest rate risk and currency risk.

Interest rate risk:
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument shall fluctuate because of changes in the market interest rates. The
Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Group’s borrowings with floating interest rates.

The exposure of the Group's borrowing to interest rate changes at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

Particulars For the year ended  For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Fixed rate instraments -

Financial assets 1,029.81 306.90

Variable rate instruments

Financial liabilities 3493.57 228547

The Growp's investmenis are in deposits with reputed banks and therefore do not expose the Group to significant interest rates risk.

Sensitivity analysis

For the years ended 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022, every 50 basis point decrease in the floating interest rate component applicable to the Group's
borrowings would have increased the profit before tax approximately by 224.02 and Z9.91 respectively. A 30 basis point increase in floating interest rate would
have led to an equal but opposite effect.

Foreign currency risk;
Foreign currency tisk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure shall fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Groups
exposure to the risk of changes in foreign exchange rates relates primarily to the Group’s operating activities (when revenue or expense including capital

expenditure is denominated in a foreign currency). The exposure of entity to foreign currency risk is very limited on account of limited transactions in foreign
currencies.

The carrying amount of the Group's foreign currency denominated monetary items in 2 as at 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2621: NIL

Capital risk management

For the purpose of the Group's capital management, capital includes issued equity capital, securities premium and all other equity reserves attributable to the
equity helders. The primary objective of the Group™s capital management is 1o maximise the shareholders value,

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in Light of changes in economic conditions and the requirements of the financial covenants. To
maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend payments to the shareholders, return capital to shareholtders or issue new shares, The
Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total equity plus net debt. The Group’s policy is to keep the gearing ratio below 30%.
The Group includes within net debt, borrowings (long and short term), less cash and cash equivalents.

As at
T 31 March 2023 3 March 2022
Borrowings (note 4.14 and 4.17) 3,493.57 2,282.72
Less: Cash and cash equivalents {note 4.11(a)) {522.93) {315.51)
Less: Other bank balances (note 4.11{b}) {576.46) {764.65)
Less: Investment in mutual funds (note 4.5(b)) (430.87) (1,029.35)
Net debt (A) 1,963.31 173.21
Total eguity (B) . N 10,227.63 7.472.72
Net debt and total equity (A) + (B} 12,190.94 764503
Cearing ratio (%) 16.10% 227%

In order to achieve this overall objective, the Group’s capital management, amongst other things, aims to ensure that it meets the financial covenants attached to
the borrowings. Breaches in meeting the financial covenants would permit the lenders to immediately call back the borrowings. There has been no breaches in
the financial covenants of any borrowings during the year ended 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022,

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing the capital during the vears ended 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022,




Quality Care India Limited
MNotes to the tidated fi ial stat L
(All amounts in T millions, except shace data and where otherwise stated)

4.36 Centingent liabilities and commibments
{a) Contingent liabilities
Particulars

Agat
31 March 2023

As af
31 March 2022

Claims against the Growp not acknowledged as debts

|- Disputed cases under Income Tax Act, 1961 |

3394 3477
|- Disputed Jevy of sales tax on medical supplies under the Andhra Pradesh General Sales Tax Act, 1957 - 3.56
- Disputed wages of specific employees under the Minimun: Wages Act, 1948 | 3.69 3.19
- Dispated Juxury tax levied on bed charges under the Telangana Tax on Luxuries Act, 1987 117.22 H722
- Disputed levy of service tax on clinical research, cosmetic surgeries, health care services rendered to spexific 6815 6813
categories of patients and other services and disputed availment of input credit on certain iterns under the Finance Act,
1994 |
- Disputed levy of Employee siate insurance provisions on certain employees under the Employees' State [nsurance Act, 1.26 1.26
1943
- Disputed levy of Provident fund provisions on certmin employees under the Employess' Provident Funds and 8.77 877
Miscelianeous Provisions Act, 1952
- Drisputed tax levied on specific building of the Group under the Expenditure Tax Act, 1987 783 7.83
Patient legal claims pending with various Consumer Disputes Redressal Commission 22336 307.50
Other legal claims pending under the various Statutory Acts o .| 317.03 2963
{b)} Commitments
Particulars Asat Asat
H March 2023 31 March 2022
Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for {net of advances) 27739 43528

4.37 Leases

The Group has taken hospital buildings, plant and machinery and vehicles on aperating fease having a term canging from 1 year to 15 years. The lease has an

escalation clanse in the range of 5% to 10% per annum. The Group obligations under its leases are secured by the lessor’s title to the leased assets.

The Group also has certain lease of building with lease terms of 12 months or less. The Group applies the ‘short term lease' recognition exemption for these leases.

Carrylng amount of lease Habillties and movement during the year

Particulars As at As at

3 March 2023 31 March 2022
Balance at the beginning of the year 1,664.86 1.985.96
Additions during the year 1,035.18 53,91
Deletions during the vear (59.835) {67.83)
Finance cost acerued during the year 214.44 173.01
Other adjustments 1893 {27.50)
Pasment of lease liabilities {529.15) (492.69)
Lense liabilities as at the end of the sear 2,244.41 1,664.86
Curreni lease liabilities 26017 282,88
Nan-current Jease liabiliti 1,984.24 1,381.98
The effective interest rate for lease liabilities is 9.55% with maturity between 2020-2034,
Following amounts bave been recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss:
Farticulgrs Far tke year ended For the year ended

31 March 2623 31 March 2022
Depeeciation on Right-pf-use assats 39823 39174
Interest on lease liahilities 222.40 173.01
Total amount recognised in the Statement of profit and loss 652063 564,75
Details of the contractual maturities of lease liabilities on an ondi ted basis are as follows:
Particulars As at Ax at

31 March 2023 31 Mareh 2022
Less than one year 48246 426.55
One to five years 1.605.81 127140
More than five vears 1,384.00 73583
Total 347227 2,453.78

The Group does not face a significant liquidity sisk with regard to its lease liabilities as the current assets are sufficizat to meet the obligations related to lease

liabilities as and when they fall due.

Rental expense recorded for short-term leases was £64.55 for the year ended 31 March 2025 (31 March 2022: ¥25,88),
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Quality Care India Limited .
Notes to the consolidated financial statements
(All amounts in  millions, except share data and where otherwise stated)

4.4¢ Transfer pricing
The Group has entered into commercial transactions with its associated entetprises which are subject to agsessment and test of transactions being carried out at an "arm's
length price.” in accordance with the provisions of chapter X of the Income Tax Act, 1961,

The Group has established a comprehensive system of maintenance and docurnents as required by the transfer pricing legislation under sections 92-92F of the Income
Tax Act, 1961. Management 1s of the opinion that its transactions with associated enterprises are at arm's tength. Therefore, the legislation shall not have any impact on
the consolidated financial statements.

4.41 Disclosure of Interest in subsidiarles and joiat venture:

| Ownership interest in the Company (%)

Particuiars Nature of relationship Couniry of Asat As at
incorporation. 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Ganga Care Hospital Limited Subsidiary India 74.13% 74.13%
Ramkrishna Care Medical Sciences Private Limited Subsidiary india 56.33% 56.33%
Galaxy Care Multispecialty Hospital Privaie Limited Subsidiary India 76.00% 76.00%
Quality Care Jharsuguda Private Limited Subsidiary India 100.00% 100.00%
Convenient Hospitals Limited Subsidiary India 95.00% -
United CTIGMA Institute of Medical Sciences Private Limited Subsidiary India T6.00% -
1 uality Care Health Services India Private Limited Joint venture india 50.00% 30.00%

4.42 Unearned revemme

The followiny table discloses the movement in the anearned revenue during the v ear ended 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022:

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Balance at the beginning of the year 40.54 86.38
Revenue recognised during the year . (4054 {86.38)
Invoiced dunne the vear 46.02 40.54
Balance at the end of the »ear 46.02 40.54

443 In 2009, the Company had entered into an agreement with Andhra Pradesh Industrial Infrastructure Corporation Limited ("APIIC") to acquire 2 land parcel and
development of a Health City along with allied infrastructure (“Project™ in Visakhapatmam, Andhra Pradesh. Pursuant to the terms of the said agreement, the APLIC
has allotted 4.18 aczes of land to the Company upon payment of INR 105,55 and included in Property, plant and equipment [refer note 4. 1{b)] subjected to conditional
registration of land in favor of the Company upon completion of the Project by 30 June 2020. The company has received extension of timeline from APIIC til)
Decerber, 2023. Further the company has incurred sum aggregating Rs. 1093.45 (31 March 2022: Rs. 564. 17} towards land development and civil construction there
on which are included in capital work-in-progress {refer note 4.3). Based on intemal evaluation, the management of the Company is confident of completing the
project within stipulated timelines.
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Quality Care India Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial siatements
{All amounts in T millions, except share data and where otherwise stated)

444 Additional regulatory information required by Schedule 111

(i} Details of benami property held

No proceedings bave been initiated on or are pending against the group for bolding benami property under the Benami Transactions
(Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and Rules made thereunder.

(ii} Borrowing secured against current assets
The group has borrowings from banks and financial institwtions on the basis of security of current assets. The revised quarterly returns or
statements of current assets filed by the group with banks and financial institutions are in agreament with the books of accounts.

(iii) Wilful defaulter
The group has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any government authority,

(iv) Relationship with struck off companies
The group has no transactions with the companies struck off under Companies Act, 2013 or Companies Act, 1956.

(v} Compliance with number of layers of companies
The group has complied with the number of layers prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013,

(vi) Compliance with approved scheme(s) of arrangements
The group has not entered into any scheme of arrangement which has an accounting impact on current or previous financial year.

(vii) Utilisation of borrowed funds and share premium

(A} The group has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Intermediaries)
with the understanding that the [ntermediary shall:
a. directly or indirectly lend or itvest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the group
{Uleimate Beneficiaries) or
b. provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries.

{(B) The Group has received funds from Touch Healthcare Private Limited, Holding company with the understanding that the Group shall
further invest the funds in equity shares for the acquisition of 95% stake in Convenient Hospitals Limited and 76% stake in United Ciigma
Institute of Medical Sciences Private Limited. The Group has has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies). including foreign
entities (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the group shall provide any guarantee,
security or the like on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries.

The details of date and amount of funds received from funding party during the year ended 3 | March 2023 are as follows.

Name of the funding Registered address of the Relationship with the Date of funds Amountof |
[ _paris | funding pari .. funding paris | received _|_Tunds received |
Touch Healthcare Private |33 Edith Cavell Street, 11324, Holding Company  28-Jun-23 | 3412.73
Limited, Mauritius | Port-Louis, Mauritius . ) | 25-Jul-23 [ 3.178.40
The details of date and amount of funds further invested by the Group to ultimate beneficiaries during the year ended 31 March 2023 are
o follows: R S— e e S
Name of the ultimate | Registered address of the ultimate| Relationship with the | Dute of investment Amount of
beneficiaries beneficiaries vitimate beneficiaries investment from
| funds received
| from Holding
{ =\ o L 1 Company |
Convenicnt Hospitals | |Subsidiary Company | 29-Jun-23 3.412.73
Limited Near LIG Square, A B.Road, Indore,
| |Madhya Pradesh - 452008, india. | 1 | |
United Ciigma Institute o |Plot No. 6 & 7, Survey No. 10,|Subsidiary Company 26-Jul-23 3.178.40
Medical Sciences Private|Shahanoorwadi, Dargah Road,
Limited Aurangabad, Maharashtra - 431005,
[India.

(vili) Undisclosed income
There is no income surrendered or disclosed as income during the current or previous year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax
Act, 1961, that has not been recorded in the books of account,

(ix) Details of crypte currency or virtual currency .
The group has not traded or invested in erypto currency or virtual currency during the curent or previous year.

(x) Valuation of Property, plant and equipment, intangible asset and investmene property

The group has not revalued its property, plant and equipment {including right-of-use assets) or intangible assets or both during the current
Or previons year.
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Quality Care India Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial statements
(All amounts in T millions, except share data and where otherwise stated)

4.45 Business combinations

a) On 14 April 2022, the Group has acquired Thumbay Hospital New Life, Hyderabad engaged in healthcare services business on a slump sale
basis. This acquisition is expected to further strengihen the Group's presence in Hyderabad market. Management expects certain synergies to be
derived from this acquisition and accordingly, the goodwill recognised from this acquisition has been allocated to Thumbay hospital unit,

The assets and liabilities acquired:

Particulars Thumbay Hospital New Life

Progerty, plant and equipment

180.20 4

Inventory

2.66

Net identifiable assets acquired

182.36

Purchase consideration paid in cash
|Gaodwill recognised

200.00 |
17.14 |

Also refer note 4.1{a) for the details of Property, plant and equipment acquired during the year as a part of this acquisition.

The above mentioned assets and liabilitics are acquired at fair value as on acquisition date and there is no gain/loss attributable on fair value. The

goodwill recognised is not deductible for tax purposes.

Revenue from operations and loss from the date of acquisition is 2126.82 and 144.33, respectively. [f the acquisitions had occurred on 1 April
2022. the amount of revenue and loss would have been  126.87 million and 144,27, respectively,

b) On 28 June 2022 the Group has acquired 95% equity stake in

Convenient Hospitals Limited, Indore engaged in healthcare services business

through acquisition of shares. This acquisition is expected to further strengthen the Groups presence in [ndore market. Management expects
certain synergies to be derived from this acquisition and accordingly, the goodwill recognised from this acquisition has been allocated to

Convenient Hospital unit.
The assets and liabilities acquired:

Convenient Hospitals

Particulars Limited
Assels acquired [ I
:'Non current assets =
|-Property, plant and equipment 1,590.21
-ltangible assets . 0.53
-Trade mark 352,52
|-Non current investments 0.37
| <Other non current assets 8.36
|- Deferred Tax assets 96.00
Current assets | ]
|-Inventories =& 42 43
-Loans g 227.85
-Trade receivables 114,88
-Cash and cash ¢quivalenis N 338.80
-Other current assets | 65.21 |
Total assets acquired (a) 2,837.16
Liabilities taken over -
Current liabilities = —
-Short term borrowings 15.01
-Trade payables 119.25
-Other current liabilities 188.36
-Provisions 11.38
Payable towards acquisition of Pharmacy and Diagnostic Business 65492 |
| Total liabilities taken over (b) - 988.92 |
Fair value of et assets acquired {¢) = (a) - (b) 1,848.24 |
Non controlling interest (d) = (¢) x (160% - 95%) 199.58
‘Total purchase consideration for 95% equity stake (e) 3,791.93 |
| Goodwill recognised () = (d) + ()~ {¢) 2,143.27
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Quality Care India Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial statements
(All amounts in € millions, except share data and where otherwise stated)

Also refer note 4.1(a) for the details of Property. plant and equipment acquired during the year as a part of this acquisition,

The above mentioned assets and Liabilities are acquired at fair value as on acquisition date and there is an amount of 21,147.65 gain attributable on
fair value of propesty, plant and equipment. The goodwill recognised is not deductible for tax purposes.

Revenue fiom operations and profit from the date of acquisition is 21.439.06 and 10772, respectively. [f the acquisitions had occurred on 1
April 2022, the amount of consolidated revenuve and consolidated profit would have been 2 16,335.52 million and 2983.42. respectively.

Fair value of trade receivables acquired is T 14.88 as of acquisition date and as of 31 March 2023, the amounts are substantially collected.
The Non-controlling interest as at the acquisition date is £199.58 and it is measured at fair value,

The valuation techniques used for measuring the fair value of assets acquired were as follows;

Assets acquired Valuation technique |
II_..anc_I Market Approach has been adopted for estimating the Fair Value of Land.
Building Depreciated Replacerent Cost Method under cost approach to armive at fair value of the

| buildings.
Replacement Cost New, adjusied for depreciation and obsolescence under Cost Approach
1o artive at the fair valug of Plant and Machinery.

Trade mark Relief from Royalty method under Income Approach

Property, plant and cquipment Other than | Valued at Cost and book value of the assets as on 28 June 2022 has been adopted as Fair
above Value.

Plant and machinery

I

¢} On 25 July 2022 the Group has acquired 76.06% equity stake in United Ciigma Institute of Medical Sciences Private Limited, Aurangabad
engaged in healthcare services business through acquisition of shares. This acquisition is expected to further strengthen the Group's presence in
Aurangabad market. Management expects certain synergies to be derived from this acquisition and accordingly, the goodwill recognised from this
acquisition has been allocated to United Ciigma Hospital unit.

| United Ciigma Institute of

Particulars Medical Sciences Private
- Limited |
Assets agqui |
Non current assets T
-Property, plant and equipment _ - 1.634.60 |
~Non current tax assets | 6797 |
-Trade mark 297.24
-Non current investments | 6.91
-Othet non current assets i 55.84 |
Current sssets —
-Inventoriss = 4 40,66
-Loans 047
-Trade receivables 174.04
-Cash and cash equivalents _ 1,605.07 |
-Other current assets — 98.44
Total assets atquired (a) 3.981.24
Liabilities taken over B ' B =
|Non curvent liabilities
-Long term borrowings 2,064.29 |
-Deferred tax liabilities (net) - 139.60
Current liabilities o
-Short term borrowings 4.87
-Trade payabies 225 89
-Other current liabilities 140.54
|-Loan from related parties 228.04
Total liabilities taken over (b) i 2,803.23
Fair value of net assets acquired (¢) = (a) - (b} 1,178.01
Non controlling interest (d) = {c) x (100% - 76.06%) 1,135.03 |
Total purchase consideration for 76.06% equity stake (¢} 3,594 25 1
Goodwlll recognised (1) = (d) + {e)- (¢) 3,551.27
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Quality Care India Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial statements
{All amounts in T millions, except share data and where otherwise stated)

Also refer note 4.1{a) for the details of Property, plant and equipment acquired during the year as a part of this acquisition.

The above mentioned assets and Habilities are acquired at fair value as on acquisition date and there is an amount of 273640 loss attributable on
fair value of property, plant and ¢quipment. The goodwill recognised is not deductible for tax purposes.

Revenue from operations and profit from the date of acquisition is 2937.74 and 216.50, respectively. If the acquisitions had occurred on 1 April
2022, the amount of consolidated revenue and consolidated profit would have been Z 16.475.34 million and 991 .79, respectively.

Fair value of trade receivables acquired is 2174.04 as of acquisition date and as of 31 March 2023, the amounts are substantially collected,
The Non-controlling interest as at the acquisition date is Z1,135,03 and it is measured at fair value.

The valuation techniques used for measuring the fair value of assets acquired were as follows:

|Assets acquired [ Valuation technique J
:Land Market Approach has been adopted for estimating the Fair Value of Land. :
Building Depreciated Replacement Cost Method under cost approach 1o arrive at fair value of the
| buildings.

Plant and machinery Replacement Cost New, adjusted for depreciation and obsolescence under Cost Approac-li

1o artive at the fair value of Plant and Machinery.

T e mark _|Refief from Royalty method under Income Approach ]
Property, plant and equipment Other than | Valued at Cost and book value of the assets as on 28 June 2022 has been adopted as Fair|
above |Value,
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Quality Care India Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial statements
(All amounts in T millions. except share data and where otherwise stated)

4.46

447

4,48

4.49

Other regulatory infermation

(i) Title deeds of immovable properties not held in name of the group

The title deeds of all the immovable properties (other than properties where the group is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of
the lessee), as disclosed in note 4.1 to the financial statements, are held in the name of the group except for land and building aggregating to 2126.77
(Refer note 4.1 and 4.43 for further details)

(i) Utilisation of borrowings avaited from banks and financial institutlons
The borrowings obtained by the group from banks and financial institutions have been applied for the purposes for which such loans were was taken.

(iii) The group has not given [oans/advances in the nature of loans to directors, promoters, KMPs ot any other related parties which are repayable on
demand or without specifying terms & conditions of repayment.

Exceptional item
Post the acquisition ef United Ciigma Institute of Medical Sciences Private Eimited and United Ciigma Hospitals Healthcare Private Limited by Quality
Care India Limited on 25 July 2022, the management has determined, based on their physical verification of inventory representing medical consumables

and phammacy items, as not fit for consumption. Hence, the management has charged off the inventory amounting to 41.41 to the Statement of Profit and
Loss as an exceptional itern.

Internal financial controls over financial reporting (IFCFR)

Quality Care India Limited and its subsidiaries- Ganga Care Hospital Limited, Galaxy Care Multispecialty Hospital Private Limited and Ramkrishna Care
Medical Sciences Private Limited have strong internal financial controls over financial reporting, The management has evaluated the design and
operating effectiveness of these controls and noted no deficiencies.

However, in respect of the new subsidiaries- United Cligma Institute of Medical Sciences Private Limited, Convenient Hospitals Limited, Heart Care
Institute And Research Centre (Indore) Pvt Lid, United Ciigma Hospitals Healthcare Private Limited and Ciigma [nstitute of Medical Sciences Private
Limited acquired during the year, on account of practical impediments, alignment of the controls framework with the requirements was in progress as at
year end. Accordingly, the auditors of these subsidiaries have issued a disclaimer of opinion in respect of IFCFR as at year end.

Subsequent events

Quality Care India Limited (*QCIL"} has divested its entire equity investment held in Galaxy Care Muhispecialty Hospital Private Limited (“Galaxy™
(15,810 equity shares) on fully diluted basis in the following manner:

1) Galaxy has bought back 5.201 number of equity shares on 17 April 2023 for a consideration of 41.92 .

2) QCIL has transferred 10,609 number of equity Shares to the promoters of the Galaxy i.e., Dr. Shailesh Padmakar Puntambekar and Dr. Seeima Shailesh
Puntambekar for a consideration of 58.08.

Accordingly, as at 31 March 2023, total assets in Galaxy Care Multispeciaity Hospital Private Limited (“Galaxy™ has been disclosed as "Assets classified
as held for sale' and totat liabilities in Galaxy Care Multispecialty -Hospital Private Limited (“Galaxy™ has been disclosed as "Liabilitics directly
associated with assets held for sale'.
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